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The Board of Directors

Mr. Pradip Kumar Das

Non Exeoftive -independent Direcior
{Nominee Directare of NCLT) & Chairman
DIN : DB5931132

Mr. Umesh Ramkrishan Agarwal

Joinl Managing Direclor
HN - 01209962

Mr. Milind Bharat Parekh

Mon Executive - Independent Direclor
DIN : GDDO1513

Mrs.Neelam Tater

Mon Exscutive -

Mr. Shankarlal Agarwal

Whaole Time Director
DIM - 01205377

Mr. Omprakash Agarwal
Joint Managing Director
i - 01267429

Mr. Vinod Aggarwal
Mon Executive - Independent Director
DIN - DI T2615

Mrs. Vineeta Agrawal
hon Executivo - Independent Director

Mr. Sanwarmal Agarwal

Execulive Direclor & Managing Director
DN : 01007594

Mr. Amit Agarwal
MNon Execulive - independenl Direclon
DIN - 01006387

Mr. Sujit Sen

Non Executive - Independent Direcior
DIN - D1248228

Ms. Seema Vyas
Comparny Secrelery & Compliance Officer

Independent Directa MM ; 02960284

DIM : 07653773

# The above disciosure has been given in accordance with Section 158 of Companies &t 2013,

and reference of any of the above directors made in this document be read along with the above

disclosure of their respective Director Identification Numbers.

NOTE:

1) Mr. Pradip Kumar Das has ceased to be associated with the company vide his resignation tendered on June 21, 2025.

2) Mr. Shankarial Agarwal has tendered his resignation from the post of Whole Time Director on May 27, 2025

3) Mr. Sanwarmal Agarwal has resigned from the post of Managing Director on May 27, 2025

4) Mr. Vinod Kumar Aggarwz! has resigned as the Non-Executive Independent Director of the company w.e.f May 20, 20225
5} M Sujit Sen has resigned from the post of Non-Executive Independent Director weef. May 20, 2025

&) Mrs. Neelam Tater has tendered her resignation from the post of Non-Executive Independent Director on May 20, 2025

7) Mrs. Vineeta Agrawal was appointed as an Additional Mon-Exeantive Independent Woman Director wee f june 02, 2025 and

reqularized as Nan-Exeoutive Independent Waman Director in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on June 27, 2025,

Anditors :M/s. SAPD & Asspciates, Chartered Accountants (Fam Fegn, Mo, 3272715}

Endernal Auditors : M ALK Satal & O, (hartered Accountants {Firm Regn. Ko, 12586 E)

Secretarial Ausitors : M/s Dreep Shukla & (o, Practising Comgpany Seoretary [Peer meview Mo, 20932022 |

Cost Auditors : M/ 5. Chhaparia & Assodates, Cost Accountants (Firm Hegn No 107591)

Registered Office : Plot No.E-1, Road No. 7, Wgle industrial Estate, Thane {West) - 400 604

Wi : Dinrlagarh Indestrial Park, NH-6, Dhulagur, POL& Village - Kanduah, Howsah - 717302, West Berigal, india
Weorks : Plot Ho B-12, MIDC, Kalysn Bhivwandi Road, Saravali Xaiyan - 421 311, M

Bankers ; Yos Bank, HOEC Bank L td_ 100 Bank | id
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SEAL CF TRLLY

DIRECTORS' REPORT

To,
The Members
GEE LIMITED

Your directors have pleasuren presenting the 64" Annual Report of GEE Limited together with the Sudined Satement of Accounts for the finanaal
yearended 317 March 2025,

1. FINANCIALSTATEMENTS & RESULTS:

a8, Financial Results

GEE Limited's performance during the financial year ended 31" March 2025 as compared tothe previous financial year, is summarized h’ﬁﬂim1

Farticulars

Income _ 340N | 36,987 20
Lass: Expenses | 34,607.10 _ 35,180.51
Profit! {Loss) betore tax (1,196.39) 1,806.69

- Less: Provision for tax - 0.00 - 532 .88
Provious Years Tax (53.48) 019

| Deferred tax | (2888 | (11.95)

- Profit after Tax - (924.03) - 1,285.57

b. OPERATIONS: GEE Limited continues to be engaged in activities portaining to manufacturing and dealing in a2l kinds of welding consumables and
alficd equipmentand applianoes.

Thenewasno change in the nature of the business of GEE Limited, during the yearunderreview.

During the financial year under review, the Company has posted total revenue of INR 3341071 Lakhs as against INR 36,987 .20 Lakhs for the
cormesponding previous year.

Further, the Companmy has incurred a foss after tax of INR 924.03 Lakhs as against net profit after tax (MR 1,285.57 Lakhs for the corresponding previous
year

The Company reported losses for the financial year 2024-25. The profitability was adversely impacted due to multiple factors, The primary factor
contributing tothis downturm has been a significant dispute within the management team. The intemal disagreement unfortunately led toa series of
suboptimal dedsion-making processes, which directly impacted our operational effidency and strategic direction. Furthermore, we observed a
consistent trend of below optimum capacity utilization, meaning the comipany’s resources wene [ot being utilized to thedr full potential. This, combined
with a reduction in sakes realization, where the actual revenue generated from sales was lower than antidpated, significantly narrowed the company
profitmangins.

The above reasons led to under-absorption of fixed overheads and inoeased per unit costs. Further, certain trade advances were considencd
irmecoverable and chamed as impairment loss under'Other expenses’in the Statement of Profit and Loss & perapplicable Accounting Standards.

The Promoters of the company have mutually agreed to amicably resolve afl past Bsues among the concemed parties through a family settlement
formalized by way of consent terms executed on 1 Sth April, 2025,

Thesald consent terms and awithdrawal memowas placed onrecord before NCUT, Mumbai,on Sth May 2025.

Therecent settlement between the promoter management has provided the company with a fresh strategic direction, which will undoubtedly lead to
significant improvements acooss the board.

This now direction has renewed our company with a laser-sharp focus on ourcore objectives and 2 more efficient operational matrix, We are
actively working on addrossing thesiissues to restore aur profitability and ensure the long-term financial hiealth ef the company. We are confident
thiat these changes will erable us to enhance our performance, steeambine our processes, and ultimately ackisve greater success. We will ba
sharing maore datalls about these strateqic initiatives in the coming weeks and look forward to your support as we embark an this new chapter

€. DIVIDEND:

The Board of Directors after considering the business needs and to cansalidate financial strength of GEE Limited have decided nol to
recommend any dividend toequity shareholders of GEE Limited for the financial year 2024-25

d. UNPAID DIVIDEND & IEPF;

The amount lying in Unpaid Dividend Account of GEE Limited in respect of the last seven years along with the dates when it is due for
transfer to Investar Education & Protection Fund {IEPF) is as follows: -

Year Amount anpaid Due date of transfer to IEPF

2017-18 2935530 [ 26-Oct-25
o1
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e.  TRANSFERTDRESERVES:

During the finandal year under review, Board of Directors have not transfersed any amounts to General reserve account. However,
the Reserves & Surplus comprise of balance in Securities Premium account and Profits of previcus years.

During the financeal year under review, GEE Limited did not have any subsidiary, assodato or joint venture company,
g.  DEPOSITS:

GEE Limited has not accepted or renewed any amount falling within the purview of provisions of Section 73 of the Companies Act
2013 {"the Act") read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 during the year under review,

Hence, the requirement for furnishing of details relating to depesits covered under Chapter  of the Act or the detalls of deposits
which are not in compliance with Chapter Vof the Actis notapplicable.

h.  LOANSFROMDIRECTORS OR DIRECTORS' RELATIVES:
During the finandal year under review, GEE Limited has not borrowed any amountis) from the directore’ relatives,
Il CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGD:

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3)im) of the Act read with Rule & of the Companies (Accounts] Rules,
2014 in respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange samings and outgo are fumished in Annexure |
whichforms part of this report.

. ANNUALRETURN:

In terms of Section 92{3) of the Companies Act, 201 3 and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration} Rules, 2014, a copy
af the Annual Retum of the Company s availablean the website of the Company at the below link:
https: wenw geelimited.comykey_finances,

k. PARTICULAROF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES:

Related party transhctions, iTany, that wersenterad into during the periosd ended March 37, 2025, wers on anarm's length basis and were in
the ordinary course of business. There are no materially sianificant refated party transactions made by the Company with Promaters,
Directors, Key Manageslal Personnel or ather designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the infarest of the Comparny it
faroe,

Mone afthe Mrectors has any pecunlany relationships or transactians vis-a-vis the Company,

The detalls ofthe related party transartions as per Indian Accounting Standard 24 are also set put in Note N, 46 to the Signifleant Accounting
polictes part of thisreport,

Further all the necessary details of transaction entered with the related parties pursuant to provisions of Section 188{1) of the Companies
Agt, 2013 are attached herewith In Ferm AQC-2 far your kind perusal and Infarmatian as Annexure-il.

The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments covered under Section 186 of the Act provided during the finandial year under review
has been furnished In the financial ssatements which forms part ol thisreport,

02
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m. DISCLOSURES UNDER SECTION 134(3)(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2073:

During and after the year ended March 37, 2025, the Company witnessed several materal developments, & dispute amoeng the members of
the promoter group arose, which had an impact on the overall governance and management dynamics of the Company, However, the
jpromoters mutually agreed to amicably resobve all past issues through a comprebensive settlement, which was formalized by way of consent
terms. Pursuant to the séttlement, an inter se transfer of shares took place among the promaters, without altering the aggregate promaoter
shareholding. In alignment with the revised understanding and strategicdirection, there was a change in the management of the Campany,
Additionally, certain directors assotiated with the previous management tendered their resignations; leading to o reconstitution of the
Board. These developments wers duly disclosed ta the refevant fregulatory autharities and wese undertaken in compliance with applicable

laws and gevernance standards,

Exeopt as disclasod elsewherain this report, no material ehanges and eammitments which eould affeet GEE Limited's financial position have
accurred between the end of the financial year of GEE Limited and date of this report

n.  DISCLOSUREOF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Internal Financlal Cantrels with reference to financlal statements as designed and implemented by GEE Limited are adequate. During the
financiat year under review, no material or serlous observation bas been received from the Statutory Auditars of GEE Limited far inefficiency
ar inadequacy of such controls,

2, MATTERSRELATEDTODIRECTORSAND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

a. BOARDOFDIRECTORS & KEYMANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
The thanges in Directorship & Key Managarial Personnel of GEE Limited during the financial year under review are as follows:

i, Appointment and Cessation
e Mr. Pradip Kumar Das (DIN: 06593113) was appointed as an Non-Executive Mominee Dirsctor and Chairman of the Company by the
Haon'ble NOLT (Muimbal Bench) vide jts Order dated 8 May, 2024,
o Ms, Neelam Tater {(HMN; O7653773) was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Independent Director by the Board of Directors weef
14" August 2024 and regularised inthe Annial General Meeting held on 28" Seprember, 2024,

ii. Retirementby rotation
In accordance with the provisions of the Act, nona ofthe Independent Directors are lable to retire by rotation,

M Om Prakash Aoarwal (DIN-07 267429), Whabe Time Director (designated as loint Managing Director ) of GEE Limited, belng the longest in
office since last appointment, is fiable to retire by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment subject to the approval of
shareholdersin ensulng Annual General Meeting. The Board recomends his reappointment

Thie changes in the Board of Directors of Directors:after the end of the Financial Yearis as follows:

o M. Pradip Kumar Das has ceased to be associated with the company vide his resignation tendered onJdune 21, 2025,

= MrShankarlal Agarwal has tendered his resignation from the post of Whole Time Director on May 27, 2025,

+  Mr.Sanwarmal Agarwalhas reslgned from the post of Managing Director on May 27, 2025.

= MrVinod Kumar Aggarwal has resigned as the Non-Executive Independent Director of the company wee fMay 20, 2025,

+  MrSujit Sen has resigned from the post of Non-Executive Independent Directorwef May 20, 2025,

#  Mrs.Nealam Tater has tendered herresignation from the postof Non-Executive Independent Directoron May 20, 2025,

Mrs Vinesta Agrawal was appainted as an Additional Nen-Executive Independent Waman Directar wee f Jume 02, 2025 and regularized as
Won-Executive Independent Worman Director inthe Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on June 27, 2025,

+  MrAdityadalan, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the company resigned wie.fMay 20, 2025

M Seama Vyas was appointad as the Company Secretary and Compliance officer of the company wee Flune 18, 2025,

L] Mir Umesh Agarwal and Mr.Omprakash Agarwal were designated as Joint Managing Director of the Company wee.f June 02, 2025 03
as approved by members in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting heid on June 27,2025
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DECLARATIONS BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
GEE Limited hatreceived declarations from all the Independent Directors under Section 149(6) of the Act confirming their independence.

Further, the Board of Directorsis of the opinion that all the independent Directors of GEE Limited possess requisite qualification, experience;
and expertise znd hold high standands of integrity.

3. DISCLOSURES RELATEDTO BOARD OF DIRECTORS, COMMITTEES AND POLICIES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS:

Thie Board of Directors met 5 (Five] times during the financlal year ended 317 March 2025 in accordance with the provisions of the Act and
rules made thiereunder. GEE Limited has complied with the Secretarial Standards - | inrespect of 2l the above Bodrd of Directors meetings,

(COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

As required under the Act and the fisting Regulations, the company has constituted Four (4) statutory committees : Audit Committee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Corporate Sodal Responsibility Committee an Stakeholders Relationship Committee
The details relating to the composition of the committees, including its terms of reference, powers, details of meetings held during the
year and attendance of members are provided in the Corporate Governance Report, forming part of this Annual Report and it is in fine
with the provisions of the Act and the Listing Requiations. Further, the Board has accepted all the recommendations made by the
Committees during the year.

VIGIL MECHAMISM POLICY FOR THE MRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES:

The Board of Directors of GEE Limited has, pursuantto the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings
of Board of Directors and Its Powersh Rules; 2014, framed "Vigil Mechanism Palicy” for directars and employees of GEE Limited to provide a
mechanism which ensures adequate safequards to directors and employees from any victimization of mising concerns of any vialations of
legal orregulistory requirements, incemector misrepresentation ot any, financial statements and reports, et

The employeesaf GEE Limited have the riaht/option tereport their congern/grievance to the Chairman of the Audit Committes,
GEELimited is committed to adhering to the Righest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct of business aperations,

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

Thie Board of Directars of GEE Limited have designed the Risk Management Pallcy and quidelines to avoid events, slituations or clrcumstances
whichmay lead to negative consequences on GEE Limited's businesses and define a structured approach to manage uncertainty and to
make use ol these in their decision-making pertaining to all business divisions and corporate fundtions, Key business risks and thedr

mitigation are considered in the annual /strategic business plans and in periodic management reviews.

04
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e.  CORPORATESOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY:

In accordance with the reguirements of the section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Campany has a Carporate Social Responsibility
Committee, the terms of reference and other details of which are provided in the corporate governance report, The:C5H Palicy has been
framed and posted on the website of the company,

hitpsy! fwwwegeelimited comy/code_of conduct.

As required by Section 134(3)(0) of the Companies Act.2013 and rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate Soclal Responsibility) Rules2014,
Annual Repart on C5R activities s annexed as "Annexura-11" and forms integral part of this repart.

£ ANNUALEVALUATION OF DIRECTORS, COMMITTEE AND BOARD:

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, and of the directors individually, along with
evaluation of all the committees Le, Audit, Nomination and Remuneration, Stakehiolders Relationship and C5R Comipnifles.

Thic Bxercice was carried out by a feedback surviey from sach director covering the Board of Directars's functioning such ds composition of
Beard of Directors and its Commitiees, experience and competencias, govermance issues, ele. Separate exgrcise was carried out to evaluate

the perfarmance.of individual directors incleding the Chairman of the Board of Directors wheo were evaluated on parameters such as
attendance, cantribution in meetings, et

4. AUDITORSANDREPORTS

The matters related to Auditors and their Reports areas under:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act and the Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, M4 B, Dokaria & Co, Charfered
Accountants, having ICAI FRMNL322739E were appointed as the Statutory Awditors of GEE Limited at the 627 Annual General Meeting (AGM)
held an 12" Aprl, 20241 the conclusion of the 6 7" AGM to be held Inthe year 3028, However, they had tendered their resignation on May 13,
2025, Therefore, the Board attheir meeting held on June 02, 2025, appointed M5 SAPD & Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 32727 1E)
as the Statutory Auditers of the Company for th FY 2024-25 o fill the caswal vacaney caused by the resignation of M/s R, Dokania & Ca,
Chartered Accountants and to hold the office 1ill ensuing Annual General Mesting which was approved by members in an Extra- ordinary
General Meeting held en June 27, 2025,

The Board of [irectors of the Company (the Board'), on recommendation of the Audit Committee has proposed tore-appaoint M/s. SAPD &
Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 33727 1E), as the Statutary Auditors of the Company for a period of five years from the canclusian af
ensuing AGM till the conclusion of the AGM to be held for the FY 2029-30 subject to members approval,

The Auditar's report on the audited standalone financlal statements of the Comparny for the year ended 31" March, 2025 lssued by M/, SAPD
& Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 3272718, Statutory Auditors of the Company forms part ot the Annual Report, The Suditors'
Report does ot contain any gealifications, resorvations, adverse remarks or disclaimer. In terms of the pravisions of Section 143(12) of the
Act, no frauds have been reported by the Statutary Auditors in thelr report for the year under review, Notes to the Hnancial Statements are
self-pxplanatory and do not call for any further comments,

b.  SECRETARIALAUDITREPORT FORTHEYEARENDED 31" MARCH 2025:

Section 204 read with Section 134{3) of the Act, mandates obtaining of Secretanal Audit Repart from 2 Practicing Company Secretary, Mr,
Deep Shukla, Proprietor of M/s. Deep Shukla & Assoclates (FCS No.5652) had been appointed to issue the Secretarial Audit Report for the
financial year 2024-25 after the resignation tendered by Mrs. Chandnl Mabieswarl [ACS No. 42293,

Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 and Annual Secretarial Compliance Report pursuant torequlation 244 of SEBI [Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2075, issued by Mr, Deep Shukla (FCS No 5652, Practicing Company Secretary, are
enclosed in Annexure-1V for the financial year 2024-25. The sald reports contaln certain observations or gualification requiring

explanation or comments from the Boardof Directors under Section 13413) of the Act, which have been elaborated upon in the Secreterial
Aazclit Report and Annual Secetarial Compliance report respectively forming part of this Annual Report 05
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Pursuant to the provisions af Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended
from time to time, GEE Limited is required to maintain Cost Records under Rule 3 of the said Rules. Accordingly, GEE Limited has
duly maintained the Cost Records in the format preseribed in Form CRA- 1 under Rule 5 of the said Rules.

d. COST AUDITORS:

The Board of Directors, in its meeting hefd on September 06, 2024 has re-appointed M=, 5, Chhaparia & Assocates, Cost
Accountants, as the Cost Auditor of GEE Limited for the financial year 2024-25

There were no instances of fraud ta be reported by Statutory Auditors of GEE Limited under Section 143{12} of the &t read with
Companies (accaunts) Rules, 2014,

5 I URES
Dther disclosures as per provisions of Sectian 134 of the Act read with Campanies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are furnished a5 under:

. CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITALOF GEE LIMITED

There were no changesin the share capital of GEE Limited during the financial year under review,

b DISCLOSURE OF DRDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL

A Petition was filed in NCLT, Mumbai Bench by Mr. Om Prakash Agarwal and Mr Umesh Ramikishan Agarwal the whole time directors and Mrs. Payal Agarwal,
chief finance officer, vide case no. CP/306(MB) 2023 of oppression and mismanzgement against the Company, With reference to the above matter, the
Fromaters of the Company have mutually agreed i amicably resolve all past issues amang the concemed parties through a settlement fomalized by way of
consent terms execited on 19° Aprl, 2025,

The said consent térms and a withdrawal mema was placed on record before NCLT, Mambai, on 5" May, 2025, whereby applicants seek withdrawal of the
Company petition. In view thereol, the NCLT, Mumbai has dispased of CF No. 306/MB/2023 as settled All interlocutory applications fied thereunder stand
disposed of consequently. Any interim refief granted to-either of the parties in terms of earfier order(s] stand vacated.

Interms of Section 1345} of the Act, in relation tothe audited financial statements of GEE Limited for the finandial year ended 317

March, 2025, the Board of Directors hereby confirm that:

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards has been followed along with proper
gxplanation relating to matenal departures;

b. suchaccounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and the directors have made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a trueand fair view of the state of affairs of GEE Limited asof 317 March, 2025
and of thie profitfloss of GEE Limited for the linancial year;

c.  proper and sufficient care was taken for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act, Tor safeguarding assets of GEE Limited and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irreqularities;

d. the annualaccounts of GEE Limited have been prepared ona going concemn basis;
proper systems have been devised to ensure compliznce with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems
were adequate and operate sffectively.

d.  DISCLOSURE REGARDING INTERNAL COMPLAINTS C E:

GEE Limited has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Intermal Complaints Committee under the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, Further, the company has in place a
policy for prevention of sexual harassment in accordance with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013,

During the financial year ended 31" March, 2025, there were no cases fited/reported pursuant 1o the Sexual Harassment of
women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

Sr.No. | Particulars No. of Complaints
a. Complaints filed during the financial year Nil
b. Complaints disposed of during the financial year Nil
r_ Complaints pending as on end of the financial year Nil

b6
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e DISCLOSURE REGARDING

The Company has complied with the provisions of the Matemity Benefit Act, 1961 ard the HR department of the company s respanssbie for the same, Al
permnanent women emplovees (Bwept contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered mnder this system,

f.  PARTICULAROFREMUNERATION OF DIRECTOR'S, KMP'S AND EMPLOYEES:
This Information as per Section 197012} of the Act read with Rule 5(1) Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managetial Personnel) Rules 2014, as amended from time to time, forms part of this report as per Annexure-\

g, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:
In compliance with regulation 34(2) read with Schedule  (8) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Dischosure Requirements) Requlatians, 2015 o report on Management Mscussion & Analysis as Annexure -V forms part of
this Board Report,

h.  CORPORATEGOVERMANCE:

We ensure that, we evolve and follow the corporate governance guidelines and best practices sincerely, not only 1o boast long-
term shareholder valie, but also to respact minority rights. We consider it our inherent responsibility ta disclose timely and
accurate information regarding our operations and performance, aswell as the leadership and governance of GEE Limited

In compliance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requlrements) Regulations, 2015, a report on Corporate Governance enclosed a3 Annexure = VI Torms part of
this Board Reporn,

[ MMSCLOSUREUNDER SECTION 43 (a )i} OF THECOMPANIES ACT, 201 3:

GEE Limited has not issued any shares with differential rights and hence no infarmation as per provisions of Section 43{a) (i) of the
Actread with Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentuse) Rules, 2014 i furnished.

J. DISCLOSUREUNDER SECTION 54{1}{d] OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013;

GEE Limited has not [ssued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and hence no infarmation as per provisions of
Section 54{14d) of the Act read with Aule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rukes, 2014 is fumnishied.

k. DISCLOSUREUNDERSECTION 62(1)(h) OF THE COMPANIESACT, 2013
GEE Limited has not issued any equity shases under Employees Stock Option Scheme duning the year under review and hence no
infarmation as per pravisions of Sectian G201 )ib) of the Act read with Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture)
Rules, 2004 is furnished,

| DISCLOSUREUNDER SECTION 67(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013;
Bluring the year under review, there wede norinstances of exercising of voting rights in respect of shares purchased directly by

employees under a scheme pursuant ta Section 67(3) of the Act read with Rule 16{4) of Companies {Share Capital and Debentures)
Rules, 2014,

m. STATEMENT OF DEVIATION OR REGULATION

During the year under review, there were no instances of any such deviations or variations as there were no issue of securities
during the year.

n.  SUSPENSION OFTRADING
There was no such instance of suspension of trading of securities of the Company from the Stock Exchange,

o,  FAILDRE TOIMPLE ANY CORPORA il

There were no instances of any corporate actions initiated by the Company,

PROCEEDIMGS UNDER INSOLVENCY A UPTCY CODE 2016,

No application has been made under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy code; hence the requirement to disclose details of application
made or any proceeding pending under the IBC, 2016, during the year along with their status as all the end of the financial year is
not applicable.

o7



GEE Limited has not made any one-time settlement for loans taken from the Banks or Finandial Institutions, and hence the detalls of
difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the

Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reasans thereof is not applicable.

mmnhmwmmwm areholde kers, busi
'memﬁmmmhmmmmmmmw

Forand onbehalfof the Board of Directorsof

GEELIMITED

Mr.Om Prakash Agarwal
Joint Managing Director
DIN: 01261429

cs parteners/associates,
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of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming part of Directors’

SEAL CF

(A} Conservationof enesgy:

GEE Limited is committed to make continuous efforts that
contribute towards an mtegrated development, on an ongoing
basis, by adopting various innovative measures at its plants, which

Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy

Steps taken by GEE Limited for utilizing alternate sources of encrgy fesd o pisitive consequenices; siich as neduction of wa <

optimum consumption of energy.
Capital investment on energy conservation equipments

L. il i |

(B Technology Absorption:

Efforis made towards technology absorption GEE Limited understands the importance of technology absorption

and continues to pursue the goal of technological innovation with
renewed vigor, in terms. of vpgradation, improvement and cost
reduction.

Benefits derived fike product improvement, cost reduction,
product development or import substitution

In c@se of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financal year): Not Applicable

t) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo:

0°1/04/2024 to

01/04/2023 to

1

GWEL

31/03/2025 31032024
[Current EX.] [Pravious FY.]
et i R Aemount in R
Actual Foreign Exchange eamnings 23,16,49.417 153530
Artual Foroign Exchange outgo 10,83,43,/07 R
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
GEELIMITED
S0y si/-
Mr.Umesh Agarwal Mr. Om Prakash Agarwal
Joint Managing Direcior Jnint Managing Direcior

DiN: 01200962

DIN:01261429
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Form No. AOC-2

GWEL

SEAL CF

{Prirsivan? 1o clowrse () of subesecion (3] of Section 134 of the Act and Rue 8120 of the Comprntes {Agcouris ! fles, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts [ arrangements entered into by GEE Limited with related parties refarred to
in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transactions under the third

proviso thareto:

1. Details af material contracts o arrangement of transactions at amm's length basis

Nature of the related
party and nature

of relationship transactions

M5, B Shankarlal Sales Private
Limited, Entity where key
managesial pesonned hald
significant influence

SEMVRES

Nature of comtracts/
arrangements/

Purehase of goods ar

Duration of the
tontracts/
arrangements/
tramsactions

{n going

Salient terms of the
contracts or
arrangements ar
transactions incuding
the value, if any:

s, B,649¢

Date of approval by
the Board of
Directors, if any

Amount paid
as advance, if amy

L2045

Mi's. R Shankarlal Sabes Private Rent
Limated, Entity where key
managerlil personnel hikd
significant Inflsenco

Un going

Rs.600, 000

ZHT2005

Mr. Anant Agarwal, Relative of femuneration

hi‘,:ll rﬂrJI'.ngTMI PErEn

Terminate on
17105 1125

e 41,67.670/

T 2005

Mt Anand Agarwal, Aelative Remuneration

of key managenal pesson

Terminate on
27105 M5

Rs. 17,25,000/

22005

Forandon behalf of the Board of Directors of
GEE LIMITED

sny-

Mr.Umiesh Agarwal

Ioint Managing Director
DIN: 01209962

50/-
Mr. Om Prakash Agarwal

Joint Managing Director
DIN: 01261429

10
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SEAL CF

ANNUAL REPORT OM CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPOMSIBILITY

1. Brief outline on the C5R Policy of GEE Limited.

The CSR policy highlights GEE Limited's philesophy and acknowledging its sesponsibility as'a corporate entity and lays down the
guidelines and mechanism for undertaking socially useful programnes for welfare & sustainable development of the community at large.
The £5R Policy tocuses on enhandng the stakeholder's value, generating econamic value of the nation and working towards well-being of
the society through addressing critical social, environmental and economic needs of the marginalized/under privileged sections of the
society,

GEE Limited ts engaged In the business of manufacturing and dealing with all kinds of welding electrodes and allied equipment and
appliances. GEE Limited is exposed to health, safety, security and environmental risks, given the diversity and complexity of the industry in
which GEE Limlted operates. The company is not enly aware abaut its soclal responsibilities but alsa actively takes efforts for fullilling the

aspirations gha s are W R ddecame a part of regulatory enactments,

ScMa | Mame of Diractor Designation / Nature of Number of meeting of csp | Number of meeting of (SR
Directorship Committes held during Committee attendad during
the year | the year
1 Mr. Samwarmal Agarwal®| Executive Director & MD Une | One
2 Mr Omprakash Agrawal®| Executive Director (Chairman) One One

3 Mr. Sujit Sen® MNon-Executive Director-Independent One | One
4 Mr. Mifind Bharat Parckh * Non-Exeoutive Director-independent |

G Mrs. Vinecta Agrawal ™ MNon-Executive Director-Independent

- M, Sanwarmal Agarwal reslgned from the directorshipoof the company weef May 27, 2025

M1, Sujit Sen resigned framthe directorship ot the compamy w.et May 20, 2035
-Mrs, Vinseta Agraval was appointed a5 an Additional Non-Executive Independent Dirsctor wee flune 02, 2025

Thi Committeewas reconstituted on June 02, 2025 onaccountofthe above changes in the composition of the board and accordingly M Milind
Bharat Parekhand Mrs, Vineeta Agrawal were on board as the members of the C&R Commitise.

3 The Board of Directars of GEE Limited has approved the C5R Policy based on the recommendation of the CSR Committee.

The CS8 Policy of GEE Limited s avallable on GEE Limited's website and can be accessed through the link provided herein below:

_hitp:fwoww, geelimited, comupleadimedialinyestor/policles GEE- Policy-on-Corpomte-Socal-Responsibility- 2019, pdf

F

Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule £ of the Companies {Corporate Sociat responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014- Not Applicable.

5 Dietails of the amount avallable for-set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule? of the Companies (Corporate Sodal Responsibility Policy)
Rutes, 2014 and amount required for setofffor the finandial year, if Any- Not Applicable.

b, Average net profit of GEE Limited as per section 135{5) of the Act: - Bs.17,06,82 397

For PY 20324 (mBs) Far FY 22-23 (jim Rs.) For FY 2021-22 {inRx)
17, 76,47, 720 13,59,05 667 19,564,593 504

Total profit for last 3 years (in Rs.) 51.20.47,191

Average net profit last 3 years {in As.) 17.06,82.397

11
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7. (SR Expenditure for FY 2024-25

S e ‘ Particulars ‘ Amouni (in R)
a. Two percent of average net profit of GEE Limited as per section 135(5) 34,13,648
b. Surplus ansing out of the C5R projects or programmes or activities of the 138,327
previous financial years.
- | Amount reguired to be set off for the finanaal year, if any | NA
& | Yl OO oblisibin focthe Snanc e (b Hiired, | 3275321

B. (SR Expenditure Done during FY 2024-25

al CSEamount spent or UNSPENT for the financial year:
Total Amount Spent| _hp-hlﬂ

e

for the Financial . o | Amount transferred to any fund spedfied under schedule
Year {in s.) Total Amount transferred to Unspent C5R Account as per section T35(6). | Vil 25 per second proviso fo section 13515

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Amount Date of transfer
fund

MIL A

b} Details of C5R amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year;
m @ @ # 10y (¥m)

Location | Preject | Amount [ Amount { Amount | Modeof | Mode of Implementation Through
from the of the duration | allocated | spentin |transferred | Implomen Implementing Agency
Bist of (Yes/Mo) | Project forthe | the current to tation
activities in project | finandal | Unspent | Direct Teams CSR Registration

Tt :
Sehedule V] |*1344 | Fstnc {infs) | war | GR | (Yes/No) Sl

Yo e At (imfs) |Accownt for
| the project

as per

Section

125(8)

. {im R}

MNA NA NA MA MA NA A& A& MA MA MA
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¢)  Details of C5R amount spent against other than ongoing project for the finandal year: [A1]

GWEL

(1] (2] 3 | (4] (5] (e} (71 | (8)
S Mame of the Item from Local arealLocation of Amount Mode of Mode of
No. Project the list of [(Yes/No) the Project spent for Implement Implementation
activities he ation Through
in project [Direct Implementing
Schedule (in Rs.) |(Yes/No) Apgency
VII to the | st
Act NameCSR
Registratio
StateDistrict n number
1 Ekal ShrihariPromoting Yes Mahrashtra, [1,00,000 Yes - -
Vanwvasi Vikasjeducation Mumbai
Trust
2 Yash Society Promoting Yoo Mahrashtra, 33.13.648 | Yes - -
education M urmbiai

1

(d)  Amount spent in Administrative Overheads | NA

(8] Amount spenton Impact Assessment, if applicable @ NA

{fi  Total amount spent for the Financial Year (Bb + 8d + 8a); NA

ig) Excess amount for set off, if any | NA

Particulars
i) Two percent of average net profit of the GEE Limited as per section 135(5) 34.13,648
0] Total amount spent for the Financial Year 34.13.648 |
iii) Excess amount spent for the financal year [{ii}-(i)] a |
) Surplus arising out of the C5R projects or programmes or activities of the 1.38,327
previous finandal years, if any
[ W Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [fil)-(iv)] 138,327 |

8. CSR Expenditure unspent

a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

I
Amaount spent in

SrHa Preceding Amount Amount transferred to any fund specified under | gmount remaining to be spent in
Financial Year | trancferredto | the reporting Schedule Vil as per section 135(6), if any succending finandal years (in fs,)
Unspent (SR | Financial Year |
Account under (im Rs.) Hame of the Amouni Date of
section 135(6) Femd (imis) transfer.
{In Rs.)
1. FY 202324
. FY 2022-23
3. FY 2021-22

13
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SEAL C TR

b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial
yvear (s):

@w | & | @& S (L] (L]

Mame of Financial Project Total amount | Amount spent | Comulative  Status of the project
the Project | Yearinwhich duration allocated o the project | amount spent Completed /

| projectin

the project was far the inthe prﬂﬂiﬂg: at the end of Ongoing
commenced project Financial Year reparting
[in Rs.) {in Rs.) Financial Year
{im Rs.)

MA A MA A HA A MA MNA MA

t0. Incase of creation oracquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the
financial year {asset-wise details).
(8} Date of creation oracguisition of the capital asset{sk-Not Applicable
(b} Amount of CSR spentfor creatinn or acquisition of capital asset.-Not Applicable
(e} Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary untder whose name such capital assetis registered, theraddress, ete-Nol
Applicable
id}  Provide details of the capital assetls) created or acguired {including complete address and location af the capital asset).- Not

Applicatle

11. Reason(s)aswhy GEE Limited has failed to spend two percent of the average net profit as per section135(55 NA

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors of

GEELIMITED

5D/- 5Dy-

Mr.Umesh Agarwal Mr. Om Prakash Agarwal
Ioint Managing Director Joint Managing Director
DIN; 07209963 DIN: 01267429
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SEAL CF TRLYE

ANNEXURE -V
FORM MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial year ended March 31, 2025

[Pitesitamf i sechion 2041 1) of the Companies Act, 2072 and e Mo, 9 of the Compantes (dapolntment and Semunaiation of Managerial Personrel] Rules, KT}

To,

The Members,

Gea Limited

Plot Mo E-1 Road No 7,
Waagle Industrial Estate,
Thane-400604,
Maharashtra,india.

| have conducted the secrefarial audit of the compliance of 2pplicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Gee
Limited [CIN: L99S990MH 1960PLCO1 1879] (hereinafter called the Company). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided usa
reasanahle basis for evaluating the corporate conducts! statutory compliances and expressing our opinlon thereaon.,

Based on my said verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other recards maintained by the
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit pencd covering the financial year ended on 31" March 2025{' Audit
Period') complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and aiso thal the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism In place to the extent, n the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter

| have examined the books, papers, minute hooks, forms and retums filed and other records maintained by the Company far the finandal year
ended on 31" March 2025according to the provisions of:

il TheCompanies Act, 2013 {the Act) and the rules made thereunder as amended,;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Requlation) Act. 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made thereunder as amended; (Not applicable during
period)

{iil)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Requiations and Bye-laws framed thereunder as amended,

{iv)  Faoreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment,
Overseas Direct Investment and Extermal Commercial Borowings; (1o the extent as may be applicable tothe Company);

(v}  Thefoliowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed underthe Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 {SEBI Act): —

{@  TheSecurities and Exchange Board of Indla (Substantial Acguisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011,

bl TheSecurities and Exchange Board of indla (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

& The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capltal and Msclosure Reguirements) Requiations, 2015{Not Applicable
to the Company during the Audit pericd);

{d}  Securities and Exchange Board of Indla (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Requlations, 2021 (Not Applicable
to the Company during the Audit Period);

(e} Securities and Exchange Board of India {lssue and Listing of Nan-Caonvertible Securities) Regulations, 2021(Not Applicable to
the Company during the Audit Period); _

ifr  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Requlations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with dient,

{gl  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) fiegulations, 2000 (Mot Applicable to the Company
during the Audit Periad)and

{h]  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;{Not Applicable to the Company
during the Audit Period)

| have alse examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India,

{b)The Licting Agreements entered into by the Comipany with the Stock Exchange viz Bombay Stock Exchange of India Ltd (BSE) 15
along with SEBI (Listing Ohligation and Disclosure Requirements) Requlations, 2015 as applicable for respective periods.
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During the pericd under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Adt, Rules, Regulations; Guidelines, Standards, etc.
mentioned abowve, subject to toliowing chservations/gualifications:

- Latz Submission of the following:

Annual Secretarial Compliance Report under Regulation 244 of SEBI{LODR) Regulations, 2015 for Financial
yearended 2024 and 2025.

Financial Results under Regulation 32 of SEEI [LODR) Regulations, 2015 (Audited and unaudited) for
Seplember 2024 and March 2025),

- The compesition of the Audit Committes was not in accordance with the reguirements of Regulation 18 of the SEBI
[Lsting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulatrons, 2815, for the guarter ended March 31, 2025
Heowever, the Company has complied with the prescribed compasitian as on the date of signing of this report,
Certain statutory compliances were found to be not updated on the website of the company as per the requirement
of Requlation 46 of SEBI {LODR} Regulations, 2015, However, as informed by the company, it 15 in process to update
the same:

During the course of the audit, it was noted that the Company has not filed Form DPT-3 for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024, as required under Rule 16 of the Companigs (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2074, read with Section
13 ofthe Companies Act. 2013,

- Nan-compliance of Section 148 of Companies Act. 2013 for the financial year 2023-24 for non-submission of Cost
Audit Repart for the FY 20231-24, however the same has been filed ason the date of thisreport.

It has bean ‘observed that the Company did not provide intimations to the stock exchange regarding the
appuintment of the Cost Auditor and the Internal Auditon, as required under the applicable provisions of the SEBI
{Listing Obligationsand Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015:

During the period under review, the Company had recorded the transactions internally. However, the company has
procured the Structured Cigital Database (SD0) software as mandated under Regubation 3{5) and 3(8) of the SEBI
{Prehibition of insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as on the date of this report,

further report that:
- The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Becoutive Directors and
Independent Directors as on 31 st Manch 2025
Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance,
and a system exits for seeking and obdaining further information and clarifications on the agenda ilems belore the meeling and for meeninglul

participation at the meeting,

= Al the resolutions were passed with consent of majority Direclors

I furtherreport that:

- there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to menitor and
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and quidelines,

| further report that during the audit period there werz no specific events/actions having a major b2aring on the Company's affairs in pursuance of
the above referved laws, rules, guidelines and standards.

Far: M/s. DEEP SHUKLA & ASSOCIATES

COMPANY SECRETARIES

{Prer Review Certificate Mo, 2093:2024)

Sdi-
Place: Mumbal DEEPSHUKLA
Date: 26/08/2025 {PROPRIETOR)}
FC5:5652
(PHO.5364
UDIN: FOOS65 26001082431
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Annexure to Secretarial Repart and forming part of the report

T,

The Members,

Gee Limited

Plot No E-1 Road No 7,
Wagle Industrial Estate,
Thane-400604,
Maharashtra, india.

| further state that my sald report of the even date has to be read along with this letter

1. Maintenance of Secretarialf Statutory Records is thie responsibifity of the Management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an
apinionon thess records based on the audis, - '

7. Ihave followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obfain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of
the Secretarial Records.

3. Ihave not vesified the corectness and approprateness of financial records and Books of Avcounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required | have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and requlations and happenings af
events eic.

5. Thecompliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rufes, reguiations; standard is the responsibility of management. My
examination is limited to the verification of procedures on test basis and shall not stand responsible forany nan -compliance:

6. The Secretarial Audit repart is neither an assurnce as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For: M/s. DEEP SHUKLA& ASSOCIATES
COMPANYSECRETARIES
{Prer Review Cetiicate N 2093/2027)

Place: Mumbai DEEP SHUKLA

Date: 26/08/2025 {PROPRIETOR}
FCS:5652
CPND.5364 _
UDIN: FO056526001082431
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SEAL CF THUST

Annual Secretarial Compliance Report of GEE Lid fior the finandial year ended March 31, 2025,

{Pursiiant be Reguiation 244 of the Securitivs ond Evchange Soard of Indig (Listing (Wigrtioms and (Veclosire Seqiiremeants) Regietions, 2075 mad with SE8 Crcoiar o

CIRACFRACME 1/82/ 2079 datd Felanaary 08, 2015

‘e, A5, Deep Shiskla & Associates have sxammed:

fay  all the documentsand recordt made aeilable tous and explanation proyided by GEE LIMITED [CIN; L99999MK TR60PLCOT TE7S] (" the [ited enfity”),

b thefilings submissions made by the fisted entity o the stock exthanges,

{6}  websiteof the fsted entity,

{1 ather relovant documentis)/ filing, which has been refied upon to make this certification, for the year ended March 31, 2025 {"Review Peried”) in respocet of
aomplianewiththe provisionsaf

1. theSeruritiesand Exchange Board ofincdia dct, 1992 (*SEBI Act®) and the Requiatians, croulars, quidefinesissied thereander, and
1. theSecunties Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA"), rules myade theseundes and the Regulations, drcilars, guidelines issuad thersunder by the Securities
and Exchange Board of iredia " 5EB1 )

Thespecific Requladons, whose provisions and the tinulars: quidelines issued thereunder, have been examined, are-

{al  Securitiesand Buchange Board of India (Listing Ghbigations and Disclosure Reguirements | Regulations, 2015;

(b Securttiesand Bxchange Board ofindia dlssoe of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Reguiations, 2008; Mot applicable during the review period];

(¢} Securtiesand Bxchange Board of Indsa {Substantial Scquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Requlations, 2011 (totheextent aopianbiel;

(8] Securitles and Exchange Board ofindsa (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; [Nef applicadle durfng the review period];

it Secunties and Exchangs Board ofindia (Shars Based Bmployee Senefits) Reilations, 2014; [Net applicable during the review period|:

(o) Securitiesand Exchange Board ofindia dssue and Listivg of Debt Securities} Reoulations, 2008; (Mot applicoble during the review period];

{hi  Secorties and fxchange Board of india {lsswe and Listing of Non-Convestible and Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013; (Not applicable during the
rewiew period];

(i Securties and Exchange Board ofindia (Prohinition of Insider Trading) Requlations, 50 5; (fe the extent aairaidel;

i} TheSewrities and Exchange Bozrd of indsa {Registrass 1o an lssue and Shane Transfer Agents) Requiations, 1003, 3s amended, (Mot applicabie during the review
period];

(k] TheSeorities and Exchanae Board of India (Intermediarnies] Regukations, 2008; /Nt applicable during the review period]:

(I Secprties and Exchange Board of India (Bepositonses and Participant) Requlations, 2008 and ciroukars/guidelines ssued thereander; (Not opplicable during the
reviewperiod);

W herelyrrepart that, dusing the review pertod the campliance status afthie bed entityis appended beliv:

Additional affirmations by Practicing Company Secretaries [PCS) in Annual Secretarial Compliance Repart (ASCR) in terms of the BSE dircular reference no,
20230316-14 and N5E Circular Ref No: NSE/CML 2023/21 both dated March 16, 2023 and Master Gircular dated April 29, 2024 from NSE and April 30, 2024

from BSE,
51 Mo Particulars ‘Comphiance  Status | Observations
{Yes/Nao/ NA) | /Remarks by P(S*
1 Seqretarial Standards: |
Wi have conducted a review of the compliance of listed entity in accordance Yes
with the applicable Secretarial Standards (55) issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries india (1C5/).
2 Adontion and timely updation of the Policies; Yes
= All applicable polices under SEBI Reguiations are adopted with the approval
of boand of diredors / committees, 25 may be applicable of the isted enfity.
= All the policies are in conformity with SEB! Regulstions and has been
reviewed & timely updated as per the reguiationsfoiroulars fquidelines
issucd by SEBI.
3 Maintenance and disclosures on Website: No | Certain statutory
« The listed entity is maintaining a functional website, compliances were faund
= Timely dissemination of the documents! information under a E:E:g:;fgm i
separate section on the website: company. However, 25
» Web-links provided in annual corporate governance reports under | informed by the
Requlation 27(2) are accurate and specific which redirects to the company, ITis in process
relevant document(s) section of the website. Ailedate ey
4 Dismualificatian of Directar Yis
Mane of the Directir of the listed entity & disqualified nder Section 164 of
Companies Act, 201 3:

18
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2 To examine details related to Subsidiaries of listed entity; I
(a] ldentification of material subsidiary companies
(b) Requirements with respect to disclosure of material as well as other HA
subsidlaries

B Preservation of Documernts; Yes

As per the confirmations glven by the listed entity, and on aur tést check basis,
it is preserving and malntalning recards as prescribed under SEBI Requlations
and disposal of records as per Palicy of Preservation of Documents and
Archival policy prescribed under Listing Regulations.

! Performance Evaluation: Yes
The listed entity has conducted performance evaluation of the Board,
Indepandent MHrectors, and the Committees on an annual basis as prescribed
in SEBT Regulations

8 Related Party Transaclions: Yos
{3) The listed entity has obtained prior approval of Audit Committee for all
Related party transactions

{b) In @se no prior approval obtained, the listed entity shall provide detailed
reasons along with confirmation whether the transadion wem subsequently I
approved/ ratified! rejected by the Awdit committee.

9 [Maclosere of events or information; Yes
The lsted entity has provided Il the requlred disclosure(s) under Regulation
30 along with Schedule Il of Listing Regulations within the time limits
prescribed thereunder

During the period onder
review, the Compiany has
reconded the transactions
internally. However, the
COmpany s N process o
procere the mandsted
software.

| 10 Prohibition of insider Trading: No
The listed entity is in compliance with Requlation 3(5) & 3(6) SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015

1 Adtions taken by SEBI or Stock Exchange(s), if amy: Yo
No-actions taken against the listed entity/ its promotersidirectors/ subsidiares
either by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges {incleding under the Standand Operting
Procedures issued by SEBI throwgh various droulars) under Page 5 of 7 SEB
Regulations and droulars/ guidelines issued thercunder.

12 Resignation of statutory auditors from the listed entity or its material subsidiaries: Vos
In @se of resignation of stattory auditor from the fisted entity or any of its
matrnal subrsidiaries during the financial year, the listed entity and ! or its matenal
subsidiary{ies) has | have complied with paragraph 6.1 and £.2 of section VD of
chapter V of the Master Groular on compliance with the provisions of the LODR
Requiations by listed entities.

13 Additional Non-compliances, if any: Mo additidnal non-compliancoe Yes
observed for all SEBI reguiation/ droufanguidance note etc

] The [isted entity has compdied with the provisions of the abeve Requlations and elroufars! quidelines ssued thereundes in respect of matters speofied helow, except in case of
betaw!

Remarl:
tiee Pradibiion)

AL

GWELD

oF TREULE

1. | Financial Regulation | Non BSE Fine Late Submission Rs. 30,000 Asinformed by | The company has
results 33 of SEBI | submission of Financial the management| made the

(LODR) o ‘]T&mm Resufts under the company has | requisite paymant

Regulations ;‘;um " Regulation 33 made payment of| and also has

2015 prescribed of SEBI !:Lﬂ'DHJ the same. omplicd with
umder Regulatians, the said regulation
Reguiation 33 2015 for
of S8 1 (LODR) September,

L Reguiations, 2015 L2024

19



GWELD

SEAL CF THUST

‘64th ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25
2. | Annual Requiation | Late BSE | Fine| Late Submission of Rs. 10,000 As informed by | The company has
Secretarial Aol | Submission of Annual Secretarial the management| duly paid the fine
Complanme SEBI Annual Compliance Report th tompany hay and complied with
Aeport {LODR) Secetarial under Reguiation 244 made payment | the aloresid
Reguolations| Compliance of SEBI (LODR) of the =me. regulation also.
2015 Report under Regulations, 2015 for
Regulation 24A FY 2023-24
of SERI
(LODR}
Reguilations, 2015
3. | Statement of | Pars (D) of | Non submission | 85€ (A4 | Non submission of As informed by | The company has
Impact of Audit | Secion [-4] of Statement of sy | Statement of Impact of the management sabmittad the
Qualifications or | of Chapter | Impact of Audit Audit Qualifications or the company | poyied repirt
Dedaration of | il of SEBl | Qualifications or Dedaration of E;m in XBRL mode
unmodified audit Master | Dedlaration of unmodified audit report Hmpa;“d vide
report Circular No. | unmodified audil in XBRL for the year Audit acknowiedgemont
SEBUHO/ | report in XBRL for ended March 31, 2024 Qualifications | no. 0606202407426
CFY PoD2 | the year ended or Declaration
CRP/2023)| March 31, 2024 of unmodified
120 dated audit repart in
July 11,2 XBRL mode.
4. | Dedarationby | Regulation | Late submission | BSE | Clariy Late submission of The Dedlaration | The Promoter/
Promaoter 314)ot | of Dedarstion fica- | Declaration under under R oy Company has
SEBI (SAST) | under Regulation tion | Regulation 31(4) of 31(4) of the Se8) admowledged
Requiations| 11(4) of SEBI SEBI (SAST) Regulations| (Substantial | the delay in the
2m |EASﬁlhglda1iuns | 2011 from the Admuisition of | submission of
2011 from the Promoters of the Shares and the said
| Promaters of the Company Tkeovers) | declaration
2011 was note of the
submitted by | SaMEC to ensure
the promaters | fimely
witha siight | compliance in
delay. The future
Compay has
informed thal
the delay was
inadverient.

(aa) Compliances related to resignation of statutory auditors from listed entities and their matenal subsidiaries as per SEBI Circular CIRFCFDY 14/2019
dated Oclober 18, 2019:

Sr. No. Particulars | Compliance  Status | Observations
1 esNa/ NN /Remarks by PG"
1 Compliances with the following conditions while appainting/re-appointing an auditor
1. I the auditor has resigned within 45 days from the end of 2 quarter of a financial year, the | Yes The erstwhile Statutory |
atiditor efore such resignation, has issued the imited review/ awdt report for such quarter, Auditor of the Compa
ar Mz R. Dokania & Co.,
resigned wee.f
i, IF the auditor fras resignad after a5 days from the end of a quarter of & financial year, the May 13, 2025 which
wuditor before such resignation, has issued the fimited review, audit report for sec quarter was duly intimated fo
a5 well & thee next quarter: of the Exchange and also
the Limited Review
fil. ¥ the auelitor has sigreed e limsited reviow audit report far the first e quarters of a Report for the Quarter
fimancial year, the-auditer before such resigmation has issued th limited review! audit report ended 3 mtﬂﬁﬂ“h"-’-
for the last quarter of such financial year as well as the audit report for such fmandal year 2024 was signed by
them. However, the
financial results for
guarter and year ended
March 31, 2025 were
not signed by them.
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(b} The listed cntity has taken the ___u__n.....__._.._ actions to comply with the observations made in previous reports:

Requlation i Late Submission | Rs. As informed | The company

Secretanial 244 of Submistion of of Annual 18,880 by the had already paid| mpodzed
Compliance SEBI Annual Seetarial management | the fine and i i
Report (LODR) Secretarial Compliance the company | compled with | repon,
Requlations, Comphance Report under has made the said the fine
2014 Report under Regqulation 244 paymentof | regulation also. | was
Requiation 244 of SEB! (LODR) the same. dready
of SEBH {LODR) Regulations, b
Reguiations, 2015 2015 for FY and
2022-23 the
mequiation
WS
2. | Finandial results | Regulation | Non-sobmission | BSE _ Firee | Late Submission | Rs As mformed | The company [ As
33 of SEBI | of the firanoal of Financal 283,200 | bythe had made the | mpored
(LODR], results within Results under management | payment towardsi e
Regulations, the period Regulation 33 the company | the fine and had ﬁﬂﬁ
015 prescribed of SEBI (LDDR) has made atso complied 172
under Regulations, payment of | with said the drmdy
Requiation 33 of 2015 for the ame. requiation. et and
SEB | {RODR) March 2023 the
Regulations, 2015 izt
WS
| | ! | | | ! amplied)
3. | Financial results | Megulafion | Mon-submission | BSE | Fime Late Submission | Rs. As informed | The company |
Bafsedl | of the financal of Financial 1,89,100 | by the had made the | feported
{Laom), rosufts within Results under management | payment and i earies
Regulations, | the penod Requlation 33 the company | complied with ﬁ__.
015 prescribed of SEBI (LODR) hasmade | the aforesaid | =T
unider Regulations, payment of | regulation oy
Regulation 33 of 2015 for the same. g and
SEBI (LODR) June 2023 i
Regulations, 2015 requiztiol
WS
4 " - = == B — | ) B | compiied.
4. | Fumishing prior | Regulation | Delay m BSE | Fime Short Motice of | Hs. As informed | The company |4
information 29(7)29¢3)| furnishing prior meeting ofthe | 11,800 by the had made the | myonied
about the of SEBI | intimation about board of directors management | payment i earlier
meeting of (LODH), the mecting of the company | towards the fine ﬁ.ﬂ.ﬂ
board of Regulations the board of has made i
s directors payment of ey
the same, pad and
the
megultion
Was
: — _ _ compling,
5. | Submission of| fequistion | Mon-submission | BSE | Fine Non-submission | T, | Asinformed | The company |& |
Annuzl Report | 3 afSER | of the Annual of the Annual | 153400 | bythe had paid the | feported
{l00R, | Report within Report within management | fine and n earler
Requiations | the period the period the company | consequenthy ﬂwﬁ.
ms prescibed prescrbed has made had complied Ll
undes under payment of | with the said droady
Reguiation 34 Regulation 34 the same. requlation also. | o5
of SEBI (LODR), of SEBI {LODR),
Requlations, Requlations,
M5 215 for
March. 2023
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6.| Finandal results | Regulation |Non — submission BSE | Fine Late Submission | R Asinformed | The company |4
33 of SEBI | of the finandal of Financial 395300 by the had made the | reporied
(LODR),  |results withm Results management | paymentand | nesdier
Regulations, the period under the company | complied with | mport,
ms presoribed Regulation 33 has made the said the fine
under of SEB [LODR) payment of | requlation. WS
Requlation 33 of Requlations, the same, aready
SEB| (LODR) 2015 for paid
Regulations, 2015 September, 2023 ad
the
meijuiation
Was
1.| Appaintment of Moncomplianee | BSE | Fine Mon-complianee | R Asinformed | Thecompany |
Woman 1ol | withthe with the 460,000 by the had made the | mporied
Director on the | SEBI TEGUIFEMENtS requirements management | paymentand | nealer
Board of {LODR), pertaining to the pertaining to the company | also appointed | repod,
Director's Requiztions,| COmposHion the compasition has made woman director | the fine
05 of the Board of the Board paymentof | on August was
including including thesame. | 14, 2024. arady
failure to failure to appoint paid
appoint woman woman director and
director the
prescribed mequiation
tinder i
ulation .
:t;?‘] of SEBI o
(LODR)
2015

(ther observationsas on the date of signing of this report:
1. Thecompany has notfiled Cost Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, as reguired under Section 148af
the Companies Act, 2013, for whicha notice from Minlstnyof Corporate Affairs has been received on June 30, 2025.

2. Asinformed by the managament, the company is in the process of filing Financial Results along with Desclosure of Related
Party Transactions forthe quarter and year ended March 31, 2025

Assumptions & limitation of scope and review:

1. Compliance of the applicable laws and ensuring the authenticity of documents and information furnished, are the responsibilities of the
managementof the listed entity,

2. Ourresponsibility is toreport based upon our examination of relevant documents and infarmation. This is neither an audit nor an expression of
opinion

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of account of the fisted entity

4. This repart is solely tor the intended purpose of compliance in terms of Regulation 244 (2) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and is nesther
an assurance as to the future viahility of the listed entity nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs ol the listed emntity.

For: M/s. Deep Shukla & Associates
Company Secretaries

DeepShukla

Practidng Company Secretaries
[Peor Rewiew Cortificate Moo 2093,/2027)
FCS:5652,(P:5364

UBIN: FOD5652G000775557

Date: 14/07/2025

Place: Mumbal
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Information pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companics Act, 2013 and Rule 5(1) & 5(2) of the Companies [Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial

Personnel) Rules, 2014 s given below: -

Disclosure in Directors report relating Lo Rube 5(1):

Ratioof remunesation of each Director to the medsan remauneration of employees for the finangal year ended March 17,2025

1z % Ingrease mramunerstion of each Director, TR0, CED, 05 or Managerduring the fiancal year
Name of Director/ | Remuneration | Remuneration | % increase/ Ratio of remuneration of
KMP During FY During FY Decrease in FY | each director to the
2023-24 2024-25 2024-25 median remuneration of
employees

Mr. Sanwarmal Agarwal | 89,02 500 89,02, 500 0.00 3399

Mr. Shankarlal Agarwal | 1,03,25 400 1,15,94,100 1230 44 27
Mr.Umesh Rambishan | g9y 500 7891,500 0.00 30.13

Aparwal

Mr.  Omprakash £2,90,620 90,585,620 9.60 34.69
_ﬁlg;jrwai _

Mr=. Payal Agarwal 26,10,000 26,10,000 0.00 9.97

Mr. Aditya [alan | 2,000,892 259816 29.30 0.99

1. Percentage change in Median Remunezation:
Particular | Median Median Suhlncrease/
Remuneration Remuneration (Decrease)
During FY 2024-25 | During FY 2023-
24
Modian Remuneration of | 261,914 244,378 7.18
Emplovecs

4, Hurnber of permmanent Employees pn ol of GEE Limited as on March 31, 2025 -363employaes,

b Itis hereby affirmed that the remunerytion pabd during Y 2024-25 i a5 per the remuneration palicy of GEE Limited.

i List of top 10 employes in tems of emuneration Srawn in the following tabhe:
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Disclasure in Directors report relating to Rule 5(2):

Sr. | Name Designation Qualificati Drate of Name Of | Percenta| Relati
No. on And COMmMENCEMENE Previous| geOf | ve OF
Experience of employment mployer] Equity |Direct
Shares | or
Held By
The
Employe
e
Santi Employee NIL No
1 Swarup
Tripathy
Anant Employee BE 01.03.2017 0.21 YES
2 | Agarwal Electrical
Ravi Employes Graduate 01.07.2009 Vitro NIL Mo
9 Prakash Commo
Aparwal dities
Madhus Chief M.Sc 16.01.2002 NIL No
4 |udanP Technical Metallurgy
Phar Officer
Raman Employee Graduate 01042011 Filare NIL Mo
g | [hunjhu Enginee
nwala rs Pvt,
Ltd
5 Vipul Employes Graduate (11.10.2007 NIL No
Mehta
7 | Naresh Employes NIL Mo
Kumar i .
g | Prajapa Employee NIL No
ti Punit
Anand Employes Graduate 1M.01.2019 NIL YES
9 | Agarwal
A Employee Graduate NIL Mo
10 Kumar
Mapui
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND AMALYSIS REPORT

I INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENTS:

The Indian manufacturing sector has witnessed steady recovery during FY 2024-25, supported by favourable government policies,
improved infrastructure Investment, and & resurgence in core sectors like power, construction, and heavy engineering, The electrade and
electrical equipment manufacturing segment, In particular, saw increased demand driven by infrastrucure development, growth in
renewable energy, and ekpansion in the fabrication and metal industries,

The Government of India's emphasis on “Make in India® and the Prodection Linked Incentive (PLI} scheme have also positively impacted
capital goods manufacturing. Rising global demand for welding consumables, driven by construction and shipbuilding sectors, has
contributed to the growth of electrode manufacturers fike GEE Limited.

GEE Limited is a well-established player engaged in the manufacture and marketing of welding electrodes, welding fluxes, and other
electrical equipment. The company caters to various industries induding construction, shipbuilding, raitways, petrachemicals, and power

With a fong-standing market presence and a reputation for quality and innavation, the Company has built a diversified customer base and
a strong distribution network across India. GEE Limited continues to invest in technology upgradation, RELD, and process optimization to
enhance its product guality and competitiveness.

. DUTLOOK, OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS
Bpportunities

The outlook for the welding electodes and electical equipment industry remains optimistic, driven by robust demand across
infrastructure, construction, manufactunng, and energy sectors. Government initiatives such as "Make in Indi,” the National
Infrastnaciure Pipeline (MIP), and the Production Linked Incentive (PLI) schemes have provided a strang fmpetus 1o domestic
manufacturing, which directly supports the demand for industrial consumables like welding electrodes: The accelerated pace of
infrastructure projects, particulady in railways, urban development, and renewable energy installations, offers significant growth
avenues. Additlonally, the rsing focus on indigenization in sectors such as defence and shipbullding has opened new opportunities for
high-perfarmance wekling consumables and specialized equipment, On the global front, inceasing industrial agivity in developing
economies, caupled with infrastructure development in Southeast Asfa, the Middle East, and Africa, is creating a grovwing export market
for Indian manufacturers. GEE Limited is well-pasitioned to capitalize on these apportunities through its diversified product portfolls,
strong brand presence, technological capabilities, and an expanding distribution network,

Threats:

Despite a positive demand envirenment, the Company faces several challenges that could impact its performance. One of the primary
concerns is the volatility in raw materlal prices, especially steel, fero allays, rutile, and other minerals, which divectly affect the eost
structure of electrade manufacturing. Global supply chain disruptions and lagistics challenges can further exacerbate cost pressures and
lead to delays in procurement or delivery. In the domestic market, the presence of unorganized and low-cost manufacturers leads to
intense price competition, particularly in the commoditized product segments. This often results in margin pressures and demands
continueus intovation and differentiation. Moreaver, lluctuations in foreign exchange rates Impact export realizations and fmpor costs,
posing a risk to profitability In overseas markets. Requlatory changes, Including stricter environmental and safety standards, require
angaing compliance and investment in cleaner technologies, Additionally, global macroecanamic uncertalnties, geopalitical tensions,
and any downtum in infrastructure spending or industrial activity tould sdversely affect customer demand and overall business
senfiment,

. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:

GEE Limited recoeded a tofal revere of appraximately R 33,470.71 Lakhs for the finandal vear 202425, as against fis, 36,587 240 Lakhs in the previom vear, reflecting a
dhecline primarily due to rising raw matesial casts and sustained pricing pressures in 4 competitive market environment. Despite these challenges, the Company has
cartinued ta facus an raintaining epetational efficency, I conlinoowsly endeavours tirmpaove gross mataing thooagh astateals rbcof cest contral inltiatives, prudent
praduct prica, and ongomsg mancvation inits product ofennas and manufacturing prooeses,

V. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY,

GEE Limited has implemanted robast intemal control systems commemsurate with the size and nature of its bisiness, These systems ane designed to ensurm refiahie
financiak reporting, compdiance with laws and reguiations, and efficient use of respurces. Intemal checks and controls coverng operations of the company are in placeand
are constanthy bewng mpraved apon. An adequate spstem exists to safequard company's assets through insurance on reinstatement basis and maintenance of proper
recards
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Y. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED.

GEE Limited continues to nutture 8 performance-driven and employes-centric culture. The total employee strength as of March 31, 2025,
stood at approximately 363 The Company conducted various training and development programs during the year facused on skill
enhancement, safety, and leadership development. Industrial relations remained cordial throughout the year,

Vi DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES (I.E. CHANGE OF 25% OR MORE AS COMPARED TO THE IMMEDHATELY PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR] IN KEY FINANCIAL
RATHOS:

During the financial year 202425, GEE Limited witnessed notable movements in several key financial ratios compared to the previous
year. These changes primarily reflect the Impact of increased input costs, pricing pressures, and adjustments ininvestment valuations,

The Debt Service Coverage Ratio dedlined significantly from 2.84 in the previous year to 0L85 in the curent year, marking a 70.24%
decrease. This was largely due to a relative incréase in expenses coupled with a dedine In gross peofit, which adversely impacted the
Company sability to cover its debt servicing obligations through operating imcome The Company has not defaulted on any of its debr obligarions

The Return on Equity (ROE) turmed negative, talling from 0.06:in the previous year te -0.05 in FY 2024-25, representing a 177.42%
decline. Similarly, the Net Profit Ratio decreased from 0.03 to 40.03 (-192.26%), and Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) dropped from
0.09 to -00,01 [-112.34%), These declines are attributable to a contraction [n profit margins, primarily driven by higher raw material costs
and persistent pricing pressures in a highly compeatitive market envirenment.

The Return on Investment (ROI) also witnessed a steep decline from 0.11 to 4020, amaunting to 3 278.48% negative variance. This was
duetoadecraasein the falr valee of certain investments, recognized through Other Comprabensive Income (DCH)

Or 3 positive note, the Net Capital Turnover Ratio Improved from 8,27 10 11,34, Showing a 22.35% increase, although just below the 25%
threshold. Thes improvement was largely the result of a reduction in warking capital, reflecting improved capital efficlency during the year,

These changes highlight the financial pressures faced by the-Company duripg the year, primarily due 1o external cost factors and market
conditions, GEE Limited continues to focus on managing these challenges through strategic cost control, prudent working capital
management and pricing disciplineto restore profitability and improve overall financial performance inthe coming periods.

Vil DETAILS OF AMY CHAMGE IN RETURN ON NETWORTHAS COMPARED TO THE IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR:

Buring the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Return on Net Worth (RoMW) of the Company declined significantly to -5.25%, as
compared to&.27% in the previous financial year This decline was pimarily due to reduced profitability on account of rising rmw material
costs, elevated operating expenses, and pricing pressures n the domestic and international markets. The decrease in net profit kad a
direct and adverse impact an shareholders” retums, resulting in negative RaNW for the year, Thie Campany remains focused on improving
operational efficiency, optimizing cost structures, and enhancing product marging in order to restore and strengthen its returm on nat
worth in the forthcoming finandal periods:

Disdaimer: Certain statements in this report concerning future prospects may be forwarnd-looking statements. Such statements are based
an current expectations and are subject to risks and uncerlainties that could cause actual results 1o differ materially, Factars such as
economic conditions, raw matenial availability, pricing pressures, and regulatory changes may affect the actual results, GEE Limited and
thie Management shall not be held liable for-any boss, which may arise, as.a result of any action taker on the basis of the information
contained herein,

Forand on behalfofthe Board of Directors of Directors of
GEE Limited

Sy~

Mr. Umesh Agarwal
Joint Managing Director
DIN: 01209962
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ANNEXURE - Wil
CORPORATE GOVERMANCE REPORT

Carporate Governance (s a combination of rules, processes or laws by which businesses are operated, requlated or controlled. The term
encompasses the internal and extemnal factors that affect the interests of a company's stakeholders, including shareholders, customers, suppliers,
government requlators and management.

In compliance with Regulation 34(3} read with Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclasure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Fegulations™), as amended from time (o time, GEE Limited submits the Corporate Governance Report
forthe financial yearended March 31, 2025,

1. Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance:

GEE Lirnited strongly believes in conducting the business with mtegrity and faimess, being transparent with regards to all transactions, makirg all
the necessary disclosures and dedsions, complylng with all the laws of the land, accountability and responsibility toweards the stakeholders and
commitment to conduct business in an ethical manner. The Board of Directors of GEE Limited firmly ruminates that the purpose of Corporate
Gouvernance is tofacilitate eflective, entreprensurial and prudent management that can deliver long- term success of GEE Limited

GEE Limited's overall governance framewaork, systems and processes reflects and supports its Misslon, Vision and Values. Corporate Governance is
a mere legal obligation. Effective Corporate Governance is about creating long—term sustainable value for its stakeholders, GEE Limited continues
to emhbrace the best practices of Corporate Governance and alsa continuously reviews them: A company which is proactively complant with the
law, and which adeds value to [t through the Corporate Governance initiatives would alse command a higher value In the eyes of present and
prospective shareholders:

Hence, GEE Limited Is of the opinion that Corporate Governance s ot an end in Itself but s a catalyst In the process towards maximization af
shareholder value, Theretore, shareholder value, as an objective, is woven into-all aspects of Corporate Governance — the underlying philosophy,
the divelopment of roles and the creation of structures and cantinuous compliance with standard practices.

2. Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors, as the apex qoverning authority of the Company, fosters a culture of principled leadership by articulating a long-term
strategic vision and advancing sustainable value creation. It bears the fiduciary responsibility of protecting and enhancing shareholder value
while formulating strategic business ohjectives, exercising independent judgment, and ensuring rebust oversight. Through scund corporate
governanie, the Board diligently batances the interests of all stakehnlders and exemplifies effective leadership.

In addition to its governance functions, the Board provides strategic guidance and support to the management team across critical business
damains. it plays a pivotal role in shaping the Company's strategic direction, assessing performance, and contributing meaningfully to jts
sustained growth and long-temm success,

The Board is compased of mambers distinguished by their expertise in diverse fields such as management, finance, law, and marketing, This broad
spectium of professional experience enhances the reliability and effectiveness of the Companys operations. The Board ensures rigorous
evaluation of the strateqies and operational planning adopted by the management across global aperatians,

In compliance with Regulation 26(1) of the SEBE (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, none of the Directors serves
as amemberin more than ten committees oras Chairperson of mare than live committees across all companies in which they serve as Directors.

GEE Limited's Board of Directors is a professionally managed Board of Directors, consisting of 10 (Ten} Directors in all, categorized as under:

I Compositionof Board of Directors:

The Board of Directars has an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors induding Independem Dirsctors in compliance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act) and the SEB! Listing Regulations. The Board of Directors comprises fifty pércent of Non-
Executive Independent Directors.

During the financial year 2024-25, the Board of Directars of Directors comprised of 1 {0ng) Non-Executive Nominee Director and Chafrman (Mot
related to Promaters), 4 (Four) Fxecutive Directors along-with 5 {Five) Non-Executive Independent Directors. For, the year ended March 31, 2025,

the composition of the Board |< in conformity with Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Reguiations rezd with Sections 149 and 152 of the Act, 5
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* M Pradip Kumar Das (DIN: 06593113) was appointed as an Non-Executive Nominee Director and Chairman of the Campany by the
Hon'ble HCLT (Mumbai Bench) vide (ts Order dated 9" May, 2024

*  Ms. Neelam Tater (DIN; 07653773) was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Independent Director by the Board of Directors w.e.d
1dth August, 2024 and reqularized in the Annual General Meeting held on 28th September, 2024

Hewever, after the end of the Financial Year 2024-25 there were following changes inthe Board of Directors of the Campany:

+ M Pradip Kumar Das has ceased to be associated with the company vide his resignation tendered on June 21, 2025,

= Mr Shankartal Agarwal has tendered his resignation from the post of Whale Time Director on May 27, 2025

= MrSanwarmal Agarwal has resigned from the post of Managing Director on May 27, 2025.

= MrVinod Kumar Agarwal has resigned as the Non-Executive Independont Director of the company woe.fMay 20, 2025,

= MuSujit Sen has resigned fram the post of Non-Executive Independent Director w.e f May 20, 2025

= Mrs, Neelam Tater has tendered her resignation from the post of Mon-Executive Independent Director on May 20, 2025.

o M Vineeta Agrawal was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Independent Woman Director wied June 02, 2025 and
reqularized as Non-Executive Indepandent Waman Director in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on June 27, 2025

«  Mr Aditya lalan, Company Secretary and Compliance Officerof the company resigred w.e fMay 20, 2025,

*  Ms SeemaVyaswas appointed asthe Company Secretary and Compliance officer of the company wee: fune 18, 2025.

*  MrUmesh Agarwal and Mr. Omprakash Agarwal were designated as Joint Managing Director of the Company woe flone 02, 2005 a3 approved by
mesnbers in the Extra Grdinary General Meeting held on June 27, 2025

= Asonthe date of this Beport, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises of 5 Directors Including, 2 {Twa) Executive Directors along-
with 3 (Three ) Non-Executive independent Directors.
Composition of the Board of Directors and also the number of other Listed Companies of which hefshe (s a Director and Member Chairman as
onMarch 31, 2025, —

T [T - re =
Category “Directorship in Committes Membership{s} Mo of shares held

ather listed Companies of other listed Companies by the Directors

1 |Me Umesh Ramkishan Agarwal | Exeostive Director 0 0 0 15,67 655
{Whole Time Director,
designated as Joint
Managing Directar)

3 M Om Prakash Agdwal Exeutive Director 0 L) 0 10,838,404
{Whale Time Directar,
designated as Joint
Managing Director)

3 M Amit Agarwal Non-Execuiie L] 0 0
Inclependent Directos

& |Me. Mifind BRaral Farskl Nan-Exsputie ] 1] 0
[nclegendent Diractor
§ | M Pradip Kumar Das Noz-Exeauive 3 3 2
Faminge Directos
| Chiarrman s Sth May 2024)
& | Mr Shankarlad Agarwal Frecatee Do 1] 0 0 W.11,80
{Chgirrmam 13 Bth May 2024)
T | M Sanwdrmal Agarwal Frecutree Deecinr 0 0 o 417,11
Manaqing Dirsctor
B |Me Sujit Son Nan-Exncutive Independent 0 0 0
[irectoe
8 [MeVinod Aggarwal Hor-Executive Indepenent o o 0
Dirertoe
10 [Mrs: Neslam Tater Nor-Executive Independent 3 2 1

Dlirector 28
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ii. Board of Birectors Procedure and Access toinformation:

The Board of Directors of GEE Limited is entrusted with the responsibillty of overseelng and managing the affairs of the Campany. The Board meets
atregularintervals to effectively discharge its duties and responsibilities in accordance with applicable statutory and regulatary requirements,

GEE Limited recognises the significance of maintaining a weli-balanced and diverse Board, which enhances the quality of deliberations and
contributés ta sound and effective dedisior-making. The Board comprises an oplimal blend of Executive and Mon-Executive Directors, each
possessing substantial expertise and experience in their respective domains, aligned with the strategic and operational needs of the Company.

In compliance with the provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Requlations, the Board of Directors periodically
reviews all refevant information presented for its consideration and deliberation: A comprehensive agenda |5 circulated to all Directors well in
advance of each meetng, ensuring the Inclusion of all matedal information 1o facilitate Informed and locused discussions,

Where'it is not feasible to circulate supporting documents along with the agenda, such decuments are placed hefore the Board at the meeting. In
special and exceptional drcumstances, additional agenda items may be Introduced and deliberated upon, subject to the approval of the Chair,

During the financial year 2024-25, the Board of Directors met 5 (Five) times on the following dates:

1) Wy 30, 2024

il Rugust T4, 2024

£} September(t, 1024
4 Howember 14,2024
5 February 14,2025

Mtendance of each Dirvetonat the Eoarfof Diractars mestings and the [t aanual General Meeting SAGM] aregiven in following Table:

Name of the Dire ctor Status Ho.of No. of Attendance
Executive/ Non - Banerd Board el
Executive Mestings Meetings
e attended
Mr. Pradip Kumar Das NED/Chairman 5 5 Yes
Mr. Shankarlal Agarwal ED 5 5 Yes
Mr. Sanwarmal Agarwal ED/MD 5 5 Yes
Mr. Umesh Agarwal ED 5 5 Yes
Mr. Omprakash Agarwal ED 5 5 Yes
Mr. Amit Agarwal NED/ID 5 5 Yes
Mr. Vinod Agarwal NED/ID 5 5 Yes
Mr. Sujit Sen NED/ID 5 5 Yes
Mr. Milind Parekh NED/ID 5 5 Yes
Mrs. Neelam Tater NED/ID 3 3 NA
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Inter-se Relationships among Directors:
Kame of Director Refationship with other Directors
Mr. Shankartal Agarwal Mr. Sanwamal Agarwal - Brother
Mr. Omprakash Agarwal Brother
Mr. Umesh Agarwal - Brother
Mr. Sanwarmal Agarwal Mr. Shankarlal Agarwal - Brother

M. Umesh Agarwal Mr. Shankarlal Agarwal - Brother
Mr. Sanwarmal Agarwal - Brother
Mr. Omprakash Agarwal - Brother

Mr. Omprakash Agarwal Mr. Shankartal Agarwal - Brother

Apartfraimthe relatianshigis mentianed above, there are o inter-serelationships amang the Directoss,

iv.

V.

Codeof Conduct:

GEE Limited has adopted a Code of Conduct for the members of the Board of Directors and the Senior Managements, All the members of
the Baard of Directars and the Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance to the Code of Conduct as on 31" March, 2025
and a declaration to that effect on behalf of the Board of Directors is signed by the Whole Time Director which is a= andes,

| hereby canfirm that:

“GEE Limited has obtained from all the members of the Board of Directors and senior management, affirmation that they have complied
withthe code of conduct for directors and senior management in respect af the financial year 2024-25,"

5o/

Mr. Umesh Agarwal
Joint Managing Director
DIN No.01209962

Skills/Expertise/Competence of the Board of Directors of Directors:
The Board of Directors comprises of qualified membars whao bring in the required skills, competence and expertise that allow them to
make an effective cantr/bution to the Board of Directors and its Committess:

In view of the objectives and activities of our business, GEE Limited requires skills/ expertise/competencies in the areas of welding,
finance, banking, taxation, accounts, secretarial, legal, business steateqy, business leadership, sales and marketing:



In teems of requirernent of the Listing Requlations, the Board of Directors has identified the following skills | expertise { competencies of the.
Directors as given below:

1. Leadership experience in running large enterprise
2. Experience incrafting Business Strategies
3. Finance and Accounting Experience
4, Experiencein oversesing large and complex Supply Chain
5. Understanding use of Digital ( Information Technology across the value chain
6. Experience of working with large companies and understanding of the changing regulatory framework
7. Understanding of Consumer and Customer Insights in diverse environments and conditions
Based on the performance evaluation done annually, it can be rightfully said that the Board of Directars have the aforementioned skills, and

the Board of Directors is satisfied that the current composition refiects an appropriate mix of knowledge, skills, experience, diversity and
Independence maquired for it to function effectively,

Interms of requirement of the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors has identified the fallowing skills { expertise [ competencies as
required inthe contest of the business of GEE Limited and for the Board of Directors to function effectively. The same are given below:

Core shills and | Shankarlal | Sanwarmal | Omprakash Umesh Amit Midind Amit Sufit Vined Meelam
its desaription | Agarval Al At il Agarwal Agarwal Parckh Anaswal Sen Anarwal Taler
Leadership o * .\ v 7 v * v v v
expertence of
running large
Experience of
crafting
Sitd) v v ¥ v ¥ o« v ¥ o ¥
Stratagies
Understarding
of Consumer o o v v ._.. o o v o ._..
and Customar
Insights in
diverse
environmeants

and
Finance
Accounting v v v v .w o v v s .w
Experience in v # o - s o # o ¥ s
E large
and complex
supply

i, Confirmation:
In the opinion of the Board of Directers, the Independant Directors fulfill the conditions specified in Regulations 17 o 27 of SEBI (LODR),
Regulations, 2015, and are independent of the management. A certificate in respect of the same has been lssued by MrDeep Shukia,
Praprietor of M/s.Deep Shukla & Assocates which is enclosed at the end of the report a5 an Annexurs,

vil. Annual General Meeting:
The provisions of Section 149 and 152(6) of the Act and rules made there under, stipulate that at least 1,37 af the 2/37 of the Directors of GEE
Limited other than the Independent Birectors, are llable to retire by iotation every year.

N



3. Board Committees:

The Board of Directors Committees play a cecial role in the governance structure of GEE Limited and have been constituted to deal with specific
dneas  activities s mandated by applicable requiations, which concem GEE Limited and need a closer review. All decisions and recommendations
of the Committees are placed before the Board of Directors for informatien or for approval, as required. The various Committess established by the
Board of Directors are Audit Commitiee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakehalders Relationship Commitiee and Corporate Saclal
Responsibility Committes. The minutes afthe meetings of all committees were placed before the Board of Directors for discussionfnaoting.

i.  AuditCommittes:

Thie Audit committee has been formed in line with the provisions of Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18 of the SERI Listing Reguiations
read with Part Cof Schedule I,

Briefdescription of Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as per provisions of thie Act, the Listing Regulations and the policy of Audit Committee, they are
as foflows

Discirss and review, with the management and auditors, the annual [ quarterly inaneeal statements belore submission to the Board of Directors,
with particular referonce to:

1 Matters required to be included in the Directars' Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board of Directors’ report in terms of sub-
saction {2) of section 164 of the Acdt;

2 Disclosure under Management Discussion and Analysis of Financal Condition and Results of Dperations’,

Any changes in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

Majoraccounting entries involving estimates based on exercise of judgment by management,

Analysis of the effects of altemative GAAF methods on the financial statements;

= IS L I~ Y|

Draft auditrepar and qualifications, it any, thersin;

These terms of reference are also hostad on the website of GEE Limited at the foliowing link:
hitps:/fwww.geelimited.com/code_of conduct

Further, the audit committee ensures that it has reviewed each area that s reguired to review under its terms of reference and under applicable
regulations or by way of good practice. This periodic review ensures that all the areas withinthe scope of committee arereviewed,

The Audit Committee of GEE Limited met 5 {Fivel times during the year as perthe dates mentioned below:

1 May 30, 2024

2 August 14, 2024

3 September 0B, 2024

4 November 14, 2024

5) February14, 2025
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors comprises of 1(0ne) Executive Director and 5 (Five) Nan-Executive Independent Directors and 1
{One) Kon-Executive Nominee Director. Recommendations of the Audit Committes, if any; are considered and implemented by the Board of
Directors from time to time. All these Directors possess knowledge of corporate finance, accounts and company 3w,

Name of the Audit Committee Member Category of Directorship Status Ho. of Meetings attended

Mr. Sujit Sen Non-Executive Director - Independent  Chairman o5
Mr. Amit Agarwal I MNon-Executive Direcior - IHdEpL‘Hd-EI‘I:I Member | 545
Mr Shankarlal Agarwal | Executive Director . Member | 5/5
Mr Pradip Kumar Das” ' Non-Executive - Nominee Director [ Member | 55
Mrs. Neelam Tater™ I Non-Executive Director - Inl:l{:pundent. Member | 25
Mr. Vinod Kumar Aqgama.l-'. - Non-Executive Director - IndEpEﬂdETﬂ: Member - 15

G
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During the year under review, there were following changes:

1. M. Pradip Kumar Das was appointed on May 09, 2025 as the Non-Executive Nomines Directorand Chairman of the Company and accordingly
wias on boarded as the Member af the Audit Committee on May 30, 2024,

1. MrsNeelam Tater was appointed as.an Additional Mon-Executive Independent Director of the company on August 14, 2024 and on boarded
as the Member of the audit committee in the meeting held on November 14, 2024,

3. MuVinod Kumar Aggarwal, Non-Executive Independent Director af the Company, was on boarded as the Member of the Audit Committee
w.e 1 February 14, 2025.

v, Sujit Sen was present at the 63" Annual General Meeting of GEE Limited held on 28" September, 2024 to attend and reply to the shareholders

queries.
Asonthe date of this report, following changes took place inthe composition of Audit Committes:

S Name of the Audit Committee Member Category Date of Change
o,

1 M Sujit Sen Chairman Cessation 20-05-2025

2 I Mr Shankarial Agarwal . Member Cessation | 27-05-2025

3 | Mrc Pradip Kumar Das - Member - Cessation - 21-06-2025

4 Mrs. Neelam Tater I Member . Cessation . 20-05-2025

5 | M Vinod Kumar Aggarwal . Member . Cessation | 20-05-2025

6 | Mrs. Vineeta Agrawal ' Chairperson | Appointment | 02-06-2025

7 M Milind Parckh Member Appointment 02-06-2025

Af the outset of the above changes, the committee was reconstituted wef lune 02, 2025 respectively. The present members of the Audit
Committes are Mrs. Vinesta Agrawal {Chairparson), Mr Amit Agarwal (Member) and Mr. Milind Bharat Parekh (Member).

The Committee mandatorily reviews information as per the requirement of applicable acts and regulations and such other matters as considered
appropriate by itar efereed to it by Board of Directors,

il. Nomination and Remuneration Committes:

The Momination and Remuneration Committee is formed as per Section 178 of the Act and Regqulation 19 of the Listing Requlations read with
Part D of Schedula fl

¢  Briefdescription of Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as per provisions of the Actand the Listing Requlstions and the
policy of Nomination and Remuneration Committes, which are as follows:

1. Toguide the Board of Directors in refation to appointment and remaoval of Directors, Key Managerial Personne| and Senior Management,

2. Toformulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board
of Directors a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, key managerlal personnel and other employees.
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3. Toformulatie of criteria for evaluation of Independent Director and the Board of Directors.
4. Toevaluate the performance of the members of the Board of Directors and provide the necessary report (e the Board of Directors for

further evaluation of the Board of Directors

Further, the Nomination and Remuneration committes ensures that it has reviewed each area that (s required to review under its terms.of

reference and underapplicable actsiregulation or by way of good practica,
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of GEE Umited met 2 (Two) times duning the year as per the dates mentioned below:

10 August 14, 2024
2)  February 14, 2025

The Compasition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below:

Wame of the Audit Committee Member Category of Directorship Status No.of Meetings attended

ME Sujit Sen Non-Executive Director - independent Chairman 2{2

Mr. Amit Agarwal Non-Executive Director - Independent Member 212
W Vinod Agarwal Mon-Executive Director - Independent Member 2i2

A5 onthe date of this report, following changes took place in the composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committes;

Hame of the Audit Committee Member Date of Change

1 Mr Sujit Sen Chairman Cessation 20-05-2025
2 I Mr Vinod Kumar Aggarwal Member Cessation | 20-05-2025
3 | Mr Amit Agarwal - Chairman - Redesignation - 02-06-2025
4 | Mrs. Vineeta Agrawal Member . Appointment | 02-06-2025
5 I M. Milind Farekh Member Appointment 02-06-2025

At the outset of the above changes, the committee was reconstituted weef June 02, 2025 respectively. The present members of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee are Mr. Amit Agareal (Chairman), Mrs, Vineeta Agrawal (Member), and Mr Milind Bharat Parekh

(Member).
*  Remuneration Policy

The remuneration poticy for Working Directors-is in fine with the other peer Companies and reviewed periodically. The payment of
remuneration is duly approved by the Board of Directors upon the recommendation of the Nominatlon and Remuneration Committes and the
Sharehoiders.
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The performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors and criteria of making payments to Non-Executive Directors forms part of
Nomination cum Remuneration Policy which has been uploaded on GEE Limited's website at the following link-

https:www.geelimited com/code of conduct

*  Directors Remuneration
Datails of remumeration paid to Whole-time Directors for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, are as follows; -

All elements of remuneration package of individual directors summarlzed under major groups, such as salary, benefits, bonuses, stock
options, pension etc.;

Name of Director [ Mr. Shankarial Agarwal Mr. Sanwarmsal Agarwal M. Dmprakash dgarwal Mr. Umizh Aganal
Chairman and Managing Director Executive Directar Executive Directar
Executive Director
53|-_ir_]"_{ﬂ_§.:|-_ - | #9,20,000 | &,80.000 63.00.000 | &7,80,000
alue of Perguisite (Fs.) | 31,98900 | 826,500 19,00,500 1,51,500

Contribution to PF (Rs.) | 475,200 | 3,96,000 : 285120 | 3,60,000
Details of fieed component and performance linked . -

incentives, along with the performance oiteria

Servioe I:DI'I.’EIEEES.-I'IIJ‘EIEE ﬁcriuﬂ, severance fécs.

Stock option details, if any and whether issued at al

discount as well as the period over which acoued

and over which exercisable. |

Total 1,1594,100 89,02,500 | s085620 | 7891500

Sittnag Fees & Commission paid 10 Non-axecytive Dirsctars

The Non-Executive Directors are pald sitting Tees tor attending each meeting of the Board of Directors, Audit Commitiee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Corporate Socal Responsibility Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Comittes

With respecttothe financial year 2024-25 the sitting fees pald/payabile to the Non-Executive Directors are as detalled below, fin fs.)
Mc Amit Agarwal | 3,70,000
Mr Sujit Sen 4.40,000
M. Milind Parekh - Y
Mc Vinod Aggarwal | 2,20,000
Mrs. Neelam Tater 1,35,000

Note: Mo commission Is pald to any of the Directors.

. mmﬂmcmmm

® Brief Description of Terms of Reference:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 20-of the Listing Regulations read with Part D of Schedule 11
therets, the Shareholders' Relationship Committee of 1he Board of Directors was reconstitited as the Stakeholders' Relationship
Committee ("SRCY). The brief terms of reference of the Committee include resolving grievances of all the secunty holdess of GEE
Limited including complaimts related to transfer of shares, non-receipt of balance sheet, and non-receipt of declared dividend. The
Stakehofders Relotionship Committee has the mandate ta review and redress shareholder grievances
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Stakeholder Relationship committes meeting was held on February 14, 2025 for the financial year 2024-25.

Mame of the Share Transfer and
Category of Directorship MNo. of Meetings attended

Shareholders / Investors
Grievance Committee Membaear

Mr. Sujit Sen Non-Executive Director - Independent] Chairman 1/1
Mr. Sanwarmal Agarwal Executive Director & MD Member 11
Mr. Om Prakash Agarwal Executive Director Member 1/1

As on the date of this eport. following changes took place in the compasition of Stakeholders Relationship Committes:

Name of the Audit Committee Member Nature of Change Date of Change
1 M Sujit Sen Chairman Cessation 20-05-2025
2 I M Sanwarmal Agarwal . Member Cessation 27-05-2025
3 | Mc Om Prakash Agarwal ' Member | Cessation - 02-06-2025
4 Mr Amit Agarwal Member Appointment 02-06-2025
5 I Mr. Umesh Agarwal Member Appointment 02-06-2025
& . M. Milind Farekh . Chairman - Appointment | 02-06-2025

At the outset of the above changes, the committes was reconstituted woe f June 02, 2025 respectively, The present members of the
Stakehaolders Relationship are Mr Milind Bharat Parekh (Chairman), Mr Amit Agarwal (Member), and Mz Umesh Agarwal (Member),

A statement of various complaints recebved and redressed by GEE Umited during the year financial ended March 31, 2025 is given
below;

Nature of Complaint | Number of Investors’| Number of Investors' | Number of Investors' | Number of Investors'
Complaint pending = Complaint received | Complaint disposed | Complaint remaining

at the beginning during the year of during the year anresoived at the
of the year end of the year

Non Heceipt of Annual Report

Non Receipt of Dividend Warrants

Non Receipt of Bonus Shares

Request for Duplicate Share Certificates

Non Receipt of Share Transferred

Others

Letters from Stock Exchanges/SEBI

Ministry of Corporate Affairs | | |

Total | Nil ! il _ Nil _ Nil

Compfiance Certifigate

Compliance Certificate for Corporate Governance from Auditors of the Company (s annexed to this report,

iv. Corporate Socal Responsibility Committee:

The Board af Directors of the Campany has constituted Corporate Social Respansibility Committee in line with the provisions of

Section 13% and Schedule VIEof the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Sooal Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2074,
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Brief descriptionof Terms of Reference:

To formutate and recommend to the Board of Directors, a Corporate Social Respansibility Palicy which shall indicate the activities to be
undertaken by GEE Limited as specified in Schedule VI of the Act to recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the

activities; and monitor the Carparate Social Responsibility Palicy of GEE Limited from time 1o time:

The meeting of Corporate Sacial Responsibility committee was held on Febroary 14, 2025,

The Compasition of Cotporate Sodal Responsibility Commirtes of the Board of Directors comprises of 3 (Three) members and the details

of meetings attended by its members are given below:

Category of Directorship No. of Meatings
attended
ME. Sujit Sen Non-Executive Director — Independent Chairman mn
Mr. Sanwarmal Agarwal | Executive Director & Managing Direcmr. Member | 11
Mr. Omprakash Agarwal | Executive Director | Member | 11

As on the date of this report, following changes took place in the compaosition of Corporate Social Responsibility Committes:

Hame of the Audit Committes Member Category Nature of Change Date of Change
1 M Sujit Sen Chairman Cessation 20-05-2025
2 . Mr Sanwarmal Agarwal . Member - Cessation - 27-05-2025
3 . Mr. Om Prakash Agarwal - Chairman - Redesignation - 02-06-2025
4 | Mrs. Vineeta Agrawal ' Member . Appointment 02-06-2025
5 . M Milind Parekh . Member . Appointment | 02-06-2025

At the sutset of the abave changes, the committes was reconstituted w.e | June 02, 2025 respectively, The present members of the
Comporate Sodal Responsibility Committee are Mr. Om Prakash Agarwal (Chairman), Mr Milind Bharat Parekh (Member), and frs.
Vineeta Agrawal (Member).

The evaluation of the Board of Directors of the Company was done in a strictured manner with remarks-based questionnaires having

depending upon the performance of the Directors.

v Independent Mectars Meeting;
There was onemeeting of Independent Directors held during the Finandal Year The performance of non-independent disectors,
performance of the board as a whale and performance of the Chalrman was reviewed and evaluated, taking Inte account the views of
executive directors and non-executive directors.

General Body Mestings:

The details of General Meetings held n tast three years are as under: -
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63rd | Saturday 28/09/2024| 12:00 AGM via video conferencing| 1. Appointment of Mrs. Neclam Tater
AGM Noon | Registered Office of the GEE Limited | DIN : 07653773) as Independent Director of the
{ at Plot No. E1, Road, Nou7, Company for a term of 5 years.

| Wagle Industrial Estate,
Thane 400604, Mabarashir, India)

62nd| Friday  |12/04/2024 | 4:30 EM. | AGM via video conferencing Appointment of Mc Amit Agarwal
AGM | (Registered Office of the GEE Limited | (DIN: 01006387), Independent Director of the

| at Piot No. E1, Road, No.7, Wagle | Company, for another term of 5 years.
| Industrial Estate, Thane 400604,

| Maharashtra, India)
EGM | Thursday | 16/11/2023 04:00 | EGM via video conferencing
M. (Registered Office of the GEE

: Limited at Plol Mo. EY, Road, No. 7,
| Wagle Industrial Estate,
Thane 400604, Maharashiz, Indi)

EGM | Thursday | 15/12/2022 12:00 | BGM via video confesenang
Noon | (Registesed Office of the GEE Limited
| @t Plot No. E1, Road, No. 7, Wagle
| Industrial Estatr, Thane 200604,
| Maharashira, India)
61" | Tuesday |16/08/2022 12.00 | AGM via video conferencng
AGM Noon | (Registered Office of the GEE Limited
| at Plot No. E1, Road, No- 7,
| Wagle Industrial Estate,
| Thane 400604, Maharashtra, Indi)

2. Whetherspecial resolutions wore put theough postal ballot last year? Mo
b.  Arespedal resolutions propased to be put through postal ballot thisyear? N

5. Famillarization Programme:;

The Policy on GEE Limited's Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors can be accessed at)
hittps:fwwa geelimited.cam/code of conduct

nsuTES:

. Disclosure regarding materally significant related party transactions:

During the year unider review, besides the transactions reported in Directors Bepart, thene were no ather refated party transactions with the promaters, directors and
minagement that hada potentiat confict with the interest of GEE Limited at fage

I the tramsactions with refated parties are perodically placed befrre the Audit Commitize. The Registér of Contracts detailing transactions in which Directors are
interested isphaced before the Board of Dwrectors far its approval. Transactions with related parties, a5 per tegulrementsof the Actand Indsan Acoounting Standaed 24, are
el in Motes o the Agcaunts and i the Birectoss Report partof the Annuad Report and they arenat inconflictwith the intesest of GEE Liméted af Larga,

The Boand af Derectors has approved a policy on refated party fransactions which has been uploaded onGEE Limited's websste at the fullpwing lmk!

https://www.geelimited.com/code_of conduct
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b Disclosure of nen-complisnce by GEE Limited:

The Hon-Compliances during the period undar review were as follows,

—  Lofe Sinhrtssion of the following;
»  Anrwal Secrefarial Compliance fepart under Reguilaitor 244 oF SER! [TODRHRequilations, 2075 for Fimanclal yéar ended 2044 and 2025,
o Fingol Resdts under Sequiotion 33 f SEREOOR! Regukations, 2075 (Aaditedand wnaaifed! for Septembsr 2004 and March 2025),
—  The pompositioin of fhe Aaitil Commiffee was mof in aecordmace witl the reguirerents of Sequlation 15 of the SER [Lsting Dbhigations and Siscsure Reguirments)
Beurletioons, 2015, fartie gumrférended Marh 71, 2025, However, the Company has sompiied with the preseribed rompositianas an thedate afsigming of i report.
—  Thecomparyis i fite process o npdare certrdiiosunes o e websife as per the reguirement of Seguldtion 46 o SEETLODW) Reguaticas, 2015,
—  During the courseaf the qualt, it was noted that the Company fs pot fifed Farm OFT-3 far the fnangial yeor ended March 37, 2024 asrequired under R T6af the (ampanies
{Aceentance of Deposits) Mules, 2074, read with Seetion 73 of the Camparies At 2011
Mo - compiiprceof Section 148 af Companies Act, 200 3 for thefinancia! year 202324 for sar- sicbmugsion of Cost Audi Regort forthe Y 2025 24, however the same s been
filed s ot e gt o s Fepio,
—  Inhs been observed that the Compaiy did ted provide infimadions fo tae shoek exchnge regardig the dopoimiment of e Cost Aueitor e the dntermel Audifor, ax reglined
under e aopicaine provisions oftie SE81 (L isting Oliigations and Disclosare Reguirements) Segilations, 2075, However, the some fias been done prosently
—  Buring the periad inder review fhe Campany o el thve transaotions miematly fowever, the company s procored the Stroctured Digitel Ontatese (SO0 safrwmre as
mandated under fequiation 3(5) mnd 3{6} of the SER (Prohibition af insider frading) Requlations, 2075 ayonthe date of thisneport,

. Whistle blower and Yigil Mechanism policy:

GEE Limited has put in place a mechanism of reporting illegal or unethical behavior Employees are free to report violations of laws, rules;
regulations or unethical conduct to thelr immediate supervisor/notified persons, The eports received from any employee will be
reviewed by the Audit Committee, It is affirmed that ne person has been denled access to the Aodit Commitiee In this respect, The
Directors and senior management are to maintain confidentiality of such reporting and ensure that the whistleblowers are not subjected
toany discriminatory practice, Thesaid policy has boen also put up on the website of GEE Limited at the following link:

hikims:! fvewrws geelimited, comicode of canduct

d.  GEE Limited bas complied with the Mandatory requirements regarding the Board of Directors of Directors, Audit Committee, other Board
of Directors Committees and refevant disclosures as required under the provisions of the Listing Regulations.

Thestatus of compliance with respect to the non-mandatory requisements under the provisions afthe Listing Regulations are as follows:

I. Shareholders’ Rights:
Un-audited quarterly financial results are sent tothe stock exchanges and published in the new spapers as per the Listing

Requlations,

i, Modified opinion(s) inauditreport:
There are no guatifications in the Auditor's Report on the financlal statements.

jii. Reportingofintarnalauditor:
The Internal Auditor, whenever appointed, directly reports to the Audit Committes.

o, Hedgingof Risk:

Company does not have materal exposire to foreign exchanae and thiere |s a natural hedging party avaltable in terms of exports made by
GEE Limited.

In respect of price risk of raw matedals used for manufacturing purposes the same Is taken care of as per the Industry requirement,

7. Disclosuresof the Compliances:
GEE Limited has disdosed about the Compliance of regulations in respect of Corporate Governance under the Listing Regutations on its
wehsite: fittps:/ . geelimited com/investor info
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CEO/CFO/Chaiman ertification:

Chief Financial Officer have Issued necessary certificate in accordance with Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations for the financial year
ended March 31, 2025, and the same s annexed as Annexure Vil and forms part of the Annual Report.

The Board of Directors has laid down a Code of Conduct and Ethics for all Board of Directors Members and Senlor Management Personnel of
GEE Limited. The code has been drculated to all the Board of Directors Members and senior management and the same is available on GEE
Limited's vrebsite at the following link:-

All Board of Directors Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct during the financial
year 2024-25. Declaration by Managing Director and Chairman is annexed and forms part of the Annual Report,

12,

The Quarterly, Half yearly and Annual Results of GEE Limited are published in newspapers
iz

The Business Standard
Wavakal

For the quarter(s) ended:
a, June3n, 2024

b. September 30, 2024

c. December3?, 2024

d. March31,2025

In cnmpllance with Heguiatfnn 46 of the Listing Regulations, GEE Limited is maintaining a website |e,

. £ stor-info . containing financial information, shareholding pattern, compliance with corporate:
qwemanr.e mntan:t hwfnnnannu nf fhe des:gmte:l officials of GEE Limited who are responsible for assisting and handling investor
grievances, GEE Limited updates the contents of the website on a reqular basis,

There were no preseritations made to Institutional [nvestors.

General Shareholder Information:

a,  AnnualGeneral Meeting to be held via Video Conferending:
Date: 26th Septomber, 2025
Time: 11.30 AM.
Deamed Venue: Plot No. E-1, Road Ne.7, Wagle Industrial Estate, Thane- 400604, Maharashtra, India.
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b.  Calendarof FinandalYear: 2025-26

GEE Limited follows April- March as the financial year.

First Quarterty Unaudited Results - Within 45 days of the end of the quarter
Second Quartedy Unaudited Resolis - Within 45 days of the end of the quarter
Third Quartery Unaudited Results Within 45 days of the end of the guarter
| Audited Yearly Results for the Year Ended 31" March, 2026 - Within 60 days of the end of the quarter

€. Dividend:
With a view to cansorve resources, your directors thought it is prudent not to recommend any dividend for the financial year under
TEVEEW,

d. ListingonStock Exchange at:

The Bquity Shares of GEELimited are fisted at;

I) BSELimited - Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai— 400001
Mote: Listing fees have been paid to the above Stock Exchanges for the year 2024-25,

il | SOAEN
ISIN INECGA4H01021

8. Market price Data-
The monthly highand low quotations and volume of shares traded at the BSE Limited during the financial year 2024-245 are given below;

Stock Price
For the penod; April 1,202 to March 378025

Month, Yiear

Apr, 224 14495 12815
May, 2024 - 13750 . 103.60
lum, 2024 - 12930 . 109.25
lul, 2024 - 141.80 . 117.50
Aug, 2024 14565 | 11125
Sep, 2024 202.90 | 145.65
Oat, 2024 | 189.70 | 148.00
Mov, 2024 - 17935 | 135.00
Dec, 2024 - 163.00 | 136.10
lan, 2025 - 145.85 | 12005
Feb, 2025 15225 116.00
Mar, 2025 13835 113.40
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f. Liquidity:

Shares of GEE Limited are actively traded on B5E as is seen fram'the volume of shares indicated in the table containing stock market
data and hence ensure good liquidity for the investars,

g.  Registrartolssee and Share Transfer Agents:
GEE Limited has engaged the services of MUFG Intime India Pvt. Ltd {Formery known as Link lntime India Put. Ld), a SEBI registered
Registrar as its Share Transfer Agents for procassing the transfers, sub-division, consalidation, Splitting of Securities, etc. The requests
for transfers, sub-division, conselidation, sphitting of securities, demat and remat should be sent directly 1o MUFG Intime India Pvt. Lid
(Formerly known as Link Intime Indla Pyvt. Ltd), Shareholders have the option to.open their accounts with either NSDLor CDSLas GEE
Limited has entered into Agreements with both these Depositories:

h.  ShareTransfer System:
GEE Limited has appeinted a comman Registrar tor the physical transfer and dematerialization of shares

Presently the share transhes which are recefved in physical form are processed by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent and
approved by the Stakeholders Relationship Committes of the Board of Directors and the same are placed before Soard of Directors
Meeting, Share cerificates are reqistered and retumed within the stipulated time of 15 days from the date of receipt, subject to
transfer instruments beirg valld and complete in all respects. Physical Shares recorded for dematenalization are processed and
completed within the stipulated time if the documents are complete in all respects.

GEE Limited obtains from a Company Secretary in Practice, half yearly cerdificates of Compliance with the Share transfer falities as
required under relevant regulations issued by Securities of Exchange Board of Directors of India and files a copy of cenificate with the
Stock Exchanges,

I Secretarial Audit for Reconciliation of Share Capital;

A qualified Practicing Company Secretary carried out the Secrétarial Audit to recancile the total admitted equity capital with National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL and the Central Depository Services {India) Limited (COSL) and the total issuedipald-up fisted
equity capital of GEE Lim fted,

The Secretarial Audit Report confirms that the total issued/paid-up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical
farm and the dematerialization form

jo  Outstanding GDRs/ADRS Warrants or any Convertible instruments and their impact on equity:
GEE Limited does not have any oststanding GDRs' ADRS warrants /convertible instrumenis.

k.  Distribution of Shareholding:
I, Theshareholding distribution of equity shares as of 315t March, 2025 is given below;

M, of Sharehelders Ha, of Shaehalders

1 1- 1000 3838 342639 1.31
2| 1001-2000 - 312 ' 232836 - 0.89
1| 2001-4000 ' 214 ' 323764 ' 1.24
4 A001-6000 81 | 207911 - 0.80
. | 6001-8000 ' 39 ' 141083 | 0.54

._E_ £001-10000 | 36 - 165317 ' 0.63
. ' 10001- 20000 | 82 | 641845 ' 2.46
. - 20001 and above | 125 - 23933077 ' 92.09

| Total ' 4727 - 25988466 ' 100.00
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Shareholding patternason 31° March 202 5;

Mo, of Shares held

% of Share hokding

GWELD
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1. | Corporate Bodies (Promoter Co) 63,76,333 24.54
2. | Uearing Members 412 0.01
3. | Other Bodies Corporate 21,18.151 B.15
4 Hindu Undivided Family 3.10,520 1.1
g | Nationalised Banks 1.320 0.01
.| Non-Hesident Indins SB86 0.19
2| Non-Resident (Non Repatriable) 30,788 032
Public 63,32, 343 2437
Promoters 1,02,47 257 39.43
H_ 2 L= 1elr =3
| Body Corporate - Ltd Liability Partnership B _1_353 ﬂ-m
11' | FFI (Corporate) - | 3,55,053 1.37
" | Investor Education and Protection Fund 1.23.597 0.47
12
| Systemically Imporant - NEFC _ 4{}2'.-‘{] 0.6
13. TOTAL 2,59,88, 466 100.00
I, Dematerialization of equity Shares:
As.on March 31, 2025, 99 60 % of GEE Limited's total equity shares representing 2, 58,484,215 shares are held in dematerialized form and
the balance 0.40% representing 1,04, 251 shares are in physicat form.
m.  PlantLocations (Manufacturing Units)
Thane Plot No. E-1, Road No. 7, Wagle Industrial Estate, Thane - 400604, Maharashira, India
Kalyan Plot No. B-12, MIDC, Kalyan Bhiwandi Road, Saravali, Kalyan - 421 311, Maharashtra, India
Kolkata Sankrail Industrial Park, NH-6, Village & PO. Kanduah P §. Sankrail, Howrah - 711 302, West Bengal, India

. Addressfor Correspandence;
For any query onAnnal Report o Investers Grievance Redressal, please contact the following:

GEE Limited

Fiod Mo, B/12, MIDC

Kalyan-Bhiwand Indusirial Area,
SatavaliVitlage, Kalyan-West,

Fin:d21317, Maharashtra, India

Phanena: | 91-2522-2803%8

Lentact Persan; Mes, Payal Agarwal
EmailiD: sharesiceeclimited .com

0. Investor Correspondence

MUFG Intime India Pt Ltd (Formierly known as Link Intime india Pyt Lid) | Investors’ concemed Depository Participant(s) and/or MUFG Inti

C 101, 247 Fark, LBS. Marg,
Wikhnofi (West), Mumbai, Maharashira, 400083

India Pwt. Ltd {Formerdy known as Link Intime india Pyt Ltd).
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i Unclaimed Dividends
Section 124 of the Act rmandates Companies to transfer dividend that has been undaimed for a period of seven years from the
unpaid dividend account to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (|EPF), In accordance with the following schedule, the
dividend for the years mentioned as follows, Ifundalmed withina period of seven years, will be transfemed to |EPF

Year | Due Dete of tencfer tn IEPY
| 201718 26 Oct 2025

Members who have sofar not en-tashed their dividend warrants/DD are requested to write to GEE Limited/Registrar to claim the
same, to avoid transfer to 1EPF,

Members are also requested to note that in accordance with Section 124(6) of the Act read with the IEPF Rules, as amended, all
the shares in respect of which dividend has remained unpaidiunclaimed for seven consecutive years or more are required to be
transferred to an IEFF Demat Account.

Wembers are requested to note that no claims lie against GEE Limited in respect of the undlaimed dividend amount andfor shares
transferred to lEPE Authority pursuant to the said Rules: For the information of shareholders, the company regularly uploads the
details of unpaid and unclaimed dividend on the website of the company, as mandated by Investor Education and Protection
Fund (Upleading of information tegarding Unpaid and Unclaimed amount lying with Companies) Riles, 2012, Sharsholders
may refer the same for information pertaining to their unclaimed dividends

4. Subsidiary (ompany:
GEE Limited has no subsidiary and hence provisions for fummishing specfic information are not applicable.

15. PCS Certificate for Directors has not debarred or disgualified from being appointed orcantinuing as directors:

Certificate from a Company Secretary In Practice, Mi.Deep Shukla, Proprietor of M/fs, Deep Shukla & Assodates (FCS Mo, 5652), canfirming
that none of the directors on the Beard of Directors of GEE Limited have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing
as directors of companies by Securities angd Exchangs Board of India/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority, is
annexed and forms partof the Report on Corporate Governance

16. Total faas for all services paid by the fisted entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basls, to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network
firm/network entity:

Statutory Auditors Remonaration foe financial year 2024-25 was approximately R, 7,00,000/-

17. Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women al Workplace {Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal] Act, 2073:

Thedisciosiere under The Seximl Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Hedressal} Act, 2003 have been provided in the Director's Report. During
fimviarncal year JE4-25, nocasesaf evnual hisassment mparted

18 Disclosure of the Compliance with Corperate Governance :
The Company has complied with the Reguiations 17 20,2223 244, 75- 77 and dateses (B) to ([)of sub reguiations (2) of Requlations 26 of SEBI
(Listing Obligation and Disciasure Requitements) Requlations 2015, during the finandal year ended 31 st March 2125 Requiations 21 af SEBI
(Listing Oibligation and Disdosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are not applicable to the (omparny

Forand on behalfof the Board of Directors of

GEELIMITED

50/- S0/-

Mr. Umesh Agarwal Mr. Om Prakash Agarwal
DIN: 01209962 DIN:01261429



G

64th ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 GWELD

SEAL CF TRLLY

(Pursuant 1a Regulation 34(3) and Schedule ¥ Para C Clause (10M) of SEBE (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)
To,
The Members
Gee Limited
Flot Mo E-1, Road Mo 7 Wagle
Industrial Estate, Thane

Maharashtra 400604

We have examined the rolevant disclosures provided by the Directars (as enlisted in Table A) of GEE LIMITED having CIN:
LY94GIMHTIB0PLCOT 1878 and having registered office at Plot Mo E-1, Read No 7 Wagle Industrial Estate, Thane Maharashira 400604 IN
(hereinafter referred to as ‘GEE Limited') for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34 (3}read with Schedule Y Para C
clause 10 (i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

In our opinion and to the best of our information and documents available on the website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Stock Exchanges
as on 31" March, 2025, and according to the verifications {including Dizectors Identification Mumber (DIN) status al the porntal

W, mea. gav.inlas consldered necessary and based an the disclasures of the Directars, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board
of Directors of GEE Limited (as enlisted in Table A) have been debamed or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Ditectors of the
companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs orany such other Statutory Authonity

Original Date of Appointment

1 Shankar Lal Agarwal 0205377 /0472019
i 2 - Sanwarmal Agarwal | 01007594 - 01/01/2015
| 3 - Om Prakash Agarwal 1 01261429 - 27102020
i B - Umesh Ramkishan Agarwal | 01209962 - 2112020
| 5 . Amit Agarwal | Oee38T | 01/04/2019
| L - Sujit Sen | 01248228 - 12/02/2027
| 7 - Milind Bharat Parckh I 00001513 - 12202
l 8 - Vinod Kumar Aggarwal | G0172615 - 060472027
| 9 | Meelam Tater | 07653773 | 14/08/2024

For: M/s, Deep Shukla & Associates
Company Secretaries

Deep Shukla

Practicing Company Secretaries
(Peer Hewlew Cerfifiorte Mo 2003720221
FC5: 5652, CP: 5364

LIBIN: FR05652G0071 082640

Date: 26/08/2025

Flace: Mumbai
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CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIAMCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AS PER THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER [V OF SECURITIES
AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF INDIA {LISTING OBLIGATION AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

To thie members of GEE Limited

1. The Corporate Governance Report prepared by GEE Limited {"the Company”), contalns details as stipulated In reguiations 17 ta 27 and
clauses (B to {i) of requlation 46{2} and para C and D of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disciosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (*the Listing Regulations"] ('applicable criteria’} with respect to Corporate
Governance for the year ended March 31, 2025, This certificate is required by the Company for annual submission to the Stock exchange and
ter b st to the Shameholders of the Company.

Managements' Responsibility

4. The compliance with the terms and conditions contained in the corporate governance is the responsibility of the Management of the
Company including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents,

Ruditor's Responsibility

3. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the
conditlons of Carporate Governance. Itls neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financlal statements of the Company

4. Pursuant tothe requirements of the Listing Regulations, it is'our responsibility to provide a reasonable assurance whether the Company has
complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations for the yearended 315t March, 2024

5. We conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidange Note on Reports or Certificates for Speclal Purposes (Revised 2018)
(the '‘Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (1CAL), The Guidance Note requires that we comply with
the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by ICAL

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard an Quality Contral (SQC) 1, Quality Contral dor Firms that
Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Infarmation, and Other Asserance and Related Services Engagements,

Dpinion

A, [noropeaban, and 10 the beit of our infarmation and according te-explanations given 1o us, we cortily that GEE Limited has complied with the condithons of Carparate
Gowornance & stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Requlations, excent for certain Nan-Compliances which are detaibed in the Secetarial fudit Report (ME-3)
farming part ot the Annual Feport for the financial yearunderreview,

T Westatethat such compliance |5 peither an asstrance s fa the fisture viability of GEE Limited nar the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of GEE Limited.

Restriction on use

B, The certificate 15 addressed and pravided to the members of GEE Limeed salely for the purpose of enabling GEE Limited to comgply with the requirement of the Listing
Regubations, and (€ shatld not be wsed by any other petsan ar far any othar purprse. Sccordingly, we do not accept orassums any lebdivy of aty duty af cane for any ether
purpeseorfoany other pesson to whom this certificate i shawn orintowhose hands [fmay comewithout sur priarconsent in writing.

For: M/s. Deep Shukla & Associates
CompanySecretaries

Deep Shukla

Practicing Company Secretaries
{Peeriteview Cartificmte No., 20932022
FCS:5652;CP: 5364

UDIN: FO05652G00T082717

Date: 26/08/2025

Plaoe: Mumbai
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

Declaration by the Managing Director and Chief Finandal Officer (CFO) pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of (Listing Obligations and Disdosure Reguirements)
Regulations, 2015

We hereby certify that: -
A, We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, and that to the bast of
their knowledge and befief:

1) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be
misleading;
21 These statements tegether present a true and falr view of GEE Limited's affalrs and are in compliance with existing accounting
standards, applicable lawz and
requlations.

B.  Thereare, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by GEE Limited during the financial year ended March 31,
2025, which are fraudulent, iliegal or violating GEE Limited's code of conduct,

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated the
effectiveness of internal control Systems of GEE Limited pertaining 1o finandal reparting and we have diselosed to the auditors and the
audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal contrals, if any, of which we are aware and the steps they have
taken or propose to take to rectify these defidencies

0. We have indicated to the auditars and the Audit committes:
1) Significant changes in internal control over financial reponting during the finanoal year ended March 31,2025,
2} significant changes in gccounting pelices during thie finandal year ended March 31,2025 and that the same have been disclosed in the

notes to the financial statements;and

3} instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employes
hawving a significant rale in GEE Limited's internal control system aver financial reporting.

Forand on behali of the Board of Directors of

GEELIMITED

sy S0/-

Mr.Umesh Agarwal Mr.Om Prakash Agarwal
DIN: 07209962 DIN: 01267429
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@ SAPD& ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS N
i, |Littie RBudsel Street
At Flaoe, % llokh - 700071

PMhone: 4003-5301, 4050-585

E-mail : sapd. associes 20 LHRgma:l.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF GEE LIMITED

Report on the Indian Accounting Standard (“Ind AS") Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,
2025

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of GEE Limited [ “the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet
asat 31 March 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including ather comprehensive incame), Statement
of Cash Flows and Statement of changes in eguity for the year then ended, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatary infarmation.

In our opinian and to the best of our information and according to the explanations glven to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information reguired by the Companies Act 2013 (the"Act”) in the manner so
required and give atrue and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
Indian Accounting Standard prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind A5") of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31, 2025, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in eguity for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (5As) specified under section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditar's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants (“ICAI") of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have ohtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinien an the

financial statements.

Emphasis of matter

We draw your attention to Note No. 54,3 of the financial statement which states that the balance in trade
receivables, trade payable, other receivables, Loans & advances & deposits are subject to confirmation and
reconciliation. The management, however, does not expect any material changes on account of
confirmation/reconciliation,

We draw attention to MNote No 54.1 that a petition was filed in NCLT, Mumbai Bench by Mr. Om Prakash
Apgarwal and Umesh Ramkishan Agarwal the whole time directors and Mrs. Payal Agarwal, chief finance
officer, vide case no. CP/306(MB) 2023 of oppression and mismanagement against the Company, With
reference to the above matter, the Promoters of the Company have mutually agreed to amicably resolve all
past issues among the concerned parties through a settlement formalized by way of consent terms executed

A8
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on 19" April, 2025,

The said consent terms and a withdrawal memo was placed on record before NCLT, Mumbai, an 9% May,
2025, whereby applicants seek withdrawal of the Company petition. In view thereof, the NCLT, Mumbai has
disposed of CP Na. 306/MB/2023 as settled, All interlocutory applications filed thereunder stand disposed of
conseguently, Any interim relief granted to either of the parties in terms of earlier orderls) stand vacated.

Our audit opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters {'KAM') are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
aur audit of the financial statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025, These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Sr. Key Audit Matter Auditor's Response

o

1. | Disputed excise duty matter —Rs.2.07Crores | Qur procedure in connection ‘with company's
The Company had imported certain materials | cjaim regarding CENVAT Credit and refund of Rs,
in the year 2008-09 where the ‘excise = 307 Crores paid under protest involved examining
autharities had demanded reversal of CENVAT | the submissions made by the company's excise
credit of Rs. 4.02 Crores. Under the chnsultants,
instructions  from excise authorities  the
Company reversed under protest Rs. 3.00 In light of the above, we assessed different orders
Crores CENVAT credit availed during 2008-09. received by the company pertaining to this case.
Thereafter the company filed an appeal with As on 27.06.25, the case stands reverted back to
CESTAT claiming refund of Rs, 2.07 Crores e original authority and a refund application
excess credit reversed by authorities. The | fled tothe respective farum.
appeal was heard on numerous hearings.
Based on legal and subject matter expert
views, the company expects considerable
amount as relief in the above appeal case with
CESTAT. The Assistant registrar CESTAT
Mumbai via order dated 03/06/25 reverted
the case back to original authority, The
Company has filed a refund application of 27th
of June, 2025 ta the respective forum.
{Refer Note Mo.d1.1 — Contingent Liabilities
and Cammitments)

2 | The company's scrutiny assessment for | We have examined the grounds of appeal and

assessment year 2016- 17 was completed in
December 2018 and DCIT has ralsed tax
demand of Rs. 70.96 lakhs against which the
company has filed an appeal with CIT Appeals
-1, Thane an 14" lanuary, 2019.The DCIT has
disallowed the company's claim in respect of

statement of facts filed by the company with QT
Appeals -1, Thane in consultation with tax experts.
We have alsao reviewed wvarious judgments
including High Court judgments which have gone
against the revenue department in similar facts.
There are few cases which have been determinad
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long-term capital gain from sale of flat
{property held for sale in books of accounts).
The tax department's contention is that the
period of capital gain is to be calculated from
the date of registration of purchase
agreement of the flat and not from the date of
allotment letter given by the builder, The

in favor of the revenue department. The no. of
judgments against the revenue department out-
numbers the ones jn their favor. We finally
concluded that we should go by the Honorable
Bombay High Courtand ITAT decisions which have
gone against the revenue department. In light of
the above, the company’s disclosure in this matter

company's tax consuftant has apined that
there are several precedents confirming the
company's claim and that they can expect a
favorable outcome in this appeal matter, Cut
of the total liability of Rs.70,96 lakhs, Rs.14.20
lakhs was adjusted with the refund in the
A.¥.2016-17, Rs. 14.48 |akhs was adjusted in
AY. 2018-19 and Rs. 42,79 lakhs was adjusted
in AY. 2023-24. (Refer Note Mo. 41.1 -
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments)
I Company has continued the earlier Provision
of 1.35 crores made prior to FY 2024-2025 and
created an additional provision amounting to
Rs. 2,27 crores on trade receivables and Rs.
2.22 crores on advances during the year. Trade
mainly comprised of
receivables from corporates and other buyers
and advances to group companies, We have
identified impairment of trade receivables/
advances as a significant audit matter on
account of the significant judgment and
estimate involved. These factors include
custamer's ability and willingness to pay the
outstanding amounts, past due receivables,
financial and economic difficulties of
custorners. This assessment is done for each
customer resulting from possible defaults over
the expected life of the receivables. Based an
this assessment, impairment in  trade
receivables/ advances is determined on the
basis of trade receivables/ advances
outstanding for more than 365 days and
assessment of individual trade receivable/
advances separately by the management.
{Refer note No 54.2)

Receivables are

is adequate.

I We have EIIIFI-.”EIj. the fu.lll.;.lwing audit procedures

in this area, among others to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence:

¥

B

Obtained an understanding of the systems,
processes and controls implemented by the
Company for measurement of impairment of
Trade Receivable/ advances.

Evaluated the Company's measurement of
impairment of trade receivable/ advances
accounting  policies by  comparing  with
applicable sccounting standards.

We have evaluated the design of key internal
financial controls and operating effectiveness
of the relevant key controls with respect to
trade receivables/ advances,

Tested manual journals posted to revenue and
trade receivable during the year to identify
unusual items.

Scrutinized sales returns/reversals/credit notes
recorded in the general ledger subsequent to
year-end to identify any significant unusual
itemis,

Obtaining understanding on how the Company
establishes an allowance for doubtful debts
and impairment represents (ts estimate of
incurred losses in respect of trade receivabie/
adyances,

We have evaluated the historical accuracy of
impairment for trade receivables on a sample
basis by examining the actual write-offs, the

reversal of previous recorded allowance and
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Valuation of inventories

The Company is having Inventory of Rs.
7.564.21 lakhs as on 31 March 2025,
Inventories are to be valued as per Ind AS 2.
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and

net realizable value. The management applies
judgment In determining the appropriate
provisions against inventory of Stores, Raw
Material, Work in progressand Finished Goods
based upon a detalled analysis of old
inventory, net realizable value below cost
based vpon future plans for sale of inventory.
To ensure that all inventories owned by the
entity are recorded and recorded inventories
axisl as at the vear end and valuation has been
done correctly, inventory valuation has heen
| considered as Key audit matters,

We obtained

new allowances recorded in the current year.
We have verified the calculation done in
determining the total impairment loss on
doubtful debts and advances.

- We have checked the ageing analysis (including

testing of information produced by entity-1PEs),
on a sample basis and subseguent receipt of
the trade receivables, to the source
documents, including bank statements.
Assessed  the adeguacy of the related
disclosures in the financial statements with
reference to trade receivable as per relevant
accounting standards,

assurance  over  the

appropriateness  of the  management's

assumptions applied in calculating the value of
the inventories and related provisions by:

- Verifying the effectiveness of key inventory
controls operating over inventories; including
sample based physical verification.

- Reviewing the document and other record

related to physical verification of inventories

done by the management during the year.

Verify  that

accordance with Ind AS 2

Comparing the net realizable value to the cost

inventories are  walued in

il

price of inventories to check for completeness
of the associated provision.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
Information camprises the information Included In the Company's annual report but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors' report thereon, The company's annual report is expected to be made
available ta us after the date of this auditor's repart.

Our opirion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusian thereon. The Company's annual report is expected to be made available ta us
after the date of this auditor's report. In connection with our audit of the fimancial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, In daing sa, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowladge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibility of Management and those charged with governance for the Financial Statement

The Financial Statements have been approved by the Company's Board of Directors. The Company's Board
of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the State of affairs, loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, changes in eguity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes responsible the maintenance of the adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, management 15 responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the gaing
concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends o liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whofe are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accardance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit, We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaln audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143{3){i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinien on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by managemeant.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based an the audit evidence abtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
canditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern,
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclasures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
miodify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditoers’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to céase to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in ageregate,
makes it probable that the sconomic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial
Statements may be influenced, We consider quantitative materiality and gualitative factors in (1) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amang other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,; including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during aur audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current pericd and are therefare the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determing that a matter should

not be communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of doing so would reasonably be
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expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 {‘the Order') issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicahle,

As required by Section 143{3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledze and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the accompanying Financial Statement;

In our opinlon, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including ather comprehensive income), the Statement
of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account;

In our opinian, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act:

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disquallfied as on 31st March, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) af the Act;

With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to gur separate Report in Annexure B;

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration pald by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act;

With respect to the other matters te be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Bule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended Tn our opinion-and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

L The Company does not have any pending litigations, other than those disclosed In the Financial
Statements; which would materially impact its financial position. Refer note ne. 41.1 to the financial
statemen has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position of the financial
staterments.

. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for
material foreseeable losses, If any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

il There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred to the |nvestor Education
and Protection Fund.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other
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b)

0

sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any personis) or entitylies), including foreign
entities ["the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {“the Funding
Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether directly ar indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behall of the Funding Party | 'Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures performed as considerad reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the representations
under suby clause (1) and (i) of rule 11{e}, as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misslatement.

v. The Campany has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31" March, 2025.

v. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for

maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended 31st March; 2025 which has a feature of

recording the audit trall (edit log) facility and the same has not been enabled throughout year for

relevant transactions recorded in the software's. So, we are unable to comment an the same,

ForSAPD & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRMN:-327271E

CA Sankar Garg

Partner

Place: Kolkata Membership. No: 069240
Date: 31st day of July, 2025 UDIN: 250692 40BMI0F 19542
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Gee Limited, on
the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025,

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that

a

b}

el

d)

2}

In respect of the Campany's Property, Plant and Eqguipment and Intangible Assets:

&  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative details
and situation of Praperty, Plant and Equipment and capital work in progress.
8. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets,

According to the infarmation and explanation given to us and an the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, the company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property,
Plantand Equipment by which all Property, Plant and Equipment are verified in a phased manner over
a period of three years, in accordance with this program, certain property, plant and equipment were
verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reascnable having
regards to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. We are informed that no material
discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, the title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where
the company {5 the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)
disclosed in the financial statements, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet
date.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
recards of the Company, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment
(Including Right of Use Assets) and intangible assets during the year.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated during the year or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act,
1928 and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i){e} of the Order is not
applicable.

a} The inventory, except stock lying with third parties has been physically verified by the management

during the year, For inventory lying with the third parties at the year-end date, written confirmation
have been obtained. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures
and coverage as followed by the management were appropriate. No material discrepancies were
noticed on verification between the physical stock and the book records that were more than 10
percent in the aggregate of each class of the Inventory.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the Company, the company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees In aggregate from banks on the basls of security of current assets, In our opinion, the quarterly
returns or statements filed by the company with such banks are in agreement with the books of
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accounts of the Company, except few differences reported in note 24.3 to the financial statement.

il. |z} According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has granted unsecured loans
and advances in the nature of loans, or given guarantee, or provided security to any other entity,

[4) The details of such loans or advances and guarantees or security to subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and

Associates are as follows:
Figures in Lacs

Guaraniees Security | Loans Adva nees
Apggregate amount granted /fprovided during
the year
- Subsidiaries Nil Nil Nil Nil
- Joint Ventures mii il il il
- .ﬁ.ssnclates - ) mil Ml il mil
Balance Outstanding as at balance sheet
date in respect of above cases
= Subsidiaries Mil mil Wil mil
= Joint Ventures il il il Wil
= Associates il il | Mil il

AND
{B) The details of such loans and advances to parties other than subsidiary, joint ventures and

associates are as follows:
Figures in Lacs

Guarantees | Security | Loans | Advances
Agpgregate amount granted/provided during '
the year
- QOthers Nil Nil Mil 221.E8
Balance Outstanding as at balance sheet
date in respect of above cases
Others NIl il Wil 221.88

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions relating to advances in the
nature of loans amounting to X 221.88 lacs, granted to the parties are prejudicial to the interest of
the Company on account of the fact that the loans were extended without adequate security, or
without charging any interest rate comparable to market rate. Furthermore, the Company has
recognized a provision for expected credit loss / doubtful recovery amounting to % 1.88 lacs on
such advances during the year, which reinforces the concem that the terms and conditions of such
advances were not commercially prudent.

€ According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed by us, the loans and advances in the nature of loan provide as above, no schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest have been stipulated. In the absence of
stipulation of repayment terms we are unable to comment on the regularity of repayment of principal and payment
of interest. Furthermore, the company has recognized a provision for expected credit loss / doubtful
recavery amounting to % 1.88 lacs on such advances which indicaes potential isue with
recoverability.
(d) As reporting under clause 3{iii}{c) is not confirmative, the reporting under clause 3 (iii)(d) of the Order
is not applicable ta the company.

(e} As reporting under clause 3{iii){c) is not confirmative, the reporting under clause 3 (iii){e) of the Order
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is not applicable to the company.

if} Acearding to the infarmation explanation provided 1o us and based on the audit pracedures perfarmed
by us, the Company has granted loans and advances in the nature of loans repayable on demand or

without specifying any terms ar period of repayment. The details of the same are as follows:
Figures in Lacs

All Parties Promoters Related

| ) - Parties
Aggregate amount of Loans and advances in
nature of loans
- Repayable on demand (A) il il il
- Agreement does not specify any terms or | 221 88 Ml 221.88
period of repayment (B)

| Total [A+B) 221.88 Ml 221.88
Percentage of loans/ advances innature of | 100% 0% 100%

| loans to the total loans

i, In aur epinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of certain
advances in the nature of loans granted during the year. The Company has granted loans amounting

161.00 lakh to parties coverad under Section 185, without abtaining prior approval of the
shareholders by a special resclution, and without satisfying the prescribed exemption conditions. Such
transactions are, therefore, in violation of Section 185 of the Act. Further, such lgans have been
extended without charging interest, which is not in compliance with Section 186(7), which mandates
that loans should carry an interest rate not lower than the prevailing yield of a Government security
of corresponding tenure. The terms and conditions of the above loans, including the absence of
interest and inadequate documentation, appear to be prejudicial to the interest of the Company, and

no sufficient commercial justification was made available to us for review.

V. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which areé deemed to be
depaosits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. No order has been passed by the Company Law Board, or
MNational Company Law Tribunal, or Reserve Bank of India, or any Court, or any other Tribunal, in this
regard. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{v) of the Order is not applicable,

i, We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the company pursuant to the rules
prescribed by the Central Government of India for maintenance of cost records under Section 148{1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of its manufactured goods and are of the opinion that, prima
facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made & maintained, We have, however, not
carried out a detailed examination of such records with a view to determine whether they are accurate
or complete. Cost Audit Report for the financial year 2024-25 is not been provided to us,

i, In respect to statutory dues-:

3] In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees®State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax,
Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues
applicable Lo it with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no disputed amounts payable
as on 31* March 2025 for a period more than six months from the date they become payable except
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payment of Provident Fund of Rs, 20,73,860.

bl According tothe information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the following dues have not been deposited as on March 31,2025 on account of disputes are

given below:

'5r. | Name of Statute | Periodto | Liability = Pre-Deposit | Net Liability | Forum where dispute
No. which it (in Rs.) {in Rs.) {in Rs.) is pending
relates |
Customs Act 1962 | 2008-09 "1,{]2,0‘9,529. 1,777,500 £,432,129 | CESTAT, Mumbai l
' 2 | TheW.B.Taxon | 2012-13 | 65,51,573 - 65,51,573 | West Bengal
Entry of Goods Lo Taxation Tribunal
into Local Areas 2013-14
Act, 2012 .
3 | Central Excise 2008-09 | 40,249,979 30,858,313 | 9,391,666 | CESTAT, Mumbai
Act,1944* _ '
4 | Customs Act 2011-12 &. - - - CESTAT, Kolkata l
1962+ 12-13
5 | ESIC 2011-12 & 145,000 - 145,000 | Industrial Court ’
12-13 Thane
' 6 | Esic 2009-2011 1,480,258 | 740,000 | 740,000 | Industrial Court
| | Thane
7 | Income Tax Act Various 15,66,328 - 15,66,328 | Rectification with
1561 years TRACES/
(TDS) per Income Tax
TRACES . Department |
8| Income Tax Act 2020-21 | 10,55.500 - CIT-(A) Commissianer
1961 4,16,817
AY 2021-22 Refund Ad). Against AY 2020-21 | 2,681,490 !
Dues
AY 2023-24 Refund Adj. Against AY 2025—21 3,57,193 I
Dues |
' 9 | CGST Act, 2017 | 201819 | 1,78,428 | : 1,78,428 | Deputy Commissioner
. of State Tax, Thane
10| CGST Act, 2017 2017-18 8,639,257 65,195 8,04,062 Commissioner of
Central Excise
. (Appeals), Kolkata |
11| Central Excise Act-| 2009-10 | 1,27,004 | 12,700 1,14,304 | Commissioner '
1944 2010-11 : (Appeals), Haldia
12 | Income tax Act 2016-17 70,96,763  14,20,000 CIT-(A})-1 Thane
1961*** _ _ _
AY 2018-19 Refund adj, Against AY 2016-17 | 14,47,683 '
Dues
AY 2023-24 Refund Adj, Against AY 2016-17 | 42,29,080
Dues

Liability as mantioned above are excluding of interest & penalty.

Note- We have not receved pre-deposit documents for the casesmentioned in points &, 10 and 11 above.

* Subseguent order being passed and reverted back to original authority on 3rd June, 2025 and
appeal was allowed in favor of the Company, A refund appeal was submitted on 27th June, 2025,

i |
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**The order in refation to Central Excise Act, Kolkata, was infavar of Company, Application for refund of appeal amount
depasited earlier has not been submitted by the company to therespective department.

2 Out of the total liability of Rs. 70.96 lakhs, Rs:14.20 lakhs was adjusted with the refund in the AY.2016-17,
Rs. 14.48 lakhs was adjusted in AY. 201819 and Rs. 42,29 lakhs was adjusted In AY. 202324,

yii. — According to the information and explanations given by the management and based on the procedures
carried out during the course of our audit, we have not come across any transactions not recorded in
the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Incorme Tax Act, 1961,

a) According to the infarmation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the recerds of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings or
in the payment of interest thereon to any lender,

b According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution ar government or government autharity.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company has
not abtained any term loan during the year and the outstanding term loans at the beginning of the
year were applied for the purpose far which the loans were obtained,

4| According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short- term basis have been
used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

¢ According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity ar
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures.

fi According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
thie records, the Company has not raised any loans during the year on pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, associates or joint venture companies.

A
a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company has not raised money by way of Initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and accordingly reporting under clause 3(x){a) of the

Order is not applicable.
b

In our gpinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company has net made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures {fully, partly or optionally convertible) during the year.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the order is not applicable.

a) Based on the examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information
and explanations given to us, considéring the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on
Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the course of audit.

b) According to infarmation and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section {12) of Section
143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form-ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the period covered
by our audit.
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c} According to the information and explanation given to us, including the representation made by the
management of the company, there are no instances of whistle blower complaints received during
the year by the Company.

Wi, According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xli) of the Order is not applicable.

T In our opimon and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered
into by the Company with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the Financial
Statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

AN,

a) Based on infarmation and explanation provided to us and our audit procedures, in our apinion, the
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the sizeé and nature of its business,
b) ‘We have not been provided internal audit report for the financial year 2024-25,

W In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Coempany has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable.

.,

al  The Company is neither registered nor reguired to be registered under Section 45-14 of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(a), 3(xvi)(b) and 3i{xvi){c) of the
Order is not applicable,

b}  The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3{xvi){b} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.,

c}  The Company is nat a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(uvi){c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group and accordingly, reporting under clause
Iuvi)ld) of the arder is not applicable.

wi. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

wil There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Yes, the previous statutory auditars,
R Dokania & Co., Chartered Accountants, have resigned from their position during the year, with effect
from 13th May 2025,

As per their resignation letter, the auditors cited the following reasons for their resignation:
-impending change in management and control of the Company pursuant te a settlement agreement.
-Lack of mutual trust and confidence between the incoming management and the statutory auditors.

The incoming auditors have duly considered the Issues and circumstances outlined in the resignation
letter of the outgoing auditors before accepting the audit assignment.

s Accerding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information

i1
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accompanying the Financial Statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and
management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liahilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

#. The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and
there is no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VIl to
the Companies Act or special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (5] of Section
135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under Clause 3(xx) (a) and (b) of the Order are not
applicable.

For SAPD & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRMN:-327271E

CA Sankar Garg
Partner
Place: Kolkata Membership. No: 069240

Date: 31stday of July, 2025 UDIN: 2506592408MMF19542
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Annexure — B to the Independent Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,2013 ("the Act”)

We have audited the internal financlal contrals with reference to Financial Statements of GEE Limited (“the
Campany”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
far the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reperting
[IFCOFR) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and malntenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the arderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act,2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Qur responsibility |s to express an opinion an the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
Finamcial Statements of the company based on our audit. We conducted our audit inaccordance with the
Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance MNote"”) and
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
contrals with refarence to financial Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves perfarming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference ta Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of
Internal finandal controls with reference to Financlal Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit apinion on the Company's internal financial contrals with reference ta Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Campany's internal financial contral with reference to Financial Statements is a process designed to pravide
reasonable assurance regarding the rellability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that
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(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2} provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements |n accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3] provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In owr opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adeguate internal financial with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the criteria for internal
financial control with reference to Financlal Statements established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (1CA]).

For SAPD & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRMN:-327271E

CA Sankar Garg

Fartner

Place: Kolkata Membership. No: 069240
Date;31st day of July, 2025 UDIN: 250692408 MMF19542
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

; In Lacs
Particulars  Year Ended "~ Year Ended
March 2025 March 2024
I |Revenue from Operations 30 33;383.50 36,914.30
n | Oher Incomea 31 2721 TZ2.891
Il [Total Income (1 +11) 33.410.71 36,987.20

IV [Expenses:

Cosl of Materials Consumisd 32 25.889.88 28955 59
Purchase of Stock in Trade 33 35.22 450.76
Changes in Inventonas of Finished goods, Stock in
Trades and Wark In Progress 34 BOB.0D {(1.065.11)
Employaa Banafils Expanaas 35 2.431.89 1.980.07
Finance Costs 38 890.95 816.78
Depraciation and amorlization expensea ar 41555 A07.00
Other Expanses 38 4.655.61 5.641.43
Total Expensaes (V) 34,607.10 35,180.51
V [Profit before exceptional items &Taxes ( Il - IV ) {1.196.39) 1,806.69

V1 |Exceptional ltems

Vil | Profit Before Tax (V - VI) {1,196.39) 1,806.69
Vil | Tax Expanse: a9
Currant Tax - h32.88
Pravious Years Tax {53 .48) 0.19
Dafarred Tax (218.88) _(11:98)
Total Tax Expense (272.36) 521.12
IX [Profit after Tax { VIl - VIl ) (924.03) 1,285.57

X | Other Comprehensive Income (Net of tax)
{i} tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeaasurement of defined benefil of long term pilan 1173 {2.80)
Fevaluation of Man-Current investmeant through QCI {3.23) 1.89
{ii) Income tax effect on the above {2.11‘1] o018
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax) G6.36 {0.53)
Xl [Total Comprehensive Income for the year ( 1X + X ) [(917.67) 1,285.04
X1l |Earning Per Equity Share {Face value of Rs, 2/~ sach)
Basic & Diluted 40 ({3.56) 4.95
Fﬂsterial accounting policies 1-2
Motes 1o Accounls 3-55

Material Accounting Policies and Notes attached thereto form an Integral part of the Financial Statemeants.

As Par our attached Reporl of evan date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For SAPD & Associates

Charerad Accountants

Firm Registration No : 327271E

Umesh Agarwal Om Prakash Agarwal

Joint Managing Director Joint Managing Director
Sankar Garg DIN : 01209862 DIN - 01261429
Partner
M No : 069240 Payal Agarwal Seema Vyas

i ; CFO Company Secratary

UDIN : 25069240BMIOFI9542 DIN - 07198236 M Mo - ASO041
Place : Kolkata Place : Thane
Date : 31sl July 2095 Date : 31sl July 2025
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025
Parioulars i L:_:-.::s Im Locs
As at 3151 Az at 315t
March 2025 March 2024
. ASSETS
1 Non-Current Assets
(@) Property, Plant sl Eguipmant 3o Ja72.28 B.767.75
(B} Capital work-in-progress F 51 54 .08
(=) hhwesiment Properly 1 2417, B4 241784
feh) Cthar intangibla Assals Ak 263 J.er
(=) Right of Use Assels 7] 5,B0£.16 5,063.87
) Finanoial Ansats
{1} Ivestinenls Li 14.63 15.06
{ii) Cther Financ@ Assats B 223 &7 18D 22
() Mon Current Tax Asdats a 146,24 fd4.45
(5] Dther Mon-Current Assets 10 333.80 310,03
L 17 449,30 17.808.31
2 Current Assols
(&) lvveniorks 11 T. B4 .21 B.a20. 97
(&) Financial Assats
(i} Trades Recslvabilas 12 4 37612 5.098.63
{li)y Cash and Cash Equivalnnis 12 2u.B0 3597
L) Bank Balances otber han (6} above 14 366.58 36.08
{iv) Loans 18 Hip, 14.07
(w) Oiher Financial Seeats 16 2345 30.11
(o) Current tax assets [Met)] i7r 264 449 =
(o) Over Currant Assels 18 Bk D | a1 32
13, 675.308 14,848 22
Total Assots 31,124 688 12, 358 53
I ECUITY AMD LIABILITIES
1 Equity
(a) Equily Share Capital 18 S18.TT S18.TT
(b} her Equity 20 18,8635.00 19, 000 05
Total Equity B 1935477 | [ _20,428.83 |
Liabilithes
2 Non-Currant Liahilitias
() Financial Liabilitias
(i} Baorrowings 21 ea6.03 1.080.00
(&) Provison 22 30,14 I, ve
(e) Deferred Tax Liabiliies [Met] 23 175 | __=22BAn
1,027 .99 1,258.25
B Current Liabllities
(8] Financial Liaites
{i}) Barrowings 24 T 42, Ta T.OF1.37
{H} Trade Payvables =5
(@) Tolal oulstanding dues of micro and small enlerprises Gya.4a0 523,668
() Tatal putstanding duas of credilors othar than miene snd 1, 73582 1.B58 32
amall anterprisas
{ill) Ctiherr Fimanaial LimtEitios 25 S04 48 2412
() Dther Current Lisbilities 27 &YTaT 405.78
(o) Prowvison 28 181.47 G67.65
fel) Current Tax Liabilli=s [Mat] 29 | = __ 11T.55
10, 73192 10,568 45
Total Equity And Liabilitics 31 .124.53_ A2 3585 83
BMaterial accounting pollciss 1-2
Maotas o Accounts 3-65 i
Ilaatezr sl Aumur1rllkg'5:alm:|u:i and Motes attsched thereto forrn anontegral part of e Financial Stolemerts. 7
Ag Per our attached Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For SAPD & Associates
Chartared Accountants
Firm Registralion Mo @ 327271E
Umesh Agarwal (Om Prakash Agarwal
Joimt Managing Director loint Managing Director
Sankar Garg DiN - 012088962 DIN - 01261429
Phartnas Payal Agarwal
W LR ZFOD gtﬂ}rﬂ;:‘?l ;Y;:Cfr‘!a{‘y
R —_— = ar P
UDIN : 25069240BMJOFI9542 OIN - 071968236 M Mo -AS0041
Place : Kolkata Place : Thane
Date :31sl July 2025 Date :31st July 2025
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Eiwiumunt OF Charges In Equty o e yasr siced Hisi March 2055
Eruity Ehase Copltal {Fa. i Lass)
BMMLE aF M ‘Ilhfpﬂ nl.l‘.!- I‘!_B'.'ﬂ'
Agdylean), Chingis in Bty Sivs Cagiud dus 10 prior pariod sron S S
o fliad Bataniss i al Tl A 053 BT
LAdd Y sial: Chedine m Saly Sliive Caiie tuiin heyae -
Eislames os o Fisl March 2034 E18.77
Elimea as ot 15t Apell 2024 —r
Hadd TLeanl: Charauk in Bauly Shis Cacdtsl due b prier anod smor Lo
Riealaied balanod as al 16 An 2024 s,
g iLamel; Cherdus i Gty S Comin dorng (e s =
Betanca 0% 31 st March, 2083 ) —— R
Otbwr Equity
Parfioulars. . = L [ 5
R Reserios and Burplus. Compreiansiy
= Incomn
L Capatat o mm Tatsi
- Bietisiithicd. Ravaluniies Rataliied % H g
S Gareul Rusarvs - Capital M: ﬂl‘ﬂ'll'_ w Income
Tintarcn mp 4 st Apetl, 2021 [ETETS LR AT T FIERT HET LE AT EEKT] T Fa0 a1
Frafd fur thi yaer - - . - - 125657 - 128557
Ot Cispmbansiss nooms - - - i 41 ‘|0
[Teaul Commrahansiv Inanms far ih year : = 1283,08 A 18,
om0 v Eton resav 10 Raght 1o _
Lise fgzaln . _ - (188,25 P - (186:35)
Tenrsles Erem Ruvaksalion (s
Retained Eamings: ) - - - - - - -
- 200,00 . - . 210 1y a =
= 290.08 a5 35| : : gmi ngq
[ L0 77905 21180 BRI a 12nt _.._ﬂ.'!!_[“
. - N -] . B (92 03]
. . . BTE i’;_ﬁ'l %
= 3 956 30 & 2 = - [REET
: i = = = i a5
wea | asmw|  TwaiE|  giish| | Tees|  um 0L
Bamk of Aotuliing
Wit Acroutifzng Pobesine and Soline it (evsto e an sl pan ol Finmcsl Swleeem
As Perour altached Report of even date For and on behaif of the Board of Directors
For SAPD & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Régmﬂm Mo : 32727iE
Umesh Agarwal Om Prakash Agarwal
Joint Managing Direclor Joint Managing Director
Sankar Garg DIN : 01209962 DiN: 01261429
P
oo Payal Agarwal Seema Vyas
M Mo - DBE240 ;
UDIN - : ) CFO Company Secratary
DIN:: 25069240BM.JOFI9542 DIN ' 07198236 I No :AS0041
Place : Kolkata Place: Thane
Date : 31st July 2025 Date ! 31st July 2025
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025

articulars

Parch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A Canh Nows frem operating sctivithes

Profin tofora tas (1,196.39) 1,.806.62
Adjustmants for:
Chi=presciatiods and Amaofisation sipeEnses A1.8 4031 (M
ImpaEirment giicredainces of Doubtful Debisd Sdvances S8 AT (T2.37)
Flnanee Cosl BO0.95 81678
Laawd {profil ) on aabes af BProparty, Pland aid Egulpemesnd (1,34 8.02
Bacl diebis writlan off ¢ (recovanad) 28,54 145,03
Sundry Halances writtan bank [(3.r4) {3 EE)
Provision for cbsobete | Mon=moving lvantony - |7 50
Uinrealisad Foroign Exchango gaim (nist) 218 rrr
Drividend incormie (. 18) (O-2e)
Fesrl InGome (6.0 ) (L= Ralay}
Infaranl |G onme _f15mry _LE_.@EI_:I
Tulal 1,756,324 1,268, 74
Qparating profit before working capital changes 55!:55 3.074.8
Adjustmants Tor: )
[Incrmase]l/Docreass in Trade recoivabyles 1rr.ad 2053 A0
[Imorease]/Doaorease in Invaniones B55,95 (214.72)
|Ircresse]l Decrasas in Lomsns { 16.82) a8y
[irerapaa )l Dadreaaie (o Cithér Sxspalia (250 50 | 286, 58
IncreasaDacraasa] in Fads pavablas =881 (225 59
Incraasa/Daoraaea] i Dther Lisbilitias and Provieisnn - 5 B B2
Total 1.066.30 983301
Cash goneratod from oporatons 102625 4. 917 84
fncome Tax Paid (nel of refund=} (250, (i ) L0 B0
Met cash from operating activilies 1, 3T7T6E.25 4,517, 84
B Cagh Nows fram investing activiliead
FPurahass ol Property, Piant and Equilprient (172,34 (3.397.71)
Sala of Proparty, Plant and Equipmant 16.83 14.8%
Fradarmpthon! (nvestments) I Fleed deioiits | BAETLHY sy (i) (30 5 (117,47}
Dividand |ncormea .18 Q.78
Rant Incomea .08 &.00
Interest Inoome 1639 168.78
Mot cash used In investing activities (464 49) (3,372 42)
T Cash Mlows fram nanalng sactivithes:
Rapaymant of Loog Tarm Bormowings {23.51) (B2 SEE)
Procesdid {Rapaymeent) of Sheet Tarmmn Sorrowings (nek A & (AT 26
IntErest  paid (AT L7 )
Mot cash uned in financing activities (18 23 (1. 33175}
Mol incraass In caib sind cash saquivalenis [T.4T) {186.41})
Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the year a0 87 2973, 498
Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the yoar 29,50 36,97
Notos to the Cash Flow Statomont
1 Cash Flow Staterment has bean prepared endor the indirect Muthod' as sat out 0 the Indian Acccunting Standard (1D
HAB T

2 Figurns i brockot indicotos outfiows.
Thea Previous year's figures have been restatod and regrouped whoraver Necassany.

4 Cash and cash eguivalants comprsa of; An Bt As at
March 34, 2025 = 24
a8 Cashon Hand 8.ar S5.89
b Cheguss o Hand
¢ Balances with Bankis 20.14 27 .08
Tl 29.50 36.97

5 A paf IND AS-7. e Company & requidad 1o provide digelcturss el anable teers af Nnancisl statamiants 1O avalcalo
chianges In Lablitas ansing from financing activities, including both changoes ansiwg from cash flows and non cash
chuarges. The Sormpery odid nol Beves oy meitsniat impacl of the statsment of cosh lesss herslfors reconcilialion has fol
DEan givan

Matarial Accounting Paoliclas T-2

HNotos to Acoounts 3-E5

Materinl Aoocounting Policies ond Motes atinoched ihereto form on integral port of the Financial Siotements

As Per our attached Report of evan date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For SAPD & Associates
Charterad Accounlanls
Firm Reglstration No : 327VEF1E

Sankar Garg Umesh Agarwal Om Prakash Agarwal
Fartner Joirnt Managing Director Joint Managing Directon
M N DE9240 DM - 01200952 DiM : 01261429
UDIN : 250692408BMJIOFI9542
Fayal Agarwal Seema Vyas
CFO Company Secretary
DIM : 07198256 M Mo ASD041
Place : Kolkata Place : Thane

Date : 31s1 July 2025 Date : 31slJuly 2025 [




PR O ELIILI G R ) U PELERD S SEL NN 1 a8ed Bl SUar)
R
BT STOE L2y LE 3T BT oo g
LFE FIOT UMY LT ST A3uD|Eg
W01 19|
mu.wn GEOZ Ui LR 5P ssumiEg
sLagMR] feRsTRG

GER e ) 10y Uem ey
#FEL FEOE UDiiN LE 1= Sk souejeg
- suanHe e
oy TR BT T OGRS Ty
BB E:ul.!.ﬁ.—w.ﬁirm .

a¥EL [T R T e Tt

= opumy {Eesndmg

. LT T
Ty BEOZ I | 1E G acile| e

- psimig ¢ s

- SImpaY
LrHE EZ0E U0 LE TR SR ASUR|ED

100 Psam B oD Yoo ssom)|

[T

jmnduiaa| TAETI| e
sessy mgBunu) o oo

el a1 |0 I O] BEIREEERA Lk SE DLET ke (8)
m LN ST Spow SHn DU §RE | igﬂgvghgﬁgijgiﬂiggighg EEIEF‘PEE&EF ﬂ!EEnﬁ!ﬁ_lu
) " B ) e SREARE. Gl pus WSty anm 0 0 by § g “Hhreehoug Ty pangEAa 10U BE hediand L (4]
: AT il 30 el Bk RIS 08 SEecar ARIE RGN 1E 0 SEER0 AL )
m sfiuwwerni sapre popene whiegs iy § Rz oy s )
i TEmon
7 Citis LIWET ZVLh Iy EULOE L SHELEL 3602 ¥a TEEET FrEES SO RE MR B S
EF2IE: N WraE SE0'td Bk LLEE LEEY S0'BEE"L ZEAE e e PriGEE FIOL N LE e oy
= EEE LRLY
ETInG Bi Bak ) Bl 50 [T3=T8 T Tae IhevLE (AT BN [ - BEOE AR LG 1T R asueiRe
(7S] v - : : - Y] = . = = jsiny auiian
R EGRE RS ({1 rEhE oA L £LEEr Fi ] 0 6Pl . o ) oy uonoEad eg
ﬁm___ FEEEL e ELL #ITL :.E._. [Tt BOI£ST L s [Tg - PEDT U3 LT IR 50 asiEjeg
". EE O EE HE T : PP e B N - Bt e
; h o |emiee LT BE DET o ﬂ SR SERLE w0 £20 O - sead nupy oy dan
T L] Bagl BLED | LT BFEEFE aEE gy oirgmn’ L E €207 UM LT 18 SE acusjeq
.h ueEisRdeg PRy
- [TEFacEr 1a'air P ELE Baalk ¥5 Eat W FEE TAIS6E (T3 gl Hh 109 triseE BTOE Y |5 i s atueeg
T LFl Tireg = o : : ES T4 " : : e e )
P-4 EiEE R L BLOK - oELh - - - - LG
Fl2oR'ER 5L 06D EIEEl L i1 SEBTE RS PEE 85'066°E L 8E SbFl DELSE'T isd's PEOZ Uiy LE ot so asie)rg
TeEEmE) ot iEr ” - - - TRV = - - = IigedisnErsadnn
BRLENE b EEE POl g = TR - & 3 PESZEE LT
ELPER'S 2 ISE EEEL 5L 2 B wEE LR HAHE spEl o6 a0y alEea't EZOE UM LE T S soURjEg
5073 POUEISY) 50 00 -HI0ME S50
(O I E CTTTET) ([T G KraLijira e #Eld [LETIETe] LA
e TRA o =g B manjaing IiEnigasi s jn isapEay _ Wl _ Linpied il Bd e | it
.m Wit e e A B
2
h SEOF WAL ELE FOPUS JTBA 81 10} FUBTITS RIPUTLI S o1 SHON|




G

64th ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 SWELD

EEAL OF TUUET

NOTE-1:CORPORATE INFORMATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

El

Corporate Information:

Gee Limited is a Public Limited Company incorporated in India and listied with Bombay stock Exchange. The Company is engaged in the
business of manufacturing of Welding Electrodes, Copper Coated Wires, Flu Cored Wires and Welding Fluses. The Company is engaged in
manufacturing activities, with production fadlities located in the states of Maharashira and West Bengal.

Theregistered office of the Company is Plot Mo.E- 1, Road No.7 Wagle industrial Estate, Thane | West} - 400604,

EASIS OF PREPARATION & PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE:

The financial statements of the company are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS") notified under
Seclion 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the Act) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended
and other relevant provisions of the Act and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013,
{Ind AS compliant Schedule lII).

The Board of Directors have approved the financial statements for the year ended 31" March, 2025 and authorised for issue on
315t July, 2025.

BASISOF MEASUREMENT
The Company maintains accounts on accrual basis following the historical cost convention, excepl for fallowings:

#  Certain Financial Assels and Liabilities is measured at Fair value/ Amortired cost (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instrumenis);
¥ Defined Benefit Plans—Plan assets measured al fairvalue.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

The Financial Stalements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the functional currency of the Company and the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the Company aperates. All amounts disclosed in finandial statements and notes
have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs (with two places o decimal) as per the requirements of Schedule Il unless otherwise
stated.

USEOF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires judgments, estimates and assumplions to be made
that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the finandal statements
and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and
estimales are récognized in Lthe period in which the results are known/ materialized. Estimates and underlying assumptions
involved in preparation of Financial Statements and its classifications are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of change in aquily are prepared and presented in the
formal prescribed in Division Il of Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Acl”). The Statement of Cash Flows has been
prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7°Statement of Cash flowsTThe disclosure requirernents with respect
to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Division [ of Schedule Il 1o the Act, are
presented by way of notes forming part of the finandial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the
notified Indian Accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 {as
amended).

OPERATING CYCLE FOR CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION

All assets and liabililies have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other
criteria set out in the Schedule i to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1.The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as
twelve months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and labilities.

n
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Anassetistreated as current when itis:

=  Expected o berealised orintended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cpde

#  Held primarily for the purpose of trading

=  Expected tobe reafised within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

s  Cash or cash equivaient unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a lability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

All other assets ane dassificd a5 non-curment.

Aliabifityis current when:

+  [tisexpected tobe settied in normal operating cycle

=  [tisheld primariyforthe purpose of trading

¢ [tisduetobesettled withintwelve months atter the reporting period, or

= Thereis nounconditionalright todefer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current Defemed tax assets and fabilities are dassified as non-curment assets and liabilities.

FAIR YALUE MEASUREMENT

Fairvalue i the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date The fairvalue measurement is hased on the presumption that the transaction tosell the asset or transfer the ahbility takes place
cither:

#  [ntheprincipal market forthe assetor iability, of

¢ Intheabsenceof a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The fair value of an asset or a fiability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liabifity,
assuming that market participants act intheir cconomic best interest.

Afairvalue measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account 3 market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using theasset
inits highestand best use orby sefling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highestand bestuse.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the drcumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximizing theuse of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use ofunobservable inputs,

All assets and fiabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the finandal statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fairvalue measurementas awhaole:

Level 1-Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Lewed 2 - Vatuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
Lewed 3 -Valuation technigues forwhich the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is uncbservable.

External valuers are imeolved for valuation of significant assets & fiabilities. Involvement of extemnal valuers is decided by the management of the
company considering the requirements of Ind AS and selection oriteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained.

€. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as given below.
These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

L PROPERTY, FLANT AND EQUIFMENT

Ml property, plant and equipment (other than freehold land} are stated 2t cost of acquisition or construction less acoumulated depreciation and impairment kosses. The cost
comiprises of the purchase price or constraction cost {induding non- ceditable/non-refundable taxes), any costs diectly atimbutable to bringing the property, plant and
eqpuipment into the location and condition necessary for it to be capatde of opesating in the manner intended by management, the initial estimate of ny decommissioning
ohiigation, ifany, and, for assets that necessanly take a substantial period of time to get ready for theirintended use, finance costs. The purchase price of construchion st s
the aggregate amount paid and the fr value of any ather consideration given to aouire the asset. Freehold fand is being caried at revalesd amoont, being the fairvalee at
the date of revaliration less any acoumulated impairment losses: Revaluations are performed with suffident reqularity to ensore carmying amoants do not differ materially
froem Fair vale at the reporting date: I¥ fair valoes change significanthy, revaluations are refreshed acoordingly. Amount of revaluation are recoguized in Other Comprehensive
Income and accurmulated in equity urder“Revaluation Resere”

Subsequent sxpenditines related toan item of property, plant and equipment are added to s grmss book value or remgnized 252 separate aset, 5 appmpriate, anly when it
is probiable that future economic benefits assocated with them will fiow to the Company and the st of the item can be measured refiably. Al other repairs and maintenance
arecharged to profitand loss during the reparting period inwhich they are incarred.

Anitem of property, plantand equipment and any siqnificant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal orwhien no future economic benefits are expected from
its use o disposal. 7
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The accounting policy for frechold land included in property, plant and equipment was eroncously stated as the cost model during preceding
years. However, revaluation model was applied. The relevant disclosure has now been corrected This error did not impact the reported financial
position and result of the company.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided using the Straight-Line Method [SLM) 50 a5 to expense the cost bess residual valoes
over their estimated useful Ives as prescribed under Part Cof Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013,

A table comprising the estimate of Usceful Life of Assetzisstated below:

Assel Wseful Life
Buildings flats, and office nremises 30 years
Resdential Flats 0 years
FPiant & machinery and Furniture and Fodures 10-15 years
Compuiter Hardwane 1yean
Vehides Hyean
Gffiee Equipment 5 years

Property,plantand equipmentwhichare added or disposed of during the year, depredation s provided on pro-rata basis.

In line with the provisions of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company depreciates significant components having different useful
lives as compared to the main asset, based on the individual useful life of the components: Useful life for such components is assessed based on
the historical experienoe and internal technical inputs.

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original costof the asset The assets' residual values and useful ives are reviewed, and adjusted i
appropriate.atthe end of cachreporting period.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with camying amount. These are included in profit or loss with other
gains/lesses.

a) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets comprise of computer software and is stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated
imipairment loss, if any.
Atabie of estimate of useful life of assets s stated below :Assets Useful LifeComputer Software3 years
Assol Useful Life
(omputer Sattware IVears
Amortization
The estimated uscful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the offect of any changes inthe
estimate being accounted for ona prospective basis.

b  Impairment of assets

Al assets arc wested forimpairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carmying amount may notbe recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's carmying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable amount i
the higher of anasset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
leveds for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the sh inflows from other assets or group of
assets (cach generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered impairment earfier are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the
end ofeach reporting poriod.

Properties held for long-tenm rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not cocupied by the Company, is classified as investment
property. Investment property is measured inifially at its cost, incleding related transaction costs and wherever applicable borrowing costs.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized 1o the asset's camying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits assodated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured refiably. Transfers to, or from, investment properties are made at the
camying amount when and only when there is a change in use: Al other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. An item of
investment property is derecognized upon disposal orwhen no future economic benefits are expected toarise from the continued use of asset. Ay
gain of kossarising on the disposal or retirement of an item of investment property s determined as the difference between the sabes procesds and
thecarryingamount of the property and if recognised in the statement of profitand loss

72
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SEAL CF TRLEY

. LEASES

Company asalessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Land. The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at
inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a penod of
time in exchange for consideration To assess whether a contract conveys the righit to controf the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether:

i)  thecontractinvalves the useof an identified asset
(i)  theCompany hassubstantially afl of the cconomic benefits fromouse of the asset through the penodof — thie lease and
(i} theCompanyhas the nghttodirect the useof the asset.

At the dateof commencement of the dease. the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset | *ROUT) and a comesponding bease fiability for 2ll Iease
arangements in which it isa lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less [short torm beases) and leases of low value assets. For
theseshort term and leases of low value assets, the Company recognizes the fease payments asan operating expense anastraight line basis over
thee term ofthie lease:

The right-of-use assets are recognized under revaluation moded, inaccordance with the provisions of Ind AS 16- Property, Plant and Equipment.
Unider this' model, ROU asscts ame camied at a revalued amount, being their fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent
accumilated deprediation and subsequent accumulated impaimment losses. Rovaloations are made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the
camying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined wsing fair value at the balance sheet date. Changes in the
revaluation surplus are recognised inother comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under “revaluation resepe?

Right-of-use assets are depredated from the commencement date ona straight-line basis over theshorter of the lease termand useful fife of the
underlying asset,

The lease fabifity (if any} i initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments_ The lease payments are diseounted using the
interest rate imgplicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, osing the incremental borrowing rates. The lease fiahility s subseqoentiy
remeasuned by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease fiability, educing the carmying amount to refiect the lease
paymenits made.

A lease liability is remeasured upon the pcoumence of cortain events such as a change in the lease term or a change in an index of rate used to
determine iease payments The remeasurement nommally alsoadjusts the leased assers.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been dassified as financing cash
flows,

The accounting policy for ROU asset was erroncously stated as the cost modet during preceding years. However, revaluation model was applied.
The relevant disclosure has now been comrected. This ermor did not impact the reported finandal position and result of the company.

Leases which effectively transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and bepefits inddental to ownership of the leased item are dassified and
accounted foras finance lease. Lease rental receipts arc apportioned between the finance income and capital repayment based on the implicitrate
of return. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period inwhich theyare camed.

Operating Lease
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases.
Rental income from operating keases is recognized on a straight-fine basis over the term of the relevant lease except where scheduled increase in

rentcompensates the Company with expectedinflationary costs.

Raw material, packing matenal, work in process, stores, toods and dies and finished goods are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is
lower

Cost of raw material, packing material and stores, tooks and dies comprises of cost of purchases. Cost of work in process and finished goods
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on
the basis of normal operating capadity. Cost ofinventories also includes all other costs incurred in bringing the inventornies to theirpresent location
and condition. Costs are assigned to individual ftems of inventory on first-in-first-out basis. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after
deducting rebates and discounts.

Het realisable value is the estimated sefiing price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of compietion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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xi. (ONTINGENT LIABILITY

A disclosure for a contingent Kability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obfigation that may, but probably will nat, require an
outflow of resources Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that the Ekelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure s made.

xii. (ONTINGEMT ASSETS

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other uncxpected events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of economic bencfits.
Contingent Assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an infiow of economic benefits is probable.

xiii. TRADEANDOTHER PAYABLES

Theseamounts represent liabilities for goodsand services provided tothe Company prior to the end of the finandial year which are unpaid. Trade and
othor payables are presented as current liabilities unbess payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized
initially at their fairvalue and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

wiv. IMCOMETAX

Tax expense for the period, comprising current 1ax and deferred tax, are induded in the determination of the net profit or boss for the period. Curment
ta is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities inaccordance with prevailing income tax law.

Currenttax

Cument tax assets and fiabifities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid o the taxation authorites. The tax @tes and tax
laws used to compate the amount are those that are cracted or substantively enacted, at the time of reparting,

Current taxes are recognized in statement of profit or boss, except when they relate toitems recognized in other comprehensive income or equity, in
which case the tax is recognized in other comprehensive income or equity. Income tax assets and fabilities are presented separately in the Balance
Sheet except where there is arightof set-off within fiscal jurisdictions and an intention to setthe such balanceson a net basis.

Deferred tax is provided using the libility method on temporary differences anising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amountsin the Balance Sheetat the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and fiabilities are measured based on tax rates (and tax lws) that have been cnacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date and are expected to apply in the yearwhen the related deferred tax asset is expected to realise or the deferred tax ability is expected to settle.

Diefemed tax relating toitems recognized outside profitorloss is recognized outside profitorloss {(either in other comprehensive income orin cquity).
Deforred tax iiems are recognized in correfation to the underiying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax fiabilities are set off if a legally enforceable right exists to set off curment tax assets against current tx bilities
and the deferred taves refate to the same Taxation authority.

xv. FOREIGH CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Irems included in the finandal statement of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity

operates {'the functional curmrency'|. The finandial statements are presented in indian Rupees (INR) currency, which is the Company's functional and
Prescatation Cumency.

Forcign cumency transactions are franslated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Realised gains
and losses on settiement of foreign currency transactions are recognized in the Satement of Profit and Loss, Forcign osmency denominated
maonetary assets and [abifities at the year-end are translated at the year-end exchange rates, and the resultant exchange differenoe isrecognized in
the Statement of Profitand Loss Non-monetary foreign comency items are carried at cost

Saleofgoods
Reverue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disdosed as revenue is reduced for customer  discounts,
rehates granted, other similar allowances, goods and services tax (G5T) and duties cofiected an behalfof third parties.

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the fair value of the consideration receéived or receivable. stated net of discounts, returms
and value added tax. Transaction price is recognized based on the price spedified in the contract, net of the estimated sales incentives/ discounts.
Accumulated experience is used o estimate and provide for the discounts/ right of retum, using the expected value method. The timing of such
recognition in case ofsaie of goods is when the control over the same is transferred to the costomer.
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A refund liabilivy is recognized for expected retums in relation to sales made comesponding assets are recognized for the products expected to
beretumed.

In respect of sale of goods and services where the company participates in tenders, the control of the goods is transfemed on dispatch and
revenue i recognized inaccordance with the terms of the tender. For contracts accepted through tendering process and where separate
warmanty terms are presaribed, these obligations am not deemed to be separate pesformance obligations and therefore estimated and included
inthetotal costs of the products Where required, amounts are recognized separately accordingly in fine with IND AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Export benefit duty drawhack
Incomiesin respect of duty drawback inrespect of exports made during the year are accounted on accrual basis

Company's right to receive dividend is established:

Claims
Insurance claims are accounted on acceptanon basis Al other daims/entitiernents are acoounted on the merits of each case or on realization.

xvii. RETIREMENT AND OTHER EMFLOYEEBENEHITS
Shart torm employee benofits
Liahilities forsalaries, wages and performance incentives including non- monetary benefits that are expected to be settled whaolly within twebve
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service ane recognized in respect of employees” services up tothe

end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled The liabilities are presented as
currentemployee benefits obligations in the Balance Sheet.

Long term employes benefits

Defincd contribution plans

The Company has Defined Contribution Plans for its employees such as Provident Fund, Employee’s State Insurance, ¢tc.and contribution to
these plans are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred, as the Company has no further obfigation beyond making the
contributions.

Defined benefitplan;

Gratuity: Gratuity has been covered under the LICs NEW GROUP GRATUITY CASH ACCUMULATION PLAN The Fability or asset recognized in the
balance sheetin respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the presentvalue of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period
less the fairvaliee of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is caloulated annually by actuanies using the projected unit oredit method,

The present value of the defined benefit obfigation s determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market
yields at theend of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approXimating to the terms of the related obfigation.

The net interest cost is caloulated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan
assets This cost is inchuded in employee benefitexpense inthe statement of profitand loss.

Remeasuremnent gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in
which they ocour, directly in other comprehensive. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the
balance sheet.

Changes in present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or ortaiiments are recognized immediately in
profitor loss as past service cost.

Basic camings per share is caloulated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity sharcholders by the weighted average
number of cquity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per shase, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted
average numbser of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of diluted potential equity shares.

i1 8 DIVIDERD TO EQUITY SHAREROLDERS
Dividend to equity shareholdess is recognized as 3 fability and deducted from sharcholders' squity, in the perind inwhich the dividends ane
approved by the equity shareholders in the general meeting.
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Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March, 2025

4 CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Movement of Capital work in progress are as below - (As. In Lacs)
Particulars Asat As at
_ - | 31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Opening Balance 1.00 34.74
Aeddl: Addeltion during the year 3158 100
Less: Capitalized during the year - -
Less: Discarded / Disposed during the year/ Transfer to Stores {1.00) (34.74)
Closing balance at the end of year 31.54 1.00
Notes:
4.1 CWIP ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2025 :
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of
Lessthan 1 13 Years >3 Vesiars More than | Total
e year 3 Years __ |
Project in Progress 31.54 - - 3154
Projects temporarily suspended - = = -
Total 31.54 = = 31.54
CWIP ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2024 :
' Particulars - ____Amount in CWIP for a period of - |
Less than 1 1-2 Years 2.3 Years More than | Total
Year 3 Years |
Project in Progress - 1.00 = = 1.00 |
_Projects temporarily suspended : = = :
Total 1.00 - - 1.00
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5 Investment Property (Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars Amount
Gross Block- Cost or Deemed Cost | B
Balance as at 31 March 2023 | 2417.84

__ Additions | )
Disposals/transfer =
Bilanﬂ! as at 31 March 2024 | 2417.84
Additions | =
Disposals/transfer | -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 | 2417.84

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 31 March 2023 -
Depreciation fﬂr l‘.h-E year -
Disposals / transfer - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 " =
Depreciation for the year -
Disposals / transfer | =
Balance as at 31 March 2025 Z <

Net Block
As at 31 March 2024 2417.84
As at 31 March 2025 2417.84

Notes :

a) The Company has norestriction on the realisability of its invesiment property and no contractual obligation lo
purchase, contract ordevelop investment properties or forrepairs, maintenance and enhancements.

b) Refer Note No. 21 .1(b}forcharge crealed against borrowings.

€) The Company has not accessed the fair value of investment property as management believes that there is
no material change in the fair value during the year.

d} Investment in property is against investment in residential flats, Company has made Investment in total 4
residential property out of the four residential property - 2 residential properties are occupied by the director's
oftha company and 2 residential properties are vacant.

&0
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& RIGHT TO USE ASSETS (Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars Amount
Gross Block- Cost or Deemed Cost
Balance as at 31 March 2023 6283.58
Additions -
Transfer from Revaluation Reserve =
Balance as at 31 March 2024 6283.58
Additions -
Transfer from Revaluation Reserve -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 6283.58

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 31 March 2023 159.81
Amaortisation far the year 3.42
Transfer to Revaluation Reserve 156.39
Balance as at 31 March 2024 319.62
Ameortisation for the year 342
Transfer to Revaluation Reserve 156.39
Balance as at 31 March 2024 473.42
Net Block
As at 31 March 2024 5963.97
As at 31 March 2025 _ 5804.16
Notes :

6.1 Leasehold land has been reclassified from Property, Plant & Equipment's.

6.2 The Company has taken Land on lease for lease period ranging from 95 -39 years, which Is renewable at the
end ofthe Lease terms.

6.3 Refer Note 24.1 for charge created against borrowings.

6.4 The Company has amortised Right to uge assets on SLM basis for the remaining period of the lease. Since
Company has revalued its Right to use asseis In the year 2016-2017 through Reserve & Surplus so the
propertionate amount of Amortization are directly transfer to Revaluation Reserve without making any effect
inthe Statement of profit & loss account.

6.5 Prasent value of Lease liability in refation to above Rol asset iz ektremely insignificant and therafore
concluded as immaterial due to which it is not recognised in books of accounts and no disclosure in this
ragard is made. Tha absance of lease liability doas notimpact the financial position of the company.
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7 NON - CURRENT INVESTMENTS (Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars :I;—Ef:: As at31* As at31# ‘
";;.—‘ March, 2025 March, 2024
Investments at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income |
| A | Investments in Quoted Equity Instruments |
|| 201 (Previous Year: 201} equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully 1.88 | 2.03
paid-up in The Great Eastern Shipping Co.Ltd. |
28 [Previous Year: 28) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully 0.08 | {].165
paid-up in Mahindra Lifespace Developers Ltd. _ ] | |
Sub-Total 1.96 2.19
|
| B | Investments in Unquoted Equity Instruments |
2002 (Previous Year: 2002) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 11.06 | 14.03|
fully paid-up in The TISB Bank Ltd.

1000 (Previous Year: 1000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1.82 184
fully paid-up in Saraswat Coop Bank Ltd. . . |
Sub-Total 12.88 15.87
1 i
Total (A+B) 14.83 18.06
| |
| Agpregate Amount of Quoted InvestmentsAt Market value 1.96 2.15
I Aggregate Amount of Unguoted InvestmentsAt Market value 12.88 15.87|
j i
l Aggregate Amount of Unquoted InvestmentsAt Cost 1.10 | 1.1[]5
I Aggregate Amount of Quoted InvestmentsAt Cost 0.07 0.07|

8 OTHER NOM CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS {Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars l:lf:; As ek 3L Aaat Az
‘F' March, 2025 March, 204
Fixed Deposits with Banks (Maturities over 12 months) 8.1 39.19 458
| Security deposits (Unsecured & Considered good) 184.69 184.65
| Total 223.87 189.22

B.1 Fixed deposit with bank includes fixed deposiis of Rs. 1.61 Lacs (PY Rs.10.96 Lacs) which have been held
as Margin Money with bank.

9 NON-CURRENT TAXASSET (NET) (Rs.inLacs)
Refer
Particulars Note Asat 31 Asat31™
No March, 2025 March, 2024
| Advance Income Tax and TDS Receivables. ' 146.24 144.46
Total 146.24 144 .46
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10 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS (Rs. in Lacs)
' Refer | '
Particulars Note RSt ApikaLr
No March, 2025 March, 2024
Capital Advances _ '
Unsecured and Considered good 10.1 93.49 | 73.32
- Advances other than Capital Advances _
Deposit - Appeals 240.41 | 236.70
' Long Term Loans and advances ' 161.00 | -
. Less: Provision for Advances (161.00) | -
Sub-Total - -
Total | 333.90 310.03

10.1 Capital advances includes advance against land of Rs.16.13 Lacs (March 31st 2024 Rs.Nil)

11 INVENTORIES (Rs. in Lacs)
(At lower of cost or net realisable value) (Refer Accounting Policy)

T "':-f;ff“r As at 3% As at 3%
Yy March, 2025 March, 2024
Raw Materials 11-_1 3454.05 3765.49
Workin-Progress fSemi Finished goods a97.49 1123.38
Finished Goods 2611.10 2969.77
Stock in Traded Goods 271.46 394.89
Stores anfpares 298.58 291.74
Packing Materials 331.53 374.90
Total 7964.21 8920.7
111 m'_[he above includes goodsin-transit as under: _ _ N _ I
Raw Materials 121.46 78.92 .
Packing Materials 2] 697 |
Stores & Spares 1.00 | 0.36
Total 122.46 | 86.26

11.2 Refer note no 24.1 for charge created against bormowings.
11.3 Rs_Nil (PY 2024 Rs.17.50 Lacs) is recognized as expenses, being written down of inventories to net

realisable value, included in changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in frade and work in
progress (Refer note no 34).
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12 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars :IE:: As at 31 As a1
= March, 2025 March, 2024
Trade Receivables Tz.l
|a) Trade Receivables Considered good- Secured - -
(b) Trade Receivables Considered good 2906.50 3780.99
Unsecured
[c) Trade Receivables which have significant 454.98 1218.47
increase in Credit Risk; and
(d) Trade Receivables- credit impaired 1375.97 234.82
Sub-Total 4737.45 5234.28
Less: Allowances for Credit Impairment 12.2 (361.33) (134.76)
Total 4376.12 5099.53

12.1 Refer note no 24.1 for charge created against borrowings.

12.2 Trade receivables are non interest bearing on terms 30-60 days for domestic customers and upto 120
days for export customers.

12.3 The carrying amount of trade receivables may be affected by the charges in the credit risk of the
counter parties as well as the currency rises as explained in note no 50.1.

12.4 Trade receivables include receivables from related parties of Rs. 1000.99 Lacs (PY 2024 Rs.994 51
Lacs).

12.5 Movement in Impairment allowances for Doubtful Receivables:

Particulars Amount
As on 1st April, 2024 124.76
Add: Created 22657

Less: Utilized / Reversed =

As on 31st March, 2025 361.23
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Sr.

Particulars

Undisputed Trade receivables -
considered good

Unﬂlsputed Trade Receivables — |

which have significant increase
in credit risk

QOutstanding for the following periods from due date of

| payment

Less than | 6 months | 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years |

& months

2758.08 |

-1 year

14842 |

360.19 |

94.79 |

More
than 3

year

TOTAL

2906.5

45498

| considered good

_ﬁn_ﬂs-puted Tratle Receivables —

credit impaired
Disputed Trade Receivables—

538 |

1011 |

1267.74

65.70

1375.97

Dizputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase
in credit risk

Disputed Trade Receivables —
credit impaired

Sub-Total

| Allowances for Credit

impairment.

2763.43

37030

{121.84) |

(210.81)

65.70

T

4737.45

(361.33)

Total

437612
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13 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Rs. in Lacs)
R Refer Asat31* As at31*
: NoteNo. | March, 2025 = March, 2024
Balances With Banks : 13.1
In Current Accounts 20.13 27.06
Cheques in hand - -
Cash on Hand 9.37 5991
Total 29.50 36.97
13.1  Refer note no 24.1 for charge created against bormowings.
14 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN ABOVE (Rs. in Lacs)
|— | Refer Asat31* | Asat31
_ | Note No. March, 2025 March, 2024
| Fixed Deposits with Banks (having maturity of 14.1 366.29 35.12
more than 3 months but less than 12 months)
| Unpaid Dividend Accounts " 0.29 0.93
 Total 366.58 | 36.05
i i

14.1 Fixed deposits with bank includes fixed deposits of Rs. 5.74 Lacs (PY Rs 3.08 Lacs) which  have been

held as Margin Money with Bank

15 LOANS (Unsecured & Considered good) (Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars fiefer Aaatar Asa3i-
Note No. | march,2025 | March, 2024
Loans and advances to related partes I 15.1 60.88 0.78
Less: Provision for Advances (60.80) -
' Sub-Total 0.08 0.78
Loans and advances to employees 3091 13.29
Total 30.99 14.07
15.1  Refer note no 24.1 for charge created against bomowings.
16 OTHERS FINANCIAL ASSETS (Rs. In Lacs)
Particulars Refer As at 31% As at 31%
Note No. March, 2025 March, 2024
Interest Receivable | 8.95 | 9.36
i |
Security Deposit |
Considered good ! 16.1 14.50 20.75
Sub-Total | 23.45 30.11

16.1

Refer note no 24.1 for charge created against bomrowings.
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17 CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

o Refer As at31% Asat31® |
Note No. | march,2025 | March, 2024
Advance Income Tax & TDS 264.49 - |
Total 264.49 - |
18 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
~ . Refer As at31% As at31%
Note No. | mMarch, 2025 | March, 2024
Advances for supply of goods and rendering of
services _
Considered good 383.88 310.40 |
Balances with Government & Statutory 182 225.41 76.24
Authorities |
Prepaid Expenses 10.75 25.68
Total 620.04 412.32
18.1  Refer note no 24.1 for charge created against borrowings.

18.2

NIL) of Expart Benefit Receivable by the Company.

19 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Balances with Government & Statutory Authorities includes Rs.9.36 Lacs (Net of provision of Rs,

(Rs. In Lacs)

As at 31"March, 2025 As at 31"March, 2024
. Particulars
No. of Shares | Amount No. of | Amount
| Shares
| 19.1 | Authorised Share Capital | | |
j Equity Shares:
; | Equity Shares of Rs. y— each 5,00,00,000  1,000.00 S,Mf.ﬂﬂ,_l][]{'.; 1,000.00
5,00,00,000 1,000.00 | 5,00,00,000 1,000.00
' 19.2 | Issued Share Capital
! Equity Shares of Rs. 2/ each 2,60,07,366 | 52015 | 2,60,07,366 520.15
2,60,07,366 | 520.15 | 2,60,07,366 520.15
' 19.3 | Subscribed and Paidup Share
i Capital |
Equity Shares of Rs.2/ each fully 2,559 88,466 519.77 | 2,59,88,466 519.77
.| paid-up S| B E— S
Total 2,59 88,466 | 518.77 | 2,59,88,466 515.77
18.4 Reconciliation of the number of shares at the beginning and at the end of the year

There has been no change' movemenis In number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the

end of the vear.
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The Reconailiation in number of shares is as under ;

f Particulars _oveas o

- | 31""March, 2025 31 March, 2024

. Equity shares

| Number of shares at the beginning of the year 2,59,88,466 2,59,88,466
' Bonus Shares issued during the year - -
"Shares cancelled as per scheme of arrangement - -
| Number of shares as the end of the year [ 12,59,88,466 2,59,88,466

18.5 Terms/ Rights attached to Equity Shares :

The Company has only one class of issued shares i.e. Equity Shares having par value of Rs. 2/- per
share. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share and equal right for dividend. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors Is subjecl to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting, exceptin case ofinterim dividend. Inthe evenl of liquidation, the equity
sharsholders are eligible lo receive the remaining assets of the Company after payment of all
preferential amounts, in propartion to their sharsholding.

19.6 Sharehalding Pattern with respect of Holding or Ultimate Holding Company
The Company does net have any Holding Company or Ultimate Holding Company.

18.7  Details of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at 31"March, 2025 7 As at 31"March, 2024
Name of Shareholders ' No.of Shares | % Holding | No. of Shares | % Holding
Equity Shares of Rs. 2/ each fully
paid
Vidya Finvest Pvt Ltd 63,76,333 24.54% 63,76,333 24.54%
Shankarlal Agarwal 20,11,831 7.74% 20,11,831 1.74%
Umesh Agarwal 15,67,695 . 6.03% 15,67,695 6.03%
lyoti Agarwal 15,13,050 | 5.82% 15,13,050 5.82%
Sanwarmal Agarwal | 1437101 5.45% 14,17,101 5.45% |

19.8  No equity shares have been reserved for issue under options and contracts/ commitments for the
sale of shares! disinvestmenl as al the Balance Sheel date.

19.9  No equity shares have been bought back by the Company during the period of 5 years  preceding
the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared.

19.10 Mo securities convertible into equity shares have been Issued by the Company during the year.
19,11  No calls are unpaid by any Director or Officer of the Company during the year.

19.12 Detalls of Shareholding of Promoters & Promoters aroup in the Company.
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Sr. | Particulars No. of Shares | No. of Shares | % oftotal = % oftotal | %
No as at 31st as at 31st shares shares Change
March, 2025 | March, 2024 | asat31st  asat31st | during
March, March, the
2025 2024 year
PROMOTER - -
1 | Shankarlal Agarwal 20,11,831 20,11,831 | 7.74% 7.74% =
2 | Umesh Agarwal 1567695 | 1567695 |  6.03% 6.03% | )
3 | lyoti Agarwal 15,13,050 15,13,050 5.82% 5.82% |
4 | Sanwarmal Agarwal 14,17,101 14,17,101 5.45% 5.45% | =
5 | Nirmala Agarwal 11,64,450 11,64,450 |  4.48% 4.48% I
6 | Omprakash Agarwal 10,88,404 10,88,404 | 4.19% | 4.19% -
7 | Sneha Agarwal 4,16,900 416900 | 1.60% 1.60% | :
8 | Vidyawati Agarwal 3,61,908 3,61,908 1.39% | 1.39% | -
9 | Payal Agarwal 2,67,443 2,67,443 1.03% 1.03% | =
10 | Puja Agarwal 2,50,375 2,50,375 0.96% 0.96% I
11 | Nikhil Agarwal 1,33,100 1,33,100 | 0.51% | 0.51% =
12 | Anant Agarwal 55000 | 55000  021%  021% :
PROMOTER GROUP | |
1 | Vidya Finvest Pvt Ltd 63,76,333 63,76,333 | 24.54% | 24.54% -

19.13 The sharehalding pattern has been disclosed based on the information shared by the registrar and
share transfer agent of the Company on the respective balance sheeal date.

20 OTHER EQUITY (Rs. in Lacs)
Paeticiliis [ Refer As at 31 ' As at 31 |
Note No. March, 2025 March, 2024
Securities Premium 20.1 930.29 930.29
General Reserve 20.2 2,958.37 2,958.33
Revaluation Reserve 20.3 7142 12 7.298.5]
Capital Reserve 20.4 211 96 211 945
Capital Subsidy Reserve 20.5 36.19| 36.19
Retained Earnings 20.6 7,545 68 8.,460.93
Other Comprehensive Income 20.7 10.39 1z.8
Total 18,835.014 19,909.04

Nature/ Purpose of each reserve

a) Securities Premium: The amount received in excess of face value of the equily shares is recognized in
Securities Premium Reserve, This reserve is ufllised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
2013,

b} General Reserve: The reserve arises on transfer portion of the net profit to general reserve.

c) Retained Earning: Generally represents the undistributed profitamount of accumulated earnings of the
company.

d) Capital Reserve and Capital Subsidy Reserve | represents the amount transferred from the transferor
company pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement effected in earlier years.

e) Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) : Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) represents the balance in eguity
forilems to be accounted under OCI and comprises of tha following ;
(it  Equity Instruments through OCI: The Company has elected to recognize changaesinthefalrvalue of
cartain investmentin equity instrument in ather comprebhensive income,
(i) Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations: The actuarial gains and lesses arisingon define d
benefit obligations have been recognized in OC|. The amountis subseguently transferred to retained
earnings as per the Schedule |l requirement

g9
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Ref
o Note | Asat3r As at 31*
Siices b . March, 2025 | March, 2024

20.1 | Securities Premium

Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year 930.29 530.29
20.2 | General Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,958.37 2,758.37

Add: Transfer from Retained Earnings - 200.00

Balance at the end of the year 2,958.37 2,958.37
20.3 | Revaluation Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 7.298.51 7,454.90

Less: Transfer to Right to Use Assets (156.39) (156.39)

Balance at the end of the year 7,142.12 7,298.51
20.4 | Capital Reserve 211.96 211.96
20.5 | Capital Subsidy Reserve 36.19 36.19
20.6 | Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 8.460.93 7,377.30

Add: (Loss)/Profit for the year (924.03) 1,285.57

Sub-Total 7,536.90 8,662.88

Less: Transfer to General Reserve - (200.00)

Add/(Less): Other Comprehensive Income B.78 (1.95)

arising from Re measurements of defined

benefit obligation (net of tax)

Sub-Total 8.78 (201.95)

Balance at the end of the year 7,545 68 8,460.93
20.7 | Other Comprehensive Income

Equity instrument through Other

Comprehensive Income

Balance at the beginning of the year 12.81 11.40

Add/|Less): Change in Fair Value (net of tax) (2.42) 141

Balance at the end of the year 10.39 12.81

Total 18,835.00 19,909.06
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21 NON CURRENT BORROWINGS (Rs. in Lacs)
Refer Non-Current Portion Current Maturities
Note As at As at
Particul
. i No. 31"March, | 31%March, | 31"March, | 31"March,
2025 2024 2025 2024
Secured
Housing loan from banks 21.11b) 987.90 1,058.53 76.34 64.26
Vehicle loan from banks 21.1(a) 8.19 3147 23.28 24.07
Sub-Total 996.09 1,090.00 99.63 88.33
Less: transfer to current borrowings 24 - - (99.63) (88.33)
Total 996.09 |  1,090.00 | - -

21.1 Details of Security:

a) Vehicle loans from various banks are secured against hypothecation of vehicles purchased against the
loan. The loans are repayable on monthly instalment as per the terms of loans which are ranging from 36 to
60 months. The interest rates are varying from 9.3% p.a. to 12.44% p.a.

b) Housing loan from bank is secured by way of hypothecation of residential apartments and personal
guarantee of promoters. The loans are repayable in 144 insiallments alongwith interest varing from 6.00
%to 9.50% pa

c) Thereare noregistration/satisfaction of charges pending with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory
pernod as on the Balance Sheetdate.

21.2 The Carrying amount of the Financial and Non financial assets pledged as security for cumrent and non
current borrowings is given in Note

21.3 There has been no default in repayment of vehicle or housing loan during the year based on the repayment

schedule,
22 PROVISIONS (Rs. in Lacs)
itk Refer Note As at 31* As at 31
No. March, 2025 March, 2024
Provision for Employee Benefits
Gratuity 44 & 28.1 30.15 39.75
Total 30.15 39.75
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23 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET) (Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars :IE:::: Asaaz A ar
N March, 2025 March, 2024
Deferred Tax Liabilities T
-A_ﬁéiﬂg on account of :
Pﬁ:perty F.'-Ian.t“&“E.qui-pmen.l.: & I-n-’.cang.i.ﬁ.le Assets 319.82 | 349.81
ltems not reclassified to profit or loss- OCI 2.14 (0.18)
Sub-Total 32196 349.63
Less: Deferred Tax Assets
Arising on account of : '
Impairment allowances for Doubtful Receivables 90.94 3392
Impairment allowances for Advances 55.82 | -
‘Principle amount of Qutstanding MSME 89.69 -
Provision for Employee Benefits 57.26 70.73

Provision for on obsolete, non moving and slow = =
moving stock

Amount deductible on payment basis 16.49 | 16.49
Sub-Total 310.21 121.14
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 11.75 228.49

231 Movement in deferred tax liability/(asset) during the year ended 31st March, 2025

Particulars As at Charge/(credit) = Charge/(credit) | As at
1st April, in Statement of | in Other 31st March,
2024 Profit & Loss Comprehensive | 2025
Inkome

Deferred tax liability/(asset)

Property Plant & Equipment & 349.81 (29.99) - 319.82
Intangible Assets |

Itemns not reclassified to profit or (0.18) 0.18 2.14 2.14
loss - OCI | B

Impairment allowances for (33.92) - (57.02) (90.54)
Doubtful Receivables | N
Impairment allowances for - {5-5"32'] : - [55.3}_"‘}'
Advances

Principle amount of Qutstanding - (89.69) - (89.69)
MSME

Provision for Employee Benefits (70.73) 13.47 - (57.26)
Provision for on obsolete, non - - - -
_moving and slow moving stock -

Amount deductible on payment (16.49) - - (16.49)
basis |
- 228.49 (218.88) 2.14 11.75
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Movement in deferred tax liability/(asset) during the year ended 31st March, 2024

Particulars As at Charge/|credit) Charge/(credit) | Asat
1st April, in Statement of | in Other 31st March,
2023 Profit & Loss Comprehensive | 2024
S — - — —_—e S—— llnmme
Deferred tax liability/(asset) - -
Property Plant & Equipment & 37205 (22.24) - 349.81
_Intangible Assets
Items not reclassified to profit or loss 6.41 (6.41) {0.18) {0.18)
-0l
Impairment allowances for Doubtful [52.16) 18.24 - {33.92)
Receivables
Provision for Employee Benefits (69.17) | (1.55) | - (70.73)
Provision for on obsolete, non moving = = = =
and slow moving stock
Amount deductible on payment basis (16.49) - - (16.49)
240.63 | {11.96) {0.18) 228.49
24 CURRENT BORROWINGS (Rs. in Lacs)
Refer As at 31* As at 31
Particulars Note No. | March, 2025 | March, 2024
Secured
Working Capital loans from Banks repayable on demand | 241 & 7,043.16 6,983.03
24.2
Currenl maturities of long term borrowings 21 99 653 88.313
Total 7,142.78 7,071.37
241  Details of Security
Working capital facilities from the banks (fund based and non fund based) secured by first par passu
charge over entire current assets, Plant & Machinery at Kalyan and Howrah, and immovable
property of the Company. The facilities are repayable on demand alongwith interest ranging from 9%
io 12% p.a.
242  The above secured working capital borrowings are utilised towards meeting day to day cash outflow
requirments for liabilities in normal operating cycle of the business.
24.3  The quarterly returns or statements of current assest and current liabilities filled by the company with

bank or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts except are as under-
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Name of | Quarter 1 Particulars Amount as Amount I'E['H:II'!EI’- Variance Reason for
the Bank Ended per books of in quarterly Variance
accounts statement
Trade Receivable 3,644.96 3,347.87 | 297.10
! | June 2024 | Inventories 8,801.13 9,427.18 | (626.05)
_ Trade Payable 1,227.55 692.80 | 534.75 _ the
' | Trade Receivable |  4,041.02 347692 | SEAT0 | e |
HOFC | Septembe o ntories 9,597.23 1013093 | (533.70) )
| bank,ICICI | r2024 | ! : £ : ! * provisional
Foank Trade Payable 1,500.12 1,436.11 | 6401 figures
and DBS _ deE_Rr__-cEiwahIE 3,5}‘_‘5,5[]_ 3_,__1[!5_5}' 45993 ! reported to
Bank | "E;;""’“ ' Inventories 9,677.01 10,379.38 (702:37) | banks before
| 4 Trade Payable 2,025.01 1,465.90 £59.10 finalization of
| Trade Receivable _3, 131.69 _“_1.:95?:..21 1 16848 guarterly
March : 1 accounts.
| 2025 [ Inventories 7,964.21 9,239.61 ! (1,275.40)
| Trade Payable 1,865.32 1,595.28 | 270.04
. _ T@d_e I_!IEEEi_va_t_ll_E_ 6800.47 5603.33 { 1_,_'_L"-}?._1_4
june 2023 | Inventories 9060.33 8354.67 | 705.65 The
| Trade Payable 2100.66 1576.60 | 524.06 | differencesare
' | Trade Receivable |  6171,70 493640 | 1,235.29 | Decauseof
HOFC | Septembe Iy ories 9497.40 9297.32 | 200.08 P
| bank,1CIC0 | r2023 —m * e Bin A dad A |  <IREUT figures
| Bank Trade Payable 1507.53 1549.17 I (41.24) reported to
and DBS Trade Receivable 5373.65 4229 63 | 1,144.02 banks before
Bank DE;E;“;H | Inventories 9673.85 10580.83 | (906.99) | finalizationof |
| Trade Payable 1578.35 1040.73 |  537.62 guarterly
| | Trade Receivable |  5010.12 421822 | 791.89 accounts.
| ";;;f' Inventories 8920.16 899258 | (72.42)
| Trade Payable 1878.28 | 1207.41 | 67087
25 TRADE PAYABLES (Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars ﬁ As at 31" As at 31
I March, 2025 March, 2024
Trade Payables for goods and services
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises; and
-Outstanding Dues 672.13 515.98
Add: Interest on it 7.26 3.68
679.40 523.66
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 251 1,735.82 1,858.32
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total 2,415.22 | 2,381.98
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251 Trade Payable ageing schedule
Trade Payable ageing schedule as at 31st March 2025
Sr. | Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of TOTAL
No. _payment
' Less than 1year | 1-2 23 More than 3
Years Years year
1 | MSME 677.19 | 221 - - | 679.40
2 | Others 1,693.65 19.82 20.46 189 | 1,735.82
3 | Disputed dues- M5ME = 2 = | = | s
4 | Disputed dues-Others = - - | - | E
Trade Payable ageing schedule as at 31st March 2024
Sr. | Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of | TOTAL
No. payment
’ Lessthan 1year | 1-2 23 | More than 3
Years Years year
1 | MSME 523.66 - - - 523.66
2 | Others 1793.86 28.90 33.00 2.56 | 1858.32
3 : Disputed dues- MSME - = = - ]
4 | Disputed dues-Others > - - . -
26 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES {Rs. in Lacs)
Faiticulas Refer As at 31 As at 31
Note No/ March, 2025 March, 2024
Amount payable for Capital Goods 26.97 26.70
Interest accrued and not due on Borrowi 30.18 43.23
Iinterest free deposit from Dealers B.45 B.49
Employees relatddes 268.59 444 .76
Unclaimed dividend Z26.1 0.29 0.93
Total 334.48 524.2
26.1  There are no amounts due for payment to the Investor Education and Protection Fund at the end of

the year,

27 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(Rs. in Lacs)

i Refer As at31* As at 31*
Note No. | March, 2025 March, 2024
Statutory Dues Payable 433.77 153.56
Advances Received from Customers 244.20 252.22
Total ' 677.97 405.78
28 PROVISIONS {Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars Reter Asat31* As at31%
Note No. March, 2025 March, 2024
e Sy =y T —_— | e e odcicxieboovia emsericiis
Gratuity 28.1 16.83 24.81
Leave encashment 28.1 37.50 42 .85
Other Expenses 107.14 -
Total 161.47 67.65
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28.1 Movement of Provision (Current and Non Current)

: | Refer Note No. | Emﬁlu'fee Benefit
cticar . Gratuity | Leave encashment |
As on 1st April, 2023 ' ' 98.39 | 36.62 |
Add: Created 24.81 | 42 .85
Less: Payment/ Reversed (58.63) {36.62) .
As on 31st March, 2024 84.56 42 .85 |
As on 1st April, 2024 B4.56 42 .85
Add: Created 16.83 37.50
Less: Payment/ Reversed (34.41) | (42.85)
As on 31st March, 2025 ' ' 46.98 | 37.50 |
29 CURRENT TAX LIABILITY (NET) (Rs. in Lacs)
ikl Refer Note As at31% As at 31¢
No. | March, 225 | March,2024
Provision for tax - 532.88
Less: Advance Income Tax & TDS - 41533
Total - 117.55
30 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS {Rs. in Lacs)
[ Darticul Refer | For the year ended
s Note No. [31"March, 2025 | 31" March, 2024
S5ale of Products (including Excise Duty) 33,341.20 36,856.87
Other Operating revenues
- Export benefits 4231 57.43
Total 33,383.50 36,914.30
31 OTHER INCOME (Rs. in Lacs)
Refer Note Forthe year ended

Particulars

No. 31"March, 2025 | 31"March, 2024

Interest Income
Deposit with banks etcFinancial assets 15.97 16.69
measured at mortised cost

Other Non Operating Income

Exchange Difference (net) - 0.36

Dividend Income 0.16 0.29

Rent Income 6.00 6.00

Profit on Sales/Discard of Property, 1.34 =
Plant & Eguipment

Insurance Claim - 15.90

Balance no longer Payable W/off 3.74 33.68
Total 27.21 72.91
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(Rs. in Lacs)

TRUS

Refer Note Fortheyear ended
PARTICULARS No. 3¥"March, 2025 | 317March, 203
Raw Material

Opening S5tock 3,765.49 4,768.6
Add : Purchases 24,011.8" 26,631.C
27,777.34 31,399.7
Less : Closing Stock 3,454.05 3,765 4
SubTotal| 24,323.2¢% 27,6342

Packing Material
Opening Stock 375.32 302.5)
Add: Purchases 1,302 .81 1,393.6
1,678.13 1,696 _2
Less: Closing Stock 331.53 374.99
SubTotal 1.246.6(0 1,321.3
Total MateriGbnsumed ZEEEB.EE 2&955_5!

33 PURCHASE OF STOCK - IN -TRADE (Rs. in Lacs)
Refer Note Fortheyear ended

Particulars

| 31%March, 2025

31"March, 2024

Purchases of Stockn- Trade

35.22

450.76

Total

35.22

010

34 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS & WORK-IN-PROGRESS (Rs. in Lacs)

Rl b Refer Fortheyear ended
Note Mol 31"March, 2025 31"March, 2024

Inventories at the beginning of the y
Finished Goods 2,968.00 2,353.29
Stock in Traded Goods 396.66 133.38
Work in progress 1,123 .38 936.27
SubTotal 4,488.04 3422.93

Inventories at the end of the year

Finished Goods 2,611.10Q 2,969.77
Stock in Traded Goods 271.46 394 89
Work in progress 89597 .49 1123538
SubTotal 3,B20.04 4,488 04
Total 60E8_00 (1,065.11)
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35 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Rs. in Lacs)
T Refer For theyear ended
Note No.| 317"March, 202{ 31"March, 2024
Salaries, Wages & Bonus 2,247 51 1,8B17.14
Gratuity 21.63 9.28
Contribution to Provident & Other fund 29.42 £0 .32
Staff Welfare expenses 7B.33 64.33
Total 2,431.8¢ 1,980.0
36 FINANCE COST (Rs. in Lacs)
Refer Note Fortheyear ended
Paiticulays No. 3TMarch, 2025| 31"March, 2024
Interest Expenses 36.1 to 36.3 826.41 790.13
Bank charges 64.54 26.66
Total 890.95| 816.78

36.1 a) Bormowing cost capitalized during the year is Rs. Nil ( PY 2024 Rs. "Nil")
36.2 b) Interest expenses Includes interest on Income Tax of Rs. Nil (PY 2024 Rs NIL)
38.3 ¢} Interest expenses includes interest on loan from related parties of Rs.Nil (FY 2024 Rs.NIL)

37 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES {Rs. in Lacs)
. Refer Note Fortheyear ended
Pty No. 3T March, 2025 | 3T March, 2024
On Tangible Assets 37.1 414.20 395.30
On Intangible Assets 1.35 5.70
Total 415.55 401.00

37.1 Depreciation on tangible assets includes Rs. 3.41 Lacs (PY 2024 Rs 3.41 Lacs) for Right of Use
Assels.
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38 OTHER EXPENSES (Rs. in Lacs)
i [ Refer Fortheyear ended
Particulars Mote | 31%March, 31°March,
No. | 2p2s 2024

Manufacturing, Administrative & Selling Expenses

Consumption of 5tores and Spares 392.52 279.73

Insurance 58.70 47 .35

Power & Fuel 1,008.62 i028 .89

Factory Expenses 118.58 146.27

Approval & Testing Expenses 79.32 120.34

Rent 75.83 41 .37

Rates & Taxes 32.85 10.69

Repairs & Maintenance:

Building 427 0.25

Plant & Machinery 124 34 11122

Others 102.25 7125
Carriage OQutwards 563.22 567.60
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure (Refer N 34.149 34.25
No. 45)

Impairment allowances/{Reversal) for Doubtful 448.37 (72.48)
Receivable/Advances

Impairment Allowance for Export Incentives 0.11
Loss on Sales/Discami Property Plant & Equipment - 8.02
Bad debts 26.54 146.09
Payment to the Auditors:

Audit Fees 12.05 10.52
Donations 27.40 12.57
Administrative Expenses 7384 36.96
Legal & Professional Charges 329 65 326.95
Retainershiffees 142.45 120.71
Commission 58.04 117.19
Advertisement & Publicity 97.56 11.6Z
Marketing Expenses 43.22 6399
Vehicle Running & Maintenance Expenses 130.79 101.03
Printing & Stationery 6.42 6.86
Postage & Courier Expenses 9.66 2921
Sales Promotion expenses 133.65 E80.18
Telephone Expenses 14.41 14.37
Travelling & Conveyance 290.89 188.44
Exchange Difference (net) 18.13 B
Miscellaneous Expenses 97.90 79.96
Total 4,555.61 3641.43
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(Rs. in Lacs)

Refer | Fortheyearended
Note No. | 31"March, 2025 | 31"March, 2024
Current Tax 39.2 - 532.88
“Deferred Tax ' (218.88) (11.96)
Tax expenses for current year (218.88) 520.93
Taxes for earlier years {53.48) 0.19
Tax expenses in statement of Profit & Loss (272.36) 521.12

391 Income tax has been provided based on lhe rates mentioned under section 115BAA of the Incoma

Tax Act 1961.

38.2  Reconciliation of estimated Income Tax expense al Indian statutory Income tax rate lo income (ax

expense reported in statement of Profit & Loss,

Refer Fortheyear ended
. MNote
Particulars No. | 31°March, 2025| 31" March, 2024
Profit before income tax expense (1,196.39) 1806.69
Indian Statutory Income Tax rate* 25.168% 25.168%
Estimated Income Tax Expense (301.11) 454.71
Tax effect ohdjustments to reconcile expected Income ta
expense to reported Income tax expense
Expenses not Deductible 218.42 114.19
Effect of Income Tax for Earlier Years (53.48) o.a9
Expenses allowed on payment basis - -
Others {136.19) (47.97)
SubTotal 28.75 66.41
Income tax expense in Statement of Profit & Lo (272.36) 521.12

* Applicable Indian Statutory Income Tax rate for Financial Year 2025 & 2024 is 25.168% & 25.168%

respectively.

40 EARNING PER SHARE

N -~ Refer Note For the year ended
No. | 31"March, 2025 | 31"March, 2024 |
Mominal Value of Equity Share (Rs.) 519.77 513.77 |
Profit attributed to the Equity (924.03) 1*285.5?1
shareholders of the Company |
Weighted average number of equity shars 2,59,88,416.00 2,59 88.416.00|
Basis and diluted earning per share (Rs.) (3.56) 4.95 [

There are no dllute equity shares in the Company.
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41 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENT TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR:
41.1 Contingent Liabilities {Rs. In Lacs)
SL. Particulars As at As at
No 31st March 31st March
2025 2024
A Claims/Disputes/Demands not acknowledged as debts
i. Customs Act, 1962 (20089) - CESTAT, MUMBAI 271.42 271.42
ii. Customs Act, 1962 (20313)- CESTAT, KOLKATA* = 212.56
i The W_B. Tax on Entry of Goods into Local Areas Act, 201 65.52 65.52
(201213 to 201314)-W .B_Taxation Tribunal
. Central Excise Act,1944 (20838 )- CESTAT, MUMBAI** 546.42 546.42
V. Central Excise Act, 1944 (20881 )- CESTAT, KOLKATA 2.41 1.14
vi. ESIC (DEC 2009 to March 2011)ndustrial Court Thane 7.40 7.40
wrii. ESIC {APRIL 2011 to OCT 2012)ndustrial Court Thane 1.45 1.45
viii. | Income Tax Act,1961 (TDS{Various Years as per Traces) 15.66 16.10
Rectification with Traces / |.TiDept
. Income Tax Act, 1961 (202021} - CIT{A) Commissiondr** 4.17 417
n CGST Act, 2017 (2011 8) - Commissioner of Central Excise B.o1 891
{Appeals)
i CGST Act, 2017 (20189) - Deputy Commissioner of 5tate 1.78 2.60
Tax, Thane
Wii. Income Tax Act,1961(2016-17)-CIT (A}1, Thane ***= : S
B Guarantee-
i. Bank Guarantees outstanding at the Year end 626.33 8591
Additional Note: All amount stated here are inclusive of Interest and penalty.
' The order in relation to Central Excise Act, Kolkata, was in favour of Company. Application for refund
of appeal amount deposited earlier has not been submitted by the company to the respective

depariment.

Subseguent order being passed and reveried back to onginal authority on 3rd June, 2025 and

Appeal was allowed in favour of the Company. A refund appeal was submitted on 27th June, 2025.

Out of the total liability of Rs. 10.55 Lacs , Rs. 2.81 Lacs was adjusted against refund due of

assessment year 2021-22 and Rs. 3.57 Lacs was adjusted against refund due in the assessment
year 2023-24. Net liability standing as on 31.03.25is 4.17 Lacs.

e

Out of the total liability of Rs.70.97 Lacs , Rs.14.20 Lacs was adjusted in the same year (A.Y 2016~

17), Rs. 14 48 Lacs was adjusted in ALY. 2018-19 and Rs. 42 29 Lacs was adjusted in AY. 2023-24.
This case is still ongoing, and no absolute judgement has been received.

41.2

various forums/authorities which in the opinion of the Company is not tenable and there is no
possibility of any future cash outflow in case of above.

41.3 Commitments

In respect of above, future cash flows are determinable only on receipt of judgements pending at

S5L. No. | Particulars As at As at
31st March 31st March
2025 2024
i Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 200.90 200.90
Capital Account {net of advances)
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42 DISCLOSURE OF TRADE PAYABLES AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 22 OF MICRO, SMALL
AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT (MSMED) ACT, 2006, BASED ON THE
CONFIRMATION AND INFORMATION RECEIVED BY THE COMPANY FROM THE SUPPLIERS
REGARDING THE STATUS UNDERTHEACT.

SL. Particulars As at As at
No. 31st March | 31st March
2025 2024

| Principal & Interest amount remaini npaid but not du at d
1 clpa. 1] un |n|ngu Pai oy E a5 Yedr en 5?5‘40 EB,EG

1] Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of Micro, Small and - -
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of
the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the
year

i Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment = -
{which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)
but without adding the interest specified under Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

v Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end 7.26 1.68
v Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding - .
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid
to the small enterprise

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have beean
identified on the basis of information collected by the management. Management assessmeant for
parties registered under Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 are
last done In financial year 2021-2022 ie.., 3 years back for Kolkata Unit so the Disclosure requirement
for dues outstanding with MSME Parties are not accurately reflected.

43 LEASES

a) The company has certain leasehold land upder finance lease arrangements for 899 years which has bean
reclassified from property, plant & equipment to Right to Use Assets.

b} The company has also cerlain leases of building with lease term of 12 months or less. The company
applies the 'Short lerm lease’ recagnition assumption for these leases.

44 DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD - 19 'EMPLOYEE BEMEFITS' AS
MOTIFIED U/ 133 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE ¥ OF COMPANIES
(ACCOUNTS)RULES, 2014.

44.1 Defined Conlribution Plan;

44.1.1 Provident Fund & Employee's State Insurance Contribution
Provident Fund as per the provisions of the Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions
Act, 1952,
Employee State Insurance contribution as per the provisions of the Employees State Insurance Act,
1948,

44.1.2 The amount recognized as an expense for the Defined Contribution Plans are as under:

SL. Particulars As at As at

No. 31st March 2025 | 31st March 2024
I Provident Fund

76.01 T4.47
ii Employee State Insurance contribution 13.31 14.77

102



64th ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 GWELD

SEAL CF TRLEY

44.2 Defined Benefit Plan:
The following are the types of defined benefit plans

44.2 1 Gratuity Plan
Every employee who has completed five years or more of service is entitled to Graluity as per the
provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The present value of defined obligation and related
current cost are measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method with actuarial valuation being camied
out at Balance Sheet date.

44.2.2 Risk Exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the company is exposed io a number of risks, the most significant of
which are detailed below:

INTEREST RATE RISK The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a
discount rate based on government bonds. If bond
yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to

increase.
SALARY INFLATION RISK Higher than expected increases in salary will
increase the defined benefit obligation
DEMOGRAPHIC RISK This is the risk of variability of results due to

unsystematic nature of decrements that include
mortality, withdrawal, disability and retirement. The
effect of these decrements on the defined benefit
obligation is not straight forward and depends upon
the combination of salary increase, discount rate
and vesting criteria. It is important not to overstate
withdrawals because in the financial analysis the
retirement benefit of a short career employee
typically costs less per year as compared Lo a long
service employee.

44.2.3 Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset)/ liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net
defined benefit (asset)/ liability and its compaonents:

Particulars Gratuity

2024-25 202324
Balance at the beginning of the year 253.12 219.44
Current Service Cost 1423 14 87
Interest Cost on Defined Benefit Obligation 18.09 16.34

Actuarial Gain and Losses arising from
Ehanges irdemugraphic assumptions - -
Changes in financial assumptions 7.21 331

Experience Adjustment (2.96) 1.50
Benefits Paid from the Plan Assets (11.23) (Z2.34)
Balance at the end of the year 278.45 253.12

44.2 4 Reconciliation ofthe Plan Assets

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the Plan
Assets and its components:

103



64th ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

G
GWELD

SEAL CF TRLEY

Particulars Gratuity
2024-25 2023-24
Balance at the beginning of the year 188.56 121.05
Interest Income on Plan Assets 13.44 5.00
Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Obligation:
Return on plan assets greater/ (lesser) than discount rate 12.00 2.21
Employer Contributions to the Plan 28.711 58.63
Benefits Paid from the Plan Assets (11.23) (2.34)
Balance at the end of the year 231.47 188.56
4425 Amountrecognized in Balance sheet
Particulars Gratuity
202425 | 202324
Present value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the year (278.45) | (253.12)
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 231.47 | 188.56
Funded Status (Surplus/(Deficit)) (46.98) | (64.56)
Net (Liability)/Asset recognized in the Balance sheet (46.98) | (64.56)
Expenses recognized in Profit or Loss
Particulars Gratuity |
2024-25 2023-24 |
Current Service Cost 14.23 14.87
Interest Cost 18.09 16.34
Interest Income on Plan Assets (13.44) (9.00) |
Expenses recognized 18.88 2221 l
44.2 6 Re-measurements recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
Particulars . Grawity |
| 2024-25 2023-24
 Actuarial (gain)/ Loss on defined benefit obligation | 4.24 4.81
Return on plan assets greater/ (lesser) than discount
rate (12.00) (2.21)
Net(income)/ Expense for the period recognized in OCI {7.75) 2.60
44.2.7 Major Categories of Plan Assets
Particulars Gratuity
2024-25 2023-24
| Qualified Insurance Policy 0% 0%

The Gratuity Scheme is invested in a New Group Gratuity Cash Accumulation Plan Policy offered by Life
Insurance Corporation (LIC). The information on the allocation of the fund into major asset classes and
expected return on each major class are not readily available. The expected rate of return on plan assels
is based on market expeciations, at the beginning of the period, for retums over the entire life of the

related obligation.

44 2.8 Asset-Liability Matching Strategy

The Company's investment are being managed by Life Insurance Company and at the year end interest
is being credited to the fund value. The company has not changed the process used to manage its risk
from previous periods . The Company's investment are fully secured and would be sufficient to cover its

obligations.

44.29 Actuarial Assumptions
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Particulars Gratuity
2024-25 2023-24
Financial Assumptions |
Discount Rate : 6.71% 7.21%
Salary Escalation Rate | 6.50% 6.50%
Demographic Assumptions
Mortality Rate Indian Assured Indian Assured Lives
Lives Mortality
Mortality 2012-14 (Urban)
R | 201214 (Urban) |
Attrition rate 5% 5%

44210 The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation,

seniarity, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment
market.

44211 At 31st March 2025 the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 11 years

(previous year 11 years). The distribution of the timing of benefits payment |.e., the maturity analysis of
Ihea banefil payments is as follows:

Expected benefits payment for the year ending on | Gratuity

31st March 2026 7897
31st March 2027 14.48
31st March 2028 18.03
31st March 2029 18.36
31st March 2080 to 31st March 2036 312.34

44.2.12 Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact
on defined benefit abligation as a resull of reasonable changes in key assumptions accurring at the end
of the reporling period. Reasonably possible changes at the reporling date lo one of the relevanl

actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit
obligation by the amounis shown below,

Particulars Gratuity

2024-25 2023-24
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in Discount Rate (13.99) (12.66)
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in Discount Rate 15.83 14.32
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in Salary Escalation Rate 12.54 1178
Effect on DBO due to 1% decrease in 5alary Escalation Rate {11.92) (10.70)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the
plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

45 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As par provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has to incur at least 2% of
average nel profits of the preceding three financial years lowards Corporate Social Responsibility
{("CSR"). Accardingly, a CSR committee has been formed for carrying out CSR activities as per the
Schedule VIl of the Companies Acl, 2013.Delails are as under:

451
Particulars 2024-25 | 2023-24
Gross Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 34.14 34.32 |
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45.2
2024-25 2023-24
Particulars In Cash Yet to be In Cash Yet to be
paid in cash paid in cash
_Amnunt Speit dewing the year oi:
Construction/ Acquisition of any asset - - - -
On purpose other above 34.14 - 34.25 -
45.3 Disclosure of CSR activities:-
S5.No | Particulars 202425 202324
{i) Amount required to be spent by the Company
during the year 34.14 34.32
(i} | Amount of expenditure incurred 34.14 34.25
(it} | Excess/(Shortfall) at the end of the year - (0.07)
{iv) | Total of previous yeafxcess/({shortfall) 1.38 1.45
{v) | (Shortfall)/Excess from previous year adjusted
during the year 1.38 1.45
(vi) | Excess spent/{shortfall) amount carried forwal 1.38 1.38
(vii) | Nature of C5R activities Promoting Promoting
healthcare & healthcare®
education education

46

[wiii) | Details of related party transactions, e.g.,
contribution to a trust controlled by the
company in relation to C5R expenditure as pe

relevant Accounting Standard

[ix) | where a provision is made with respectto a
liability incurred by entering into a contractual
obligation, the movements in the provision
during the year shall be shown separately

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

46.1 Name of the related parties and description of relationship

A)

Key Management Personnels (KMP) & Director:

Mr. Shankarlal Agarwal -Exacutive Director & Chairman

Mr. 5. M. Agarwal - Managing Director

Mr. Omprakash Agarwal — Direclor

Mr. Umesh Agarwal — Director

Mrs. Payal Agarwal — CFO {Resigned fram Executive Director w.e f. 28.05.2023)
Mr. Anil Kumar Agarwal - Independent Director -{Resigned we f. 31.08.2023)
Mr. Amit Agarwal (Independent Director)

Mr. Sujit Sen (Independent Director)

Mr. Milind Parekh (Independent Director)

Mr. Yinod Kumar Agarwal (Independent Director)

Mr. Aditya Jalan (Company secretory -Resigned w.e.f. 20.05.2025)

Mrs. Seema Vyas (Company Secrelary - Appointed w.e f. 18.06.2025)

Relatives of Key Management Personnel:

Mr=. Nirmala Agarwal (Spouse of Mr. Shankarial Agarwal)

amt. Vidyawati Devi Agarwal (Mather of Mr. Shankarlal Agarwal)
Mr. Mikhil Agarwal (Son of Mr. Shankarlal Agarwal)

Mrs. Puja Rawat {Daughter of Mr. Shankarlal Agarwal)

Mr. Anant Agarwal (Son of Mr. Shankaral Agarwal)

Mrs. Sneha Agarwal (Spouse of Sanwarmal Agarwal)

Mr.Anand Agarwal (Son of Sanwarmal Agarwal)
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20 Ms. Shivika Agarwal (Daughter of Sanwarmal Agarwal)

21 Mrs. Jyoti Agarwal (Spouse of Mr. Omprakash Agarwal)

22 Ms. Jyolsna Agarwal (Daughler of Mr, Omprakash Agarwal)
23 Ms. Vanshika Agarwal (Daughter of Mr. Omprakash Agarwal)
24 Ms, Malini Agarwal (Daughter of Mr. Omprakash Agarwal)
25 Ms. Ananya Agarwal {Daughier of Umesh Agarwal)

26 Ms. Aastha Agarwal (Daughter of Umesh Agarwal)

27 Mr. Ishaan Agarwal (Son of Umesh Agarwal)

C) Entities over which KMP has Significant Influence:
28 Anant Business Pvt. Ltd

29 R Shankarlal Sales Pvl. Lid

30 Vidya Finvest Ltd

31 GWELD Put. Ltd.

32 SL Organic Business Pwi. Lid

46.2 Summary of transactions with the related parties

202425 202324 1
Particulars Entities overn Entities ovel
Key Sl st which KMP Key Rl which KMP
Managemend S h.ns . Managemen N h‘ns .
Personnels significant Personnels Significant
Influence: Influence:
Remuneration 377.34 8497 = 38221 54.26 - |
Reimbursemen 141.37 B7.31 - 177.16 75.02 - |
of expenses
Sitting fees 17.00 = = 3.80 E ll|
Rent lncome - - 6.00 - - 6.00/
Purchases - - 0.09 = = 1.64
Sales - - - - - 42.97|
Commission - - - 19.87 11.92 - |
Paid
Loans & - - - - =
advances given 161.00
Provision for - - - =
advances (161.00)
46.3 Summary of Outstanding balances with the related parties
As at 31st March 2025 As at31st March 2024
Particulars Entities Entities
il Relatives pyer Which d Relatives over which
Managemen KMP has Managemen | KMP has
of KMP's| _. ... of KMP's| _. ...
Personnels Significant| Personnels significant
influence: Influence:
Balances
Payable - - 1.19 - " 1.86
Balances
Receivable - - 1,001.69 - - 994 .51
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Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31" March 2025 31" March 2024

Shortterm employee benefits 377.34 382.21

Postemployment benefits * - -

Long term benefits * - -

Total compensation 377.34 382.21

*  Post-employment benefils and other long-term benefits related to KMPs Is being disclosed based on
actual payment made on retirement /resignation of services, but does not includes provision made on
actuarial basis as the same Is available for all employeas together. Further, in view of applicability of such
benefits only to CFO & CS of the Company, the amount of provision made on actuarial basis are not
significant considering the nature of operation and size of the Company.

Terms and Conditions of transactions with Related Parties:

(I} The sales and purchases transaction with related parties are made in the normal course of business and
on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-
end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash

tii} For the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables
relating to amounts owed by related parties, This assessment is undertaken each financial year through
examining the financial position of the related parly and the markel in which the related party operates.

{iii) The remuneration of Directors is determined by the Nominations & Remuneration Committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market trends.

47 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Categories of Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities as at 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
FVTPL ] FVOCI Amortized | FVTPL| FYOCI Amortized
Cost Cost
Financial Assets '
Investments
Equity Instrument - 14 83 - - 18.06 -
Trade Receivables - - 4,376.12 - - 5,{}99.535
Cash and CasbBquivalents = = 29.50 - = 36.97
Bank Balance other than abg E - 366.58 - - 36.0
Loans to Employees ~ = 3099 = = 14 .D?:
Other Financial Assets ~ - 23.45 = = 30.11
Total Financial Asse| - 14.83 4,826.65 - 1B.06 5,216.73|
Financial iabilities |
Borrowings (NC & Current) - = 8,138.87 - = 8,161.37|
Trade Payables - - 2,415.22 - - 2,331.98;'
Other Financial Liabilities - - 334.48 - - 524.11
Total Financial Liabiliti ~ ~ 10,888.58 - - 11,ﬂﬁ?.4EE

48 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES MEASURED AT AMORTISED

COST

48.1 The following Is the comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial

Instruments that are measured at amartized cost:
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31st March 2025 31st March 2024
C i . C i e
nRE Fair Value ATyinE Fair Value
Amount Amount
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables 4,376.12 4,376.12 5,009 8 5,099.%3
Cash and Cash 29.50 2950 36.97 36.97
Equivalents
Bank Balance other than 366.58 366.58 36.05 36.05
above
Loans to Employees 30.99 30.99 14.07 14.07
Other Financial Assets 23.45 23.45 30.11 30.11
Total Financial Asset 4,8B26.65 4 B26.65 5216.73 5216.73

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 8,138.87 8,138.87 8,161.37 816137
Trade Payables 2,415.22 2,415.22 2,381.98 238198
Other Financial Liabilitie 334.48 334.48 524.11 524.11
Total Financial Liabiliti 10,333.551 10,888.58 11,067.46 11.,067.46

482 The management assessed that the fair values of cash and cash eguivalents, frade receivables, trade
payables, current borrowings, current loans and other financial assets & liabilities approximates their
carrying amounts largely due to the shori-term maturities of these instruments.

48.3 The management considers that the cammying amounts of Financial assets and Financial liabilities
recognised at nominal cost/amortised costin the Financial statements approximate their fair values.

484 Non current barrowings has been contracted at floating rates of interest, which are reset at short
intervals. Fair value of floating interest rate borrowings approximates their carrying value subject to
adjustments made for transaction cost.

49 FAIRVALUEHIERARCHY

The following are the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments
that are (a) recognized and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortized cost and for which fair value
are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the company has dassified its financial instruments into the three levels of fair value
measurement as prescribed under the Ind AS 113 "Fair Value Measurement”. An explanation of each level
follows undemeath the table.

49.1 Assets and Liabilities measured at Fair Value - recurring fair value measurements

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets
Investment

- Equity Instruments 14 83 - - 18.06 - -

- Mutual fund and = = = - E E

Alternative fund

TotalFinancial Asset| 14.83 - - 18.06 - -

Financial Liability

Financial Guarantee - - = - = z

Total Financial Liabili - = = = Z =
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Note:
Mo financial guarantee was outstanding as on 31st March, 2025

49.1.1 During the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, there wera no transfers belwaen Lavel 1 and
Level 2 fairvalue measurements, and no transfer into and out of Level 3 fair value measuramenis,

49.2 Explanation tothe Fair Value hierarchy

The Company measures Financial instruments, such as, unquoted investments and mutual funds/bonds at fair
value at each reparting date. Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. All assets and liabilities
for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy based on the lowest leval input that |s significant to the fair value measuremeant as a whale. The
valuation of unquoted shares have been made based on level 3 inpuls as per the hierarchy mentioned in the
Accounting Policies. The valuation of ungquated equity instrument have been valued based an the valuation
technique applicable, The valuation of mutual funds/bonds have been valued at the market value as at balance
sheeldale,

50 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial management of the Company has been receiving attention of the top management of the Company.
The management considers finance as the lifeline of the business and therefore, financial management is carmmed
out meticulously on the basis of detalled management information systems and reports at periodical intervals
axlanding from daily reports {o long-lerm plans. Imporance is laid on liquidity and working capital managemeanl
with a view to reduce over-dependence on borrowings and reduction In interest cost, Various kinds of financial
risks and their mitigation plans are as follows:

50.1 CreditRisk

The credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counter party failing to discharge an obligation. The credit
risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and credit duration for customers on continuous basis. Further, in arder
to manage the credit risk, the security deposits are obtained from customers where ever considered necessary.
On account of adoption of Ind AS 108, the Company usas an expected credit loss model to assess the impairment
loss. The Company uses a provision matrix to cormpute the expected credil loss allowance for trade recelvables.

a. Trade receivables
Ason31stMarch, 2025
Ageing schedule 0-365 r.la'fsf 366720 dav.ﬁl Above 720 day
Gross carrying amount 2,938.92 370.30 1,428.24
Expected credit losses (Loss allowance provision - [121'34!. (239.49)
Carrying amount of trade receivables (netof
im pairment) 2,938.92 248 46 1,188.75]

As on31stMarch, 2024

Ageing schedule 0-365 days 366720 days Above 720 day
Gross carrying amount 3,799.82 1.327.67 106.79 r
Expected credit losses (Loss allowance provisior - (108.41) (26.39 |
Carrying amount of trade receivables ([netof
impairment) 3,799 .82 1,219.27 20.44
Reconciliation of loss allowance provision Amount
Loss allowance on 1 April 2024 (134.76)
Changes in loss allowance [226.57)
Bad Deh_t_r.il:ljut_r.ed -
_Loss allowance on 31 March 2025 | (361.33) |

110



G
GWELD

SEAL CF TRLEY

64th ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

50.2 Liquidity Risk
The Company determinies its liquidity reguirement In the shorl, medium and long term. This is done by drawing up
cash farecastfar shortterm and long term needs.

The Company manage its liguidity risk in 2 manner so as to meel iis normal financial obligations without any
significant delay or stress. Such risk is managed thraugh ensuring operational cash flow while at the same time
maintaining adequate cash and cash equivalent position. The management has arranged for funding from banks
and Inter corporate and adopted a policy of managing assets with liquidity monitoring future cash flow and
liguidity on a regular basis, Surplus funds not immediately required are Invested in certain fixed deposits which
pravides flexibility toliguidate.

50.2.1 Maturity Analysis for financial liabilities

A) The following ara the ramaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31st March 2025
Particulars Within 1 year More than 1 year Total
Borrowings 7,142.78 996.09 8,138.87
Trade payables on demand 2,415.22 - 2,41522
Other financial liabilities on demand 334.48 - 334.48
Total 5,892.49 996.09 10,888.58
B) The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31st March 2024
Particula
s Within 1 year | More than 1 year Total
Borrowings FT.O71.37 1,090.00 8,161.37
Trade payables on demand 2,381.98 - 2,381.98
Other financial liabilities on demand G24.12 - 524.12
Total 9,977.46 1,090.00 11,067.46
*rapresents actual unamortised contradiual cash oulflows,
) The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include contractual interest payments and exclude the

impact of netting agreements (if any). The interest payments on variable interest rate loans in the tables above
reflect market forward interest rates at the respective reporting dates and these amounts may change as market
interest rates change, Except for these financial liabilities, it is not expected that cash flows included In the
maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at significantly different amounts. When the amaunt payable
is notfixed, the amount disclosed has been determined with reference to conditions existing at the reparting date.

50.3 Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or luture cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of Forelgn Exchange Risk and Intarast Rate Risk.

50.3.1 Foreign Exchange Risk

The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate bedause of changes in
foreign exchangerates.

The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates pnmarily to the Company's
Financial Assets and Financial Liability towards Trade receivables and Trade Payables denominated in foraign
currency. Inview of low proportion of export and import, as compared to the overall operations, the exposure of
the Company to foreign exchange risk is Insignificant and thus Company does not enter into any derivative
financial contracts.”

(a) Unhedged Foreign Currency exposure

The Cempany's exposure to forelgn currency at the end of the reporting period expressed in Rs. In Lacs is as
follows

m
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Particulars As at 31st March As at 31st March
2025 2024
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables {USD) 32213 719.69
Other Current Assets (Advance to Suppliers)
-UusD 57.78 80.15
-EURD - -
-CNY - -
Subtotal {A 379.91 799.84
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables
- UsD 0.43 =
-EURD - <
Other Current Liabilities (Advance from Custon|
-UsD 66.30 78.01
-EURO 0.49 0.49
Subtotal (B 67.22 J7B8.51
Net Exposure {B) 312.69 721.34|

G

TRULYE

{b) Sensitivity
Profitor loss Is sensitive to higher/lower change as aresult of changes in foreign exchange fluctuation as below;

| Particulars Impact on profit before tax

1 For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

| Foreign exchange fluctuation —Strengthening of INR by 5% 15.63 36.07

| Foreign exchange fluctuation — Weakening of INR by 5% (15.63 } ;}ﬁ_ﬂ?} .

50.3.2 Interest Rate Risk

"Interest rate risk is the risk thal the fair value or future cash llows of a financial Instrumeant will Nuctuate because of
changes in markel ratas, The company's expasura ta the risk of changes in market interest rate relates primarily
to company's borrowing with floating interest rates.

The Company's main interest rale risk arises from long-term borrowings and short term borrowings with vanable
rates, which expose the Campany to cash flow interest rate risk. During March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 | the
Company's barrowings at variable rate were denominated in Indian Rupee {(INR)."

A} Exposure tointerestrate risk
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024
Variable rate borrowings 8,138.87 8,161.37
TOTAL 8,138.87 8,161.37

B}  Sensitivity Analysis

Profitorloss is sensitive to higher/ lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interestrates.
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular exchange rates, remain constant and ignores any
impact of forecast sales and purchases.

Particulars Sensm\ntv As at 31st March 205 | As at 31st March 202
Analysis
Impact on Profit before tax
Interest Rate Increase by 1% 81.39 81.61
Interest Rate Decrease by 1% (81.39) (81.61)

112



64th ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

51

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

G

GWELD

SEAL CF

The Company objective to manage its capital is to ensure continuity of business while at the same time provide
reasonable returns o its various stakeholders but keep assoclaled costs under control, In order to achieve this,
requirement of capital is reviewed periodically with reflerence o operaling and business plans thal lake inlo
account capital expenditure and strategicinvestments. Sourcing of capital is done through judicious combination
of aquity/internal accruals and barrawings, both short term and long lerm, Net debl (tolal borrowings less eash
and cash aquivalents) o equity ratio is used to manitor capital.

Particulars

31st March 202

31st March 202

Met Debt 8,109.37 8,124.40
Total Equity 1935477 2042E.83
Net Debt to Eguity Ratio 0.42 0.40
52 DETAILS OF KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
Current | Previous k] J
5.No | Ratio Numerator | Denominator Period Period | Variance] Reason for varianc
1| Current raud SUrTent | Current 1:27 1.38| -7.66%
Assets Liabilities
Debrequi Total
2 = quity = Equity 0.42 o.40 5.13%
ratio Borrowings
Profit afte Due to relatively
tax, Mo increase in exXpensd
cash Interest & and decrease in
Debt service operating L_ﬂasn gross profit.
3 | coverage eXpense, Payments, 0.85 284 -70.24%
ratio interest, Principal
other Repayments
adjustmens
if any
Due to relatively
Return on Profit after Average increase in expenseg
4 g 2 shareholder’ -0.05 0.06 j
equity ratio | tax gty 177.42% and decrease in
gross profit.
Inventory Revenue Aveidie
s | turnover | frem : B 3.95 418| 5.40%
5 - inventory
ratio operations
Trad_n bi Revenue Average
g | TECEVADIES | from trade 7.05 5.98| 17.83%
turnover . 3
z operations| receivables
ratic
Trade Caw S
ayables gonds Soly Average
7 B & Purchasg 1097 11.29 -2.83%
turnover _| trade payabli
ritia stock i
Trade
Met capital | Revenue Closing
B | turmmover from working 11.34 9.27 22.35% Due to relatively
ratio operations| capital decrease in workin
capital.
Due to relatively
- ’ Revenue ; 5
4 Met profit Profit afte G oG4 5.0 - | increase in expense
ratio tax ) = & 192 .26% and decrease in
operations x
gross profit.
Profit
REturmn before Capital
10 | capital 0.01 0.09 5
p interest employed 112.34% Due to decrease in
employed -
and tax profit
Net gain
({Loss) afl Decrease iReturn
11 !h:turn on sale/ fai a_ﬂwnrage 0.20 o.11 - | on In:uestment due
investment | value investment 278.48% to Fair Value of
changes o Investments throu
investm ent OcCl ﬁ
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53 ADDITIONAL REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS SCHEDULE Ill:

53.1 The Company have not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or
previous year.

53.2 The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity{ies),
including foraign entities (Intermadiaries) with the understanding that the Intermadiary shall:

a. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other parsons or entities identified in any manner whatsoaver by or
on behall of the Company (ullimaie beneficiaries) or

b. Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficlaries.

§3.3 The Company have not received any fund from any person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign eniities
(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:

a. Diraclly or Indirectly lend ar invest in other parsons or entities identified in any manner whalsoaver by or
on behall of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or

b. Provide any quaranlas, securily or the llke on behalf of the ullimate banahciaries.

53.4 The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (such as, search or survey or any ather relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 19617,

5§3.5 The Company has notbeen declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender
in accordance with the guidelings on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve bank of India.

53.6 TheCompany has notentered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current
or previous financial year.

53.7 TheCompany has notrevalued its Property, Plant & Equipment during the Current or Previous year,

53.8 Mo proceedings has been initiated or pending againstthe Company for holding any benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition} Act 1988 (45 of 1588) and the rules made there under

53.9 As perthe information available with the management , the Campany does not have any transactions with
Companias stuck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act
18586, in respect of Investments in Securities, Receivables, Payables, Shares held by Stuck off Company
and ather oulstanding balances.

54 Additional Disclosure:

54.1 Petition was filed in NCLT, Mumbai Bench by Mr. Om Prakash Agarwal, Umesh Ramkishan Agarwal and
Mrs. Payal Agarwal, the whole time directors vide case no. CP/306(MB) 2023 of oppression and
mismanagement against the Company, as the consequence of this petition the Ld, Judge has postponed
the holding of Annual General meeting for adoption of annual audited financial statement and refer the
mattar to Horn'ble The Chief Justice (Retd.) , Shri Ramesh Daokinandan Dhanuka for madiation by his
order dated 21,12.2023. After providing sufficient time to both the parlies to settle the internal family
disputes and come to a mulual settlement between them but the samea was failed.

Further, by way of the said order, the Tribunal has dismissed and disposed of the Company Application
being CANo. 92 of 2024 filed by the Petitioners, Further, the Tribunal reserved Company Application being
CANo.504 of 2023 for orders and have directed to list the matter on 21st June, 2024.

In relation to the petition filed against the company before the Mational Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai
Bench (“Tribunal™), alleging acts of cppression and mismanagement in the Company, the NCLT has, partly
allowad the Company Application baing CA No. 90 of 2024 filed by the Pelitioners therein lhereby
appointing Mr. Pradip Kumar Das, Retired Banker, as a non-executive Chairman of the Board of Directors
of the Company. Further Annual general meeting of the Company for Financial year 2022-2023 was held
and successfully conducted under the Chairmanship of Mr. Pradip Kumar Das on 12th April, 2024,

54.2 Management Assessment of making provision for bad and doubtful debts have been changed than those
followed In the previous financial year. In the Current financial year management has assessed individual
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Trade receivables and have made a Provision for bad & doubtful debt amounting to Rs. 2.27 Crore and Bad
Debt written in Profit & Loss account amounting to Rs. 26.54 Lacs.
The basis of provision of bad & Doubtful debt is made on the management own assessment.

Also, provision for bad & Doubtful debts against the Debts outstanding from related party for a period
exceading 360 Days are not made by the management due to internal disputes among the management.
Dalails for the Same is mentioned in the below Table

Sr. No. | Particulars | Amount
1 R Shankarlal Sales Private Limited (Outstanding for more than 360 but less B652.22
Il than 1440 days) S |
2 R Shankarlal Sales Private Limited ([Debtors {}uﬁtanding for more than 720 0.08
days)
3 Anant Business Private Limited (Outstanding for more than 360 but less than 301.61
1440 days)

54.3 The frade receivables, trade payable, other receivables, loans and advances and deposits are subject to
canfirmalion reconciliation lo be received from the parties. There will not be material changes on accounl
of such reconciliation/ confirmation from parties.

54.4 The Company has reclassified Lease held land from "Property Plant & Equipments” to "Right te use
Assets", The Company has started to amortised its Right to use assets taken on Lease on SLM basis from
thie current financial year the detailed breakup of such Amortisation is mentioned below:

biiut Com Amount by Total Camryley t';e::::::;. uxf::::d I tr-:smr:::':l to
5r. No. Particulars of Lease| lense which Assets Walue of the during the adjusted with| Statement of
amount aidels B8 G
< wai révalued current revaluation pmﬁt & losis
paid B financial year reserve account
LocationThane 53.56 5,338.99 5392.56 140.58 139.18 1.40
Period of lease:
99 Years
(1) Lease Completios
Date:31.07.2060
No of Years Left:
38 years
LocationXalyan 94.07 800.73 894 .80 19.23 17.21 2.02
Period of lease:
9% Years
{2) Lease Completios
Date:30.09. 2068
No of Years Left:
47 years

g5 Previous year's figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current
year’s classification/disclosure Accordingly amounts and other disclosures for the preceding year are included
as an integral part of the current year financial statements and are to be read in relation to the amounts and
other disclosures relating to the current year

A5 Par our attached Report of evan date
For SAPD & Associates

Charterad Accountanls

Firm Registration Mo : 327271E

For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors

Sankar Garg Umesh Agarwal Om Prakash Agarwal
Partner doint Managing CHrector Jolnt Managing Director
Mo . 062240 DIN : 01200962 DIN : 01261429

UDIN : 25068240BMIOFIS542

Payal Agarwal Seema Vyas

GFD Company Secretary
DiN . Q7198236 b Mo -ASO041
Place : Kolkata Place : Thane

Date : 31st July 2025

Date :31si July 2025
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NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 64" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ("AGM™) DF GEE LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON FRIDAY,
26™ DAY OF SEPTEM BER, 2025 AT 11:30 A.M. (1.5.T) THROUGH VIDED CONFERENCING ("VC') / OTHER ALDIO-VISUAL
MEANS (‘DAVM') TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

Ordinary Business;

To recelve, consider and sdopt the sudied financlal statements for the Ananclal year ended March 31, 2025 together
with the reparts of the Baard af Dlrectors and Aud ftors therean and In this regard, o pass, the followlng resalutlon as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the awdited financial statements of the Company far the financial year ended March 31, 2025, incheding
sudited Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2025and the Statement of the Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 1025,
together with the Reparts of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon be and the same are hereby recelved, considerad
and adopted.”

. To appolint M/s. SAPD & Co., Chartered Accourtants (FRN: 327271E) as the Statnory Auditor of the Company for a
period of 5 years and In this regard, to pass, the following resolution with or without modification, as an Ordinary
Resolution:

*RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and other appllcable provisions, IF any, of the Companies Act,
2013 as amended from time to tme or any other law for the time being in force (including any statutory modification or
amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof for the timer being in force), M/fs, SAPD & Ce., Chartered Sceountants |FRN:
327271E) be and are hereby appointed a5 the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 vears till the conclusion of
the Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2030 on remuneration of INRT 00,000/ (Indian Rupees Seven Lakhs
Only) for each financlal yvear plus taxes and relmbursement of out of pocket expenses as may be incurred by them In
connection with the audit of the accounts of the company.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Oirectors of the Company, jointly or severafly, be and hereby authorised to file,
execute and/or maintain necessary documents, foims, deeds, etc. to give effect to such appointment.”

. Ta appalnt Mr. Om Prakash Agarwal (DIN:D1261425), who retires by rotatban and belng eligible, offers himseH for re-
appolntment as a Director and In this regard, to pass, the following resolution &s an Ordinary Resolution;

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, Mr. Om Prakash
Bgarwal (DIN: 01261429) wha retires by rotation at this Annual Seneral Meeting and being efigible has offered himself for
re=appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as 8 Director of the Company, lisble to retire by rotation.

Speclal Buslness:
Ratification of Cost Auditor REmuneratkan and In this regard, to pass, the following resaluthan as an Ordinary Resalutian,

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Saction 148 and other applicable provisions, If any, of the Companies act,
2013 and the relevant rules framed thereunder, as amended from time to time (incloding any statrtory modification(s) or
re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), Company hereby ravifies the remunerztion of INRED,000/- (Indian
Rupees Sleby thousand anly) plus taxes, H any, as applicable and re-imbursement of out of pocket expenses, payable ro M/fs
5. Chhaparia B Associates, Cost Accountant {Firm Registratlon No. 1015%1), who has been appointed by the Board of
Directors as Cost Auditor of the Company on the recommendation of audit committes td conduct audit of the cost records
maintained by the Company as prescribed under the Company{Cost Recods and Audit] Aules, 2014 for the financial year
2045-46

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resoludon, all the Directors of the Company or the
Campany Secretary be and are herehy severally authorized ta de all such acts, deeds, maners and things as they may in
their absolute discretion deem recessary, proper or desimble and to setde any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise
in this regard and to sign Bnd execute 3ll necessary documents, applications, returns and writings, including any
agreements related thereto, 8smay be necessary, praper, desirable or expedient.”

Re-appolntment of Mr, Milind Bharat Parekh [DIN:00001513) 85 Non-Executive Independent Director for second term
and In this regard, to pass, the fallowing resalutlon as a Speclal Resalutlon:

*RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sectlon 14% and 152, read with Schedule IV and other applcable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 ["the Act™), i any, read with the rules made thereender, the SEBI {Lizting Obligations and Disclosure
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Requirements} Aegulations, 2015 (“the Usting Regulations®}, (incleding any statutory modification(s] or re-gnactrmant
therzaf for the time being in force) and any other law 85 may be applicable, Mi. Milind Bharat Parekh (O1M:00001513), who
was sppointed 35 an Independent Directar of the Company with effect from February 12, 2021 at the Annual Genersl
Meeting held on Seplember 13, 2021, for a term of five years and who holds office of the Independent Director up o
February 11, 2026 and who has submitted a declarstion that he meets the criteria of independence as provided in the Act
and the Listing regulations, and is eligible for re-appointment as an Indepandant Director, be and is hefeby re-appointed as
an Independent Director of the Company, not llable to retire by rotatlon, to hold office for 2 secand term al five years with
effect from February 12, 2026 to February 11, 2031, as recommended by Momination and Remunearation Committee and
appraved by the Board of Directors "

“RESOLVED FUURTHER THAT the Board of Directors af the Company be and afe hereby severally authorized to do and
perform all such acts, deeds, maners and things, as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to
this resolution.”

Adoption of new set of Memorandum of Assoclation of the Company as per the Companies Act, 2013 and to pass, the
fallawing resolutians as a Speclal Resolutlon:

*RESOLVED THAT pursuant 1o the provisions of Sectlon 4 and Sectlon 13 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companles Act, 2013 (“Act”), read with the rules and regulations made there ender including any amendment, e
enactment or statutory modification thereol, the new et of Memorandum of Associatlon be and hereby is being adopted
in place of the edisting Memorandum of Association of the Company o align the Memorandum of Association in
accordance with the provisionz of the Companies &et, 2003, subject to the approval of shareholders in their meeting”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors & Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally
autharised to do all such acts, deeds, mamers and things as may be reguired @ be done to give effect to the aforesald
resafution,”

Adoption of new set of Articles of Association of Company as per the Companies Act, 2013and to pass, the following
rezalutions as a Special Resalutian:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 5 and 14 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
{Incorporatian) Awles, 2014, and other appllcable provisions read with the rules and regulations made there undar
including any amendment, re-enactment or statutory modification thereaf, the new set of Articles of Association be and
hereby substituted far, and to the exzlusion, of the existing Articles of Assaciation of the Company ta slign the Articles of
Associztion with the Table F of the Schedule | and the provisions of the Companies Act, 20137

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, mamers and
things 25 may be reguired to be done to give affect to the aforesaid resolution.”

Increase the Authorise Share Caphtal of the Company and amend the Caphtal dause of Memaorandum of Assoclation and
In thls regard, to pass, the follow(ng resolutlon as an Ordinary Resolutlon:

"RESOLVED THAT pursusnt to the provisions of Sections 13, 61 read with Section 64and other appiicable provisions, if any,
of the Companles Act, 2012, [Including any statutory modificationis) and re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in
force) and the rules framed thereunder, consent af the Members be and s hereby accorded to ingcrease the Authorized
Share Capital of the Company from the present INR 10,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Ten Crores Only} consisting of
5,00,00,000 [Five Crores) Equity Shares of INR 2/- {Indian Rupeeas Twa Only) each o INR 15,.00,00,000/- {indian Rupesas
Fifteen Crores Only) consisting of 7,50,00,000 {Seven Crores Fifty Lakhs) Equity Shares of INR 2/- {Indian Rupses Tws Only)
E-ach."

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Memorandum of Association of the Company be and is hereby altered by substituting the
exlsting Clause V thereof by the fellowing new Clause V as under;

"V The Authorised Share Copital of the Company s INR 15,00,00,000/ (indion Rupees Fifteen Crores Onby} consisting of
7.50,00,000 (Seven Crores Fifty Lokhs) Equity Shores of INR 2/- (indian Rupee Two Only} each”

*RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or Company Secretary or KMP of the Company be and is hereby severally

autharised to do all such act(s), deed(s) and things intluding all farms, dacuments fling with Reglstrar of Compantes as may
be necessary and incidental to glve effact to the afaresaid Resolution.”

Appraval for lsue of Bonus Shares and In this regard, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant ta Section 83 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the
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Fules made thersunder, provisions of Securitles and Exchange Board of India (ssue of Capital and Disclosure Reguirements)
Regulations, 2018 35 amended ("ICOR Regufations™), the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended (“Listing Regulations™), and subject to such approvals, consengs,
sanctions, permissions and provisions of other applicable laws, regulations, rules, directions, guidelines including the
Foreign Management Act, 1899 and other apolicable provisions of regulations and guidelines istued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) those lssued by Reserve Bank af India and such ather reguiatory authority(les) concernad,
from time to time, 1o the extent applicable and on such terms, conditions, stipufations and modifications 25 may be
prescribed, imposed or suggested while granting such approvals, and subject to the approval of the members for the
resafution as sat out at [tem no. Baf the Motice, the consent and approval of the mambers of the company be and is hereby
accorded for 2 sum not exceeding INR 5,19,76,932/- (Indlan Rupees Five Crores Nineteen Lakhs Seventy Six Thousand Hine
Hundred and Thirty Two Ornlylout of the General Reserves and Securitles Premium Account of the Company, for the
Financial year ended March 31, 2025, be capitalized and accordingly the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter
refemred to as "the Board" which term shall be deemed ta include any Committes or authorized person{s) which the Board
has constituted or appaintad to exercise its powers, as the case may be, including the powers, conferred by this Resolution)
be and is hereby authorized to appropriate the said sum for distribution to snd amongst the members of the Company,
whase names appear in the Register of Members malntalned by the Company and the Ust of Beneficial Owners a5 received
fram the National Securlties Depositary Linited and Central Cepotitery Services [Indiz) Umlted an such date ["Record
Date”} a5 may be fized In this regard by the Board/Committes In accordance with law and to apply the sald som In paying
up In full @ maximum of 2,59,88 465 (Twa Crores Fity Nine Lakhs Elghty-Eight Thousand Four Hundred and Sixty-Six)}Equity
Shares {the “Banus Shares”) of the Company of INK2/- each (Indian Rupees Two only) at par, to be allomed, distributed and
credited as fully paid-up to and amongst the members in the proportfon of 1:2, One (1) bonus shares for every One (1)
existing fully pold up equity shares held by them respectively a5 an the Record Date and that the Bonus Shares so
distibuted, for all purposes, be treated as an Incréase in the nominal amount In the Capital of the Company by each
members, and not a5 an income.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the |ssue and allotment of the sald bonus shares to the extent that they relate to Non-Resident
Indlans (WAL, Persons of Indian Origln / Overseas Corpovate Bodies and other foreign investors of the company, will be
subject to the approval of the Reserve Bank of India and any other regulatory authority, as the case may be.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Bonus Shares so allamted shall always be subject to the terms and conditionz eontained In
the Memorandum and Articles of Assoclation of the Company and shall ok pari-passu in all respect with the existing fully
pald-up Equity Shares of the Company.”

“RESOIVED FURTHER THAT in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (fssue of Capital and Disclosure
Reguirements) fAegulations, 2018 {"ICOR Regulatians™), the new Eauity Shares to be allotted pursuant to the bonus issue
shall be alloteed in dematerialized form onby and shall be credited o the respective beneficlary demat accounts of the
pMembers maintained with their respective depository pamicipant(s) and with respect to the Members holding Equity
Shares in physical as on the Recard Date, the Company shall credit the bonus Equily Shares £0 a new estrow demat account
angd thereafter credit the bonus Equity Shares to the beneficlary demat accounts of the respective Members ypon recelpt
of requizité documents, Untll such time the Voting rights of the bonus equlty shares held In the escrow demat account,
shall remaln frozen”

“RESDLVED FLRTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to rake necessary steps for listing of the Bonus Shares on
the Stock Exchanges where the Equity Shares of the Company are listed, in terms of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable Rules and Regulations.”

“RESDIVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resalutions, the Board including any Cammittes of
the Board or person authorised by the Board, be and is hereby avthorized to do all such aces, deeds, matiers and things and
execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be required and as It may in Its sole and absolure dliscretion
desm necessary, expedlant or incldental In regard to lssue of bonos shares, flling of any documents with the Securlties and
Exchange Board of India, Stock Exchanges whers the shares of the Company are listed, Depositories, Sinistry of Corporeta
AHairs and/ or any concermed authorities, spplying and seeking necessary lisking approvals from the Stock Exchanges, and
to semle any questlon, difficulty or doubt that may arlse in regard thereto

“RESDIVED FURTHER THAT for the purpase of giving effect to the above resolution, the Board including any Committes of
the Board or person agthorised by the Board, be and 15 hereby authorlsed to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things
inchuding but not limited 1o filing of necessary forms/documents with the appropriate authorities and o executs all such
deeds, dotuments, nstruments and writlngs as It may In ils sole and absolute dlscretion deem necessary or expedlent and
Lo settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise In regard therets”

Approval far Equity Convertible Warrantz an a Preferential Basis to entities belanging o Promoters/ Pramaoter Group
and ta the Strateglc Investars belonging to Non-Promater Category and tn pass, the fallowing resalutions as a Special
Resolution:
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sectlans 23, 42, 52 and other applicable provisions, If any, of the Companlas
Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to a5 the “Companies Act®) read with the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Secufities) Rules, 2014, 35 amended and the Companies (Share Capital and Debantures) Rules, 2014, 35 amended and other
relevant rules made there under including any statotary modification(s) therete or  re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force, enabling provisions in Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, provisions of the listing
agreement executed with the Stock Exchange, where the shares of the Company are listed ("Stock Exchange™), 2nd in
accordance with the guldelines, ryles and regulations of the Securlties and Exchange Board of india {“SEBI}, as amended
including the SEBI (lssue of Capital and Oisclosure Requirements) Regulations, 1018, as amendsd (“SEBI [ICDR)
Regulatlons”), the SE8I (Listing Dbllgatians and Disclasure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI LODR Regulations™), a3
amended, the SEBI (Substantial Acquisltion of Shares & Takeovers) fegulations, 2011 ("Takeower Regulations™) as
amended, with other applicable rules, regulations, circulars, notifications, clanfications and puidetines issped thereon, from
time to time, Ministry of Corporate Aflairs, SEBI and/or any other competent authorities, and subject to the apgrovals,
consents, permissions and/or sanctions, as may be required from the Government of India, SEBI, Stock Exchange, and any
other relsvant staturory, regulstory, govermmentsl authorities or departmants, institutions or bodies snd subject to such
terms, conditions, alterations, comrections, changes, varlatlons and/or modifications, if any, as may be prescribed by any
one ar more o all of them in granting such approvals, consents, permissions and/or sanctions and which may be agreed to
by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board® which term shall be deemed to nclude
any Committee, which the Board has constltuted or may hereaftar constitute, to exercise ane ar mare of lis powers,
incheding the powers conferred hereunder), consent of the membears of the Company be and 1s hereby accorded 1o the
Board to creste, lssue, offer and alkot, on & preferential basis, up to 2550000 | Twenby-Five Lekhs snd Fifty
Thousand)Equity Convertible Warrants ["Equity Convertible Warrants" / "Warrants") of face value of Rs. 2/- gach, to the
personz belonging 1o “Prometers/ Promoter Group” and idensified strategic investors belonging to the "Mon-Fromoter’
Category, at an issue price of INR 160/ (Indian Rupees One Hundrad Sikry Only) per equity convertible warmant [including 2
premium of INR 158/ {Indian Rupees One Hundred and Fifty-Eight Only} per equity convertible warrant], determined in
actordance with the grovisions of Chapter V of SEBI {ICDR) Regulations and to be adjusted further for the entitiement of
banus shares, already approved by the board But subject ta the approval of members of the Company In the ratio of 1:1, a8
this price has bean detarminad befora the record date fined for credit of bonus lssue, carrylng a right exercisable by the
Warrant holder to subseribe to 2 Equity Shares of face value of INR 2/- (Indian Rupees Two Only) each per Warrant on
payment of the remaining 75% consideration per Warrant, within 18 months from the date of alfotment of Warranis, for an
aggregate amount of ypto INA 40, 80,00,000/ (Indian Rupees Forty Croras and Eighty Lakhs Oaly), on such further terms
and conditlans as detalled harein below, to the below mentloned persons {*Proposed Allottees”}:

S | Mame OFf the Proposed Category Of the | Warrantsto be allotted on. ~ Total Equity to be alintted
Ko, | Allottees Propased Allothees Preferentlal basks after considering the Bonus
Madmum Quantity for the entitlement In the ratio of 1:1
respactive allottes
1 Umesh Agarwal Promoter 7,50,000 15,00, 000
A Oen Prakash Aﬁarwal Promoter 3,50,000 700,000
3, Girish Paman Varvan Non-Promoter 1,50,000 3,00,000
4. Raj Goenka Mon-Promater 50,000 1,0 000
5. Golden Goenka Comumercs Mon-Promoler 50,000 1,00.000
Pt Lid.
B, Krad Hospitality LLP Non-Promoter 1,550,000 3,00,000
T Sonal Sehgal Mon-Fromoter 1,00,000 2,00,000
B Kiran Gupta MNon-Promaoter 50,000 1,000,000
8, Santosh Parmanandka Mon-Promoter 1,00,000 2,100,000
10. | ancog Vijayakumar Shroff Mon-Promoter 50,000 1,00,000
11. | Mayank Kanodia Mon-Promoter 50,000 1,00, 000
12. | Rekha Kanodla Mon-Promaoter 50,000 1,00,000
13. | Kredent Capital Pvi. Lid. Mon-Promoter 1,00,000 200,000
14. | Payal Seksaria Mon-Promoter 5,550,000 11,000,000
TOTAL 25,550,000 51,00,000

“RESOLWVED FURTHER THAT towards the entitlement of bonus shares to be allotted 1o the allotteas of warranis at the tima
of corwersien Into equity on preferential basts, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded 10 the
Board to reserve upto INA 51,00,000/- (indlan Aupess Fifty-One Lakhs Only} for the purposs of bonus Iszue of Equity Shares
in the Ratio of 1.1, by capitalization of the General Reserves and the Securitles Premium Account of the Compamy.”

*RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Relevant Date, as stipulated in Regulstion 161 of SE8I (ICDR) Regulations for the purpose of
determination of Lthe Issue Price of the convertible Warrants 10 be issued and alfotted as above shall be Tuesday, August
26, 1025, being the wading day immediately preceding the holiday ie., Wednesday, August 27, 2025 being the agh day
prior ko Friday, September 26, 2025 i, the date on which the Annual General Meeting of the members to be convened in
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terms af Section 52 of the Compandes Act, 2013 to approve this preferential lssue”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT without prejudice ta the generality of the aforesaid Resclution, the issue of Equity Convertible
Warrants to the Proposed Allonees and conversion of such conwertible Warrants under the Preferential Issue shall be
subject to following terms and conditions prescribed under the Act and the SEBI (ICOR) Regulations, 2018 including the
following:

The corversion of waerants into Equity Shares is to be done on or before the expiry of eighteen (18] months from the
date of allatment of warrants in terms of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations,

The Proposed Alloteze(s) shall, on or before the date of allatment of Warranes, pay an amount agulvalant o at least
25% of the Warrant Issug Price fived per Warrant in terms of the SE8I (ICDR) Regulations which will be kept by the
Company ta be adjusted and appropriated against the Warrant Issue Price of the Equity Shares. The halanca 75% of the
‘Warmant 5sue Price shall be payable by the Warrant Haolder at the time of exarcising the Warrsnls.

‘Warrants, being allotted to the Proposed Allottee(s) and the Equity Shares proposed to be sllotied pursuant to the
tonversion of these Warrants shall be under lock- In for such period as may be praceribed under SEBI (ICDA)
Regulation:.

Warmnts so alloned under this resolution shall not be sold, transferred, hypothecated, or encumbered in any manher
furing the peniod of lock-in provided under SEBI [ICDR) Regulations except 1o the extent and in the manner permitted
there untfer,

Warrants, being allotted ta the Proposed Allottees, at the discretion of Board of Directord or Board Committee, may be
listed on the Stock Exchange(s) in terms of Chapter V of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.

Warrants shall be (ssued and allotted by the Company only In dematerlalized form within 2 perod of 15 days from the
date of passing a Special Resolution by the members, provided that where the issue and allotment of said Warrants is
pending on aceount of pendency of any approval for such issue and allotment by the Stock Exchange{s) and/or
Regulatory Authorities, or Central Governmant, the iscye and allatrmant shall be complated within the persad of 15 days
from the date of last such approval or within such further perlod/s a5 may be prescribed or allowed by the SEBI, the
Stock Exchangels) and/or Regulatory Authorities &t

The consideration for allotment of Warrants and/for Equiry Shares arising out of exercise of such Warrants shall be paid
1o the Company from tha bank account of the Proposad Aljottes(s].

I the event the Warrant holder(s) do not exercise Warmants within the Warrant Exercise Period of 18 months from the
date of allatment, the Warrants shall l2pse and the amount paid shall stand forfeited by the Company,

Upon exerclse of the option to canvert the Equity Convertlble Warrants within the tenure specified above, the Company
shall ensure that the allotment of Equlty Shargs pursuant to exgrcise of the Equity Convertible Wamants 15 completed
within 15 days from the date of such exercise by the allattee of such warrants.

The Warrants by itself until converted into Equity Shares, do not give to the Warmnt holders any voting rights in the
Company in respect of such Warrants. However, Warmmant holders shall be entitled w any corporate action such as
issuance of bonus shares, right issue, split or consolidation of shares etc. announced by the Company between the
ralevant date to the date of allotmant of theze warranis,

The Equity Shares allorted on exerclse of the Equity Convertible Warrants shall upon conversion rank parl-passy with
the existing shares of the Company and in such form and manner and upon such tarms and condlitions 35 may be
determined by the Board in sccordance with the SEBI (ICDR} Regulations, 2018 or other spplicable laws as may be
prevailing af that time;

In terms of Regulation 166 of the SE8! (ICDR) Regulations the price of Warmranis determined above and the number of
Equity Shares to be allotted on exercise of the Warrants shall ba subject o appropriate adjustments, if applicable,

m. The right attached to the Warrants may be exercised by the Warrant helder, in one or more tranches, 2t any time on or

before the expiry of 18 (elghteen] months from the date of allotment of the Warmanis by lssuing 3 written notlee
("Comerslon Netlce”] to the Company specifying the number of Warrants proposed to be converted. The Comgany
shall accondingly, without any further approval from the Members, ailot the corresponding number of Equity Shares in
dematerialized form on the Conversion Date mentioned in the Conversion Notice, subject to receipt of the relevant
‘Warrant Exercise Amount by the Warrant holder to the designated bank account of the Company;
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n. The izsue of the Equity Convertible Warrants 3z well as the Equity Shares, arising from the exercise of the option under
the Warranks in the manner aforesaid shall be governed by Memorandum & articles of Association of the Company and
the respective provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rulas made thereunder, SEBI {ICDR) Regulations,
2018, SEBI LODR Aegulations, Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange as well as the circulars, guidelines issued by
SEBI of any other regulatory authority as the case may be, or any modifications thareof;

0. Equity Shares so allotted upon exerclsing of option to convert the Warrants shall be listed and traded on BSE Limited
["BSE"S “Stock Exchange”} i.e., the only Stock Ewchange where the existing Equity Shares of the Company are listed,
sublect to the recelpt of necessary regulatory permlssions and approvals as the case may be;

p. Inthe event that the Company completes any form of capltal restructuring prior to the exsrcising of the Warrants, then,
the number of Equity Shares thal are Issued against the exercise of sach Warrant and the price payable for such Equity
Shares, shall be appropriately adjusted in @ manner that, to the extent permitted by epplicable laws, Warmant holder: (a)
receives such number of Eguity Shares that Warrant holder would have baen entitled 1o receive; and (b) pays such
consideration for such Equity Shares to the Company which Warrant holder would have been required to pay, had the
Warrants been exerclsed Immediately prior to the completion of such capital restructuring”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Equity Shares proposed to Be co alletted upon canversion of Warrants shall rank pari-passu
in all respects Including as to dividend, with the exlsting fully paid-up Equity Shares of face value of INR 2/~ (Indlan Rupees
Two Only) 2ach of the Compary, subject to the relevant provisions containad in the Memomndum of Assocation and
Articles of Association of the Company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purposs of ghing effect ta this resolution, the Board of Directors of the Campany and/or
any Committes constituted by the Board for this purpose and/for Exscutive Director and/ar XMP of the Company be and are
heraby autharized severally on behalf of the Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things 25 it may in its absolute
discretion conskder necessary, desirable or axpedient, Including without limitation to make application to Stock ™

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company hereby takes note of the certificate from Mr Manish Tiwari, Praprietor of bManish
Tiwati & Associates, Practicing Company Secrétary in Practice (Membership No, A63431 and CF No. 27686) certifying that
the abowe [ssue of the Equity Convertible Warrants is being made in accordance with the SEBI (ICDA) Regulations. The
certificate s also available at the website of the Company Le., www geelimited com.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject 1o the receipt of such approvals as may be required under applicable laws, the cansent
of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board to record the name and address of the Proposed
Allottess and jssue the Private Placement Offer cum Application Lener in Form PAS-4, to the Proposed allottees, nviting it
Lo subscribe to the Warrants in accordance with the provisions of the Act”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Act, complete record of Private Placement offers be recorded
in Form PAS-5 for the lsspe of Invitation to subscribe to the Warrants

“RESDIVED FURTHER THAT the monies recelved by the Company from Warrant Holders, for subscription of the Warrants
pursuant to the Praferential Issue shall be kept by the Company in 8 separste corrent account opened by the Company far
thiz purpase and shall be utilized by the Comgpany in acocordance with the provisions of the act.”

*RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect ta this resolution, the Board of Directors of the Company and/or
any Commitiee constituted by the Board for this purpose and/or Executive Director and for XMP of the Comparny be and are
heraby authorized severally on bahalf of the Company to da all such acts, deeds, mattars and things a3 it may In its absolits
discretion consider necessary, desirable or expedient, including without limitation to make application to Stock Exchange
for obtaining of in-princlple approval, listing of shares, flllng of requisite documents with the Registrar of Companies,
Wational Securlties Deposiiory Limited (NSOL), Central Oepository Services (India) Limited [CDSL) and/ or such other
authanties as may be necessary for the purpoze, o resolve and setile any guestions and difficulties that may arise in the
propased issue, offer and allotment of the sald Warrants, utilization of issue procesds, signing of all deeds and documents
a3 may be required without being required 1o seek any further consent or approval of the shareholders/board "

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in connection with any ol the foregoing resolutions, the Board of Directors/Committee(s) of the
Roard and/or Executive Director and/or KMP of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized 1o execute and deliver
any and zll other documents, papers and to do or cause to be done any and all acts or things as may be necessary,
appropriate or advisable in order to carry out the purposes and Intent of the foregalng resclutlons for the preferential
sue: and any such dacuments so executed and dellvered or acts and things done of caused to be dane shall ba conclusive
evidence of the authority of the Company in so doing end any document so executed and delivered or scts and things done
or caused to be done prior to the date hereaf are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved as the acts and deeds of the
Company, as the case may be."

“RESOLVED FLURTHER THAT far the purpose of giving effect to this Aesolution, the Board of Directors of the Company he
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and is hereby authorized severally to settle any question, difficuity or doubt that may arise In this regard and also to
delegats fo the extent permitted by law, sll or any of the powers herein conferrad to any committae of directors or the
Executlve Director or any director{s) or any other Kay Managersl Personned or any other officen(s) of the Campany”

Certifled True Copy

Fer GEE LIMITED

Umesh Agarwal

Joint Managing Director
DIN: 01209362

Place: Thane

Date: August 29, 2025
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NOTES:

Pursuant to the General Circular Mo, 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024, issupd by the Ministry of Corporate
Affales (MCA] and circular [ssued by SEB| vide circular no. SEQLS HO/ CFOY CFDPoO-2) B/ CiRS 2024/ 133 dated
October 3, 2024 (*5EBI Circular”) and other applicable circulars and notificatlons Issved (Including any statutory
madifications or Te-enactment thereof for the time being in force and a5 amended from time 1o time, companies
are allowed to hold AGM through Vides Conferencing (WC) or other audio visusl means (GAVM), without the
physical presence of members st 3 common venue. In compliance with the said Circulars, AGM shall be
conducted through VC / DAVM.

Pursuant to the Circular No. 142020 dated April 08, 2020, [ssued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, tha faclliny
to appaoint prowy to stend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, the Sody
Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives 1o anmend the AGM through VC/OAVM and
participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting.

The Explanatory Statement gorsvant to Sectlon 102 and 110 of the Act read with applicable Aules setting out all
material facts of the businesses specified above is annesed hereto. Brief profiles and other additienal infarmation
pursuant te Regulation 36(3) of the SEAI {Usting Obligations and lsclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2005 and
Secretarial Standard on Generml Meetings Issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of
the Directors seeking sppointment/ re-appointment, are also annexed to the Notice.

in compliance with the afaresald MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, Notlce of the AGM ls belng sent enly through
electronic mode to those Members whose emall addrésses are régistered with the Campany/Depasitories.
Members may note that the Notice will alse be available on the Cempany'’s webaite av www geslimited com, on
the webziie of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at wenw.bsaindia.com.

Book Closuwre:

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Monday, September
15, 2015 to Friday, September 19, 2025 (heth days inclusive).

Regulation 40 of Securitist and Exchange Board of India (Listlng Obligations and Dilsclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Usting Regulations™), a5 amendsd, mandates that transfer, trensmission and
transposition of securlties of listed companles held In physical form shall be affected only In demat moda. Further,
EESL, vide its Circular dated lanuary 25, 2022, has clarified that listed companies, with immediate effect, shall
fasue the securities only in demat mode while processing Investor service requests pertaining to issue of duplicate
securities certificate, clalm from unclaimed suspense account, remewalfeschange of securities certificate,
endorsement, sub-ivision/spliing of securities certificate, consolidation of zecuwrities certificates/fofios,
transmistion, transposition ete. In view of this, Members holding shares In physical form are reguastad 1o
consider converting their haldings 1o demat mode. Any shareholder who is desirous of dematerializing their
seturitles may write to  the Company at  shares@geslimitedcom o 1t the ATA ot
rit.helpdesk @in, mems.mufg.cam.

To support the “Green Initiative’, Members who have not registered their email addresses are requested 1o
register the same with the Company s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent/their Depository Participants, in respect
of shares held In physical/electronic mode, respectively,

Transfer of Unclaimed/Unpaid amounts to the [nvestor Educatiaon and Frotection Fund (IEFF):

Transfer of Unclaimed / Unpaid amounts Lo the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF): Pursuanl Lo the
provisions of Section 125 of the Act, the Company has transferred the unclaimed final dividend for the yesr 2015-
16 on due date to the Investor Education and Protection Fund established by the Central Government The
Company willl accordinghy transfer unclaimed dividend amount pertaining to Dividend for the year 2047-18 in the
Investors Education anmd Protection Fund.

Pursuant to the provisions of lnvestor Education and Fretection Fund (Uploading of information regarding uapaid
and unclaimed amounts lying with companies) Rules, 2012, the Company has uploaded the detalls of unpaid and
unclaimed dividend lying with the Company on the website of the Company and on the website of the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs. Shares on which dividend remains uncloimed for seven consecutive years will be trangferred to
the [EPF oz per Soctlon 124 of the Act, and the applicable rules.

fembers are requested o intimate changes, il any, pertalning to their name, postal address, email address,
telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account Mumber (PAN], mandates, nominations, power of atlomey,
bank detalls such as, name of the bank and branch detalls, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to
their Depository Particlpant In case the shares are held In electronic form and 1o d/s. MUFG Intime India Private
Lirmited, in c2se the shares are held in physical farm,

G

GWER



G

i ™
64th ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25 GWELD

L OBF TEREY

10. Updation of Members' Detslls: The format of the Aeglster of Mambers prescribad by the Minlitry of Corporate
Affairs under the Act reguires the Company/ Registrar and Share Transter Agent to record additional details of
Members, Including their PAN details, email address, bank details for payment of dividend, etc. Shareholders are
requested to submdt their PAN, KYC and nomination details o the Company’s RTA, MUFS Intime India Private
Limited. Intimation letters for furnishing the reguired details were sent by the Company. The forms for updating
the same are available at Company website at wivw. gealimited .com. Members holding shares in alactronic form
are requested to submit thelr PAN, KYC detalls to thelr depository participants.

11. Memination Facility: As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and Rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share Capital
and Debentures) Rules, 2014, a5 amended, Members holding shares in physical form may file nomination in the
prescribed Form SH-13 with the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. In respect of shares held in
dematenalirzed form, the nomination form may be filed with the respective Depository Participant,

12. The Register of directors and key managerial personnel and their sharehalding, maintained under Section 170 of
the Act and the Register of Contracis or Arrangements in which the directors zre interested, maintained under
Section 189 of the Act, will be available electronically for inspection by the members during the AGM. All
dacoments referrad to In the Notice will slsa be avsllable for elactronic Inspection without sny fee by the
mambers from the date of circulation of this Motice up to the dats of AGM, i.e. September 26, 2025 Members
seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to
shares@geellmited.com/frmt helpdesk @in mpms.mufg.com

13. All the members wishing 1o ask the questions during the AGM of the Campany and register themselves as a
speaker shall forward them to the registered office of the Campamy at Plal No E-1, Road No 7, Wagle Indust rial
Estate, Thane, Maharashtra, Indla, 400604 or send them through emall at shares@ geelimited.com on of before
Friday, September 19, 2025,

14. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAYM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Motice. The facility of participation
at the AGM through WC/08VM will be made available for 1000 members on firsi come first served basis. This will
not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional
Imvestars, Directors, Xey Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committeg, Nomination and
Remuneration Committes and Stakeholders Relatonship Committee, Auditors ete. who are allowed to attend the
AGM without restriction on accownt of first come first served basis.

15 The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013,

16. Pursuant to the provisioni of Sectlon 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companles
(Management and Administratlon) Rules, 2014 (a5 amended] the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings {535-1)
fssued by the ICS| and Regulation 44 of SEB) (Listing Obligations & Discloswe Requirements) fegulations 2015 (as
amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affgirs from time to time the Company is
providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business o be transacted at the AGM, For
this purpose, the Company has entered Into an agreement with Natianal Securities Depositary Limited (NSDL) for
facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authonzed agency. The facility of casting votes by 8 member
using ramaote a-Voting system as well as evoting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL

17. In line with the Ministry of Corporate &ffairs (MCAJ Circular No, 17/2020 dated Apnil 13, 2020, the Notice calling
the AGM has been uploaded on the wehsite of the Company at www, geslimited.com. The MNotice can 2l=o be
accessed fram the websites of the Stock Exchanges l.e. BSE Umited and National Stock Exchange of India Umited
at wwwt bseindia.com and wawnseindia. com respectively and the AGM Notice Is also available on the webslte of
HSOL [agency for providing the Remote e-Votlng facillty) Le, www.evating.nsdl.com.

18, AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM In compliance with applicable provisions of the Campanies Act, 2013
read with MCA Circular issued from tme to time,

19. M Deep Shukla, Proprietor of M/fs. Deep Shukla & Assoclates, Company Secretary, |5 appointed a5 a Sonetinizer
to scrutinize the vetlng and remaote evating process, ina fair and transparent manner,

20. The Serutinizer shall after the concluslon of votlng at the AGHM, first count the votes cast at the meeting and
thereafter unblack the votes cast through remote evorlng In the presence of 51 least two witesses not In the
employment of the Company and shall make, not |ater than three days of the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast In favour or against, if any, to the Chalmman or &
person authorlzed by him in writlng, whe shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting
forthwith,

21. The results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the weabsite of the Company
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wiww, geelimited com and on the webslie of the National Securitles Depository Limited (NSOL), The Company shall
simultangcusly forward the results 1o the Stock Exchanges where the Company's shares are listed.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-WVOTING AND IDINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:-

The remaote e-voting period begins on Tueesday, September 23, 2025 acr 10:00 A.M. and ends on Thursday, September 25,
2025 ac 05:00 PM, The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafier The Members, whose
names appear In the Reglister of Members [ Beneficlal Owners as on the recard date [cut-off date) Le. Friday, Septamber 19,
2035, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be In proportion to thelr share in the pald-up
equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-cff date, belng September 19, 2025,

How dao | vote lectronlcally using NSOL e-VWntlng system?
The way to vate electronically on NSDL e-Vating system consists gf “Twa Steps® which are mentioned below:
i= ta NSDL m

Type af sharehalders Lagin Methad

Individual Shareholders 1. for aTpP based lagin you can click
holding fEﬁ.I-I'iN'H inedamat on hitps:f/eservices. nsdleam/SecureWeb/svnting/evolinglogin.lsp. You will have
Mgece woith His L. enter your 8-digit DP 10,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification code and generste OTP
Ener the OTP received on reglstered emall id/moblle number and click on login, After
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site whersin you
can see e-vViortlng page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider Le. N5DL
and you will be redirected to e=Voting website of NSOL for casting your vote during the
remote e-Vaoting period or joining wirtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2. Existing IDeAS wuser can visit the e-Services website of NSDL \Viz.
https:/feservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a moblle. On the &
Senvices home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login® which is
available under 1DeAS section, this will promp! you to enter your existing User 10 and
fassword, After succassful authantication, you will be able to see e-Voling services
under Vzlue added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting™ under e-Voting sarvices and
you will be able 1o see e-Voting page. Click on company name of e-Vating servies
pravider Le. NSOL and you willl be re-direcied to e-Voting website of N5DL for casting
your vote during the remete e-Vating periad or joining virtval meeting & voting during
the mesting.

3. If you are not registered for |DeAS e-Services, option to register is avsilable at
https:ffeservices nsdl com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices nsdl com/SecureWeh/|deasDirectReg isp

4. Visit the e-Voling website of NSOL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https:/ fwww,.evoting nsdl.com/ either on a8 Fersonal Computer or on 3 mobile. Once
the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under "Shareholder/Membar’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to
enter your User ID {i.e. your sixteen diglt demat account number hold with NSDL),
Password/OTP and a Verfication Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you wiil be redirected to MN3DL Depasitory site whereln you can see e-
Voting page. Click on comgpany name or e-Votlng service provider Le. NSDL and you will
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be redirected to e-Voting website of NSOL for csting your vote during the remote e
Voting period or joining virtua! meeting & voting during the mesting.

5. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Moblie App “NSDL Speede” facility by
scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience

NSDL Mobile App is available on

P Google Play

Individual Sharehoiders
holding securities in demat
mode with COSL

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing
wser id and password. Option will be made svailabie to reach e-Voting page without any
further authentication. The users to logn Easl /Tasles are reguested to wish CDSL
wabsite www.cdsliindla.com and click on login icon & New System Mysas Tab and then
use your existing my easl username & password.

2. Afer successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for
eligible companies where the evoting s in progress as per the information provided by
compamy. On clicking the evating option, the user will be able to see &Voting page of
the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
|eéning virual meeting & voting durlng the meeting. Additionally, there is also links
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit
the e-Voting service providers” website directly

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register |s available at CDSL
MMWnddlﬂmhthﬂwwﬂhlhdﬁmtlﬂ
on registration option,

4. Amrnatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account
Numbar and PAN No. from a s-Vating link available on wew cdslindip.cof home puge.
The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as
recorded In the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see
the e-Vaoting option where the evoting Is In progress and also able to directly access the
wystem af all e-Voting Service Praviders.

Individual Shareholders
(holding securitias in demat
mode) login thraugh thele
depository participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository
Participant reglstered with NSDL/COSL for e-Veting facility. upon legging In, you will be able to see
e-Vating optien. Click on e-Voting eption, you will be redirected tn NSDL/CDSL Depositery site
after successful authentication, whereln you can see o-Vating feature. Click on company name of
e-Voting service provider Le. NSOL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for
cating your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual mesting & voting during the
meating.
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securltles In demat mode for any technlcal lssues related to logln through
Depository .6, NSDL and COSL.

| Login type Helpdesk detalls

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode
with NSOL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL

4886 7000
Individual Shareholders holding tecurities in demat mode | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
with COSL helpdesk by sending a reguest ar helpdesk svoting @edslindia.com

ar contact at toll free no. 1800-21-09911

GWELD

B) Login Method for e-Vioting and [oining virtual meeting for sharehalders other than Indhvidual sharehalders halding securities
In demat mode and shareholders holding securtthas In physicsl mode.

H -l HNSDL e-Votln bsfte?

1. Vel the e-\ating website of NSDL Open weh browser by Wyping the fallowlng URL: hitps://www.evating nedl.corm)/
gfther ona Personal Compauter or on a mobilke.

2, Once the hame page of eVoting systern 15 launched, elick on the jcon “Login® which iz available under
*‘shareholder/Member’ tection.

3. Anew screen will open, You will have to enter your User ID, your Passwiord/OTP and 2 Verification Code as shown on the
SCreen.
Alternatively, If you ore reglsteved for NSDL eservices Le, IDEAS, you con log-in ot https:/feservices.nsdl.com/’ with your
existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSO essruvices after using your leg-in credentiols, click on e-UVoting and you can
Proceed 1o Step 2 Le. Cost your vole electranically

4. Yaur User |D detalls are ghven below

Manner of holding shares |.e. Demat [NSDL or CDSL) | Your User 1D is:

or Physkal
a) For Members who hold shares in demat account 8 Character OP ID followed by B Dight Client ID
with NSOL, For example If your OP 1D |5 IN3D0**" and Cllent 10 is

12%=**** then your user ID is IN30D0"**12""=**",

b For Members whe hold shares in demat sceount 16 Digit Beneficiary IO

wilth CDSL, For example W vyow  Beneflcdary I Is
12#==sw=smds=mes  then yowr user 10 s
lziIii-t!I!i.-II

¢) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Mumber followed by Folio Mumber registered
with the campany

Far example il folio number s 001" and EVEN is
101456 then user 10 is 101456001 %"

5. Ppassword detalle for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are ghvan balow:
al Ifyou are already registered for e-Voling, then you can usar your existing password to login and cast your vote,

b}  If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘Initial password' which was
communicated to you. Once you retrleve yowr ‘Initlal password’, you nesd to enter the ‘Initial password’ and the
system will force you to change your password.

£} How ta retrigve your ‘initial password’?

() If wour emall 10 s reglstered in vowr dernat account or with the company, your ‘Initial passward’ s
communicated to you on your emall I, Trace the emall sent to you from NEDL from your malibox.
Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the _pdf file. The password to open the
Jpdf file & your B digit dient 10 for NSDL account, last 8 digits of elient 1D far CDSL account or folic
number for shares held in physical form, The .pdf file contains your "User I0Y and your Sinitial password”,

{ly If your emall D Is not registered, please follow steps mentloned below in process for those
shareholders whose emall ids are not registered.,
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6.

8.

If you are unible to retrieve or have not received the "Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a)
b)
£)

d}

Click on “Eorgot User DetallsfPassword? (Il you are holding shares In your demat account with NSOL or CDSL)
optlan avallahle on www,.evoting.nsdl.com.
Physical User Reset Password?® (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option avallable on

If wou are still unable to get the passwerd by aforessid two optionas, you can send a reguest at evoting@nsdl.com

mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered addrass etc.
tMembers can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Vioting system of
NSOL.

After entering your password, tick on Agree to "Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.
Now, you will have to click on “Login® butan.
O,  Afier you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open,

Hnw to cast your vote slectronl n:a!h.! and Inln Genera Mul:lng on HSDL !—Untlng Systiaim?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies "EVEN" in which you 2re holding shares
and whose woting cycle and General Meeting isin active status,

2. Select *EVEN" of campany far which you with to cast your vole during the ramate e-Voting period and casting
your vate during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to dick on "VC/OAVM® link placed
under “Jaln Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. cast your vote by selecting sppropriate options i.e, assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for
which wou wish to cast your vate and click en “Submit” and zlso "Conflrm™ when prompted,

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

B. voucanalso ke the printaut of the vates cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation pags.

7. Once you confirm your vote an the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

G | Gulde|lnes far sh

1. Institetional sharehalders {i.e. other than individuals, HUF, N8I etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDFIPG
Format} of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter ete. with stiested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatary(ies) who are authorized to vote, (o the Scrutinizer by e-mail to deepsoffice@gmail.com with
8 copy marked to evoting@nsdl com Institutlons| shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, MRI 2tc.) can also
upload their Board Resolution / Power of Atorney / Autharity Lefter etc. by dicking on "Upload Board Resolution
/ Authorly Lenter” displayed under "e-Voting™ tab in their login

2. Itis strongly recommended nat to share your passward with any other person and Lake utmaost care to keep your
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessiul anempts Lo key in
the correct password, In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Dotails/Pasesword 7 ar
“Bhysical User Resal Password 77 option avallable on waneevoting. nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. Incase of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Cuestions (FAQS) I‘ar Shareholders and e- vmlr\g USET

orsend a request to M Ashok Sherugar at Ashok sherugar@in. mpms .muﬁz.cam ar mun;@nsdl.
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Process for those shareholders whose emall Ids are not reglstered with the depositories for procuring user id and
passward and registration of & mall Ids for e-voting for the resolutlons set out in this notice;,

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio MNo., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the
share certificate {front and hack), PAN (seli atiested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned
copy of Aadhar Card) by email to shares@gealimitad. com.

2. In case shares are held In demat made, please provide DPIO-CLID (16 digh DPID + OUD or 16 digit beneficiary
ID), Nams, clisnt master o topy of Consclidated Account statement, PAN (self aftested scanned copy of PAN
card), AADMAR (sell attested scannad copy of Aadhar Card) to shares@geellmited. com. I you are an Individual
sharehotders holding securlties |n demat mode, you are requmed 1o refer 1o the login method -tp}ahud at
step 1 lﬂ.i ie. P gthod fo g d o 0
securities In demat mode.

3, Alternatively shareholder/members may send @ request to evoting@nsd.comfor procuring vser id and

password far e-wating by providing above mentionad documents,

4. In terms of SEQI creylar dated December 9 2020 on a-Vating facillty provided by Listed Companies, Inglyidual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are alloywed to yote through their demat account maintained

with Depositories and Depositony Participants. Shareholders are required to uggdate their mobile number and
email 1D c ctly in thelr demat wnt in order to access a-Vobing facility.

THE INSTRUCTIDNS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e
voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facllity and have not
casted thelr vote an the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing 5o, shall
be aligible to vate through e-Votlng systam |n the AGM,

3. Members who have vaied through Remote e-Voting will ba aligible to antend the AGM. Howevar, they will not be
eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacked for any grievances connected with the Facility for e-Voting on the
day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remole e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAWVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Vioting system.
Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSOL e-Voting systermn. after
successiul loghn, you can see link of "WC/CAVM" placed Under "laln meeting™ menu agalnst company name. You
are requested to dick on VC/OAVYM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VE/OAVM will be available
in Shareholder/Membear login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Pleasa note that the members who
do not have the User ID and Passward for e-Vating or have forgohien the User 10 and Password may retriave the
same by following the remote e-Votlng (nstructions mentloned in the notice to avold last minwte rush.

2. Members are encouraged Lo join the Meeting through Laptops for betier experience.

3. Further Members will be required to sllow Camers and use Internet with a good speed to svoid any disturbanca
during the mesting.

4. Please note that Pamticipants Connecting from Mabile ODevices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile
Hotspot may experience Audio/Mideo loss due to Fluctuation In thelr respective nenwork. It is therefore
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who weould like to express their views/have guestions may send their guestions in advance
mentizning their name demat account number/falla number, emall 1d, mobile number at shares@gealimited com
Thie same will be replied by the company suitably.

LANATORY STAT NT ANT T 2 OF TH | R LATI FIC
REGULATIQINS, 2018

As required under Sectlon 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and ather applicable provisions of the Companias Act, 2013
and Sacurithes and Exchange Board of India (SEBI} Repulations, the followlng Statement sals out all materlal facts relating to
the businesses mentloned In the accompanying Notice, to enable the Members to consider for approval of the followlng
businesses mentionad under lem No. 4-10, respectively.

Hem no, 4; Ratification of the remuneration of Cast Auditars:
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The Companies (Cost Records and Audlt) Aules, 2004, as amended from time to lime, mandate audil of The cost accounting
records of the Company In respect of centain products. Accordingly, the Board of Directors, based on the recammendation
of the Audit Committae, at its Meeting held on Juby 31, 2025, eppointed M/s. 5. Chhaparia Associstes, Cost Actountants, as
the Cost Auditors for the Financial Year 2025-26 at & remunemtion of INA 60,000/- (Indian Rupees Sixvty Thousand Only)
plus applicable taves and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses, if any, incurred in connection with the audit.

in terms of section 148 (3} of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable
to the Cost Auditors showld be ratifled by the Members of the Company. Accordingly, approval of the Members s sought for
ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for auditing the cost accounting records of the Company for
the Financial Year 2023-28, as stated above,

Mone of the Directors, Key Managerial Persannel and their relatives, are, in any way, concerned or intergsted, financrally or
otherwise, in the resolution propased in ltem Mo, 4.

The Board of Directors recommends the fem No. 4 as s2t oul in this Motice for the approval of the Members as an Ordinany
Fesalution.

The Members through AGM held an September 13, 3021 had asppolnted Mr Millnd Bharat Parekh 25 an Independent
Director 1o hold office for 5{fhe) consecutive years far a term uplo February 11, 2026, Accordingly, the tenure of Mr Millnd
Bharal Parekh, as an Independent Diréctor will be expired on February 11, 2026. In terms of provisions of section1780f tha
Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and Aemuneration Committes of the Company shall recommend o the Board of the
Directors, the appointment/ reappointment of a Director In terms of provislons of section 149{10} of the Companies Act,
2013, an independent director shall hold office for a term vp 12 five consecutive years on the Board of a Company, but shall
be eligible for reappointment for the second and final term on passing of a special resolution by the Shareholders of the
Company and disclosure of such appoelntment In the Board’s repart. The Independent Directors shall be sppointed by the
Board of Directors of the Compary, based an the recommendation received from Nominztion and Remuneration
Committee of the Company, constituted by the Baard, in aceordance with applicable law. The Independent Director(s) to be
sa appointed shall be personds) of high standing, good repute and widely acknowledged as experts in their respective field,
which the Board deems beneficlal to the Company, In this regard, the Company has recelved the consent from Mr Milind
Bharat Parekh to act as the Independent Director in the prescribed Form DIR-2 under Section 1532{%) of the Act and Rule 8
of the Companles (Appalntment and Cualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 along with the declaratlon an criteria of
Independance as par Saction 149(6) of the Act. After taking into sccount the pedarmance evaluation, durdng his first tarm
of five years and considering the knowledge, acumen, expartise and experience in respective fiekds and the substantial
contripution made by Mr. Milind Bharat Parekh 85 an Independent Director since his appointment, the Nomination and
Remuneration Commitiee at its meeting held on Friday, August 28, 2025 has considered, approved and recommended the
re-appointment of Mr Milind Bharat Parekh as an Independent Director for 2 second term of five years with effect fram
February 12, 2008 1o February 11, 2031, to the Soard of Directors for thekr approval.

The Board of Diractars at 1S meeting hald an Friday, August 29, 2025 has approved the proposal for reappalntment of Mr
Milind Bharat Parekh as an Independent Director for a second term of Mve cansecuihve years with effect from February 12,
2026,

The Board recommends the Aesolutbon for approval of the Members as a Special Resolution as set out in the ftem no. 5 of
the notice, Except Mr. Milind Bharat Pargkh, being the appointes, no other Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company or their respective relatives is/ are concerned or interested, financially or othenvise, in the said Resolution.

The exlsting Memorandum of Assoclation of the Company, based on Companies Act, 1956 {"1956 Act”) are no langer in
conformity with the Companles Act, 2013 (YAct”). Upon enactment of the Companles Act, 2013, the Memarandum of
Assaciatlon of the Company were reqguired ta be re-allgned as per the provislons of the new Aot

The new set of Memorandum of Association 1o be substituted in place of the existing Memorandum of Association are in
the format prescribed under the Act. A copy of the proposed set of new Memormndum of Associarion of the Company
would be avallable for Inspection Far the members at the Registered Office of the Company during the affice hours an any
working day, except Sundays, betwesn 10,00 A M. to 5.00 PM, upto the tonclusion of the remote e-voting and il
concluston of &GN,

The Board of Bhrectars at thelr meeting held on Friday, August 29, 2025 had approved [subject 1o the approval of members)
the amendment in the Memorandum of Assaclation of the Company.

G
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In terms of sections 4 and 13 of the Companles Act, 2083, the consent of the Members by way of Special Resolution is
regiiired for proposed amendments in the Memorandurm of Association of the Company.

Nong of the Directors or X2y Managedal Personnal of the Company and/or their relatives is concemsad or interastad, either
directly or indirectly in passing of the sald resalution, financially er otherwise, In the reselution set out at item no. 6 of the
MWotice, except to the extent of their shareholding in the Company.

m Mo, T: A b g f ion of th fi T an

The existing Artldes of Associatlon of the Company, based on Companles Act, 1956 (1956 Act”) are no longer In
conformity with the Companies Act, 2013 {“Act”). Upon enactment of the Companies Act, 2013, the Articles of Association
of the Company were reguired to be re-sligned as per the provisions of the new Act.

it is thus expedient to adopt the new set of Articles of Association in place of existing Articles of Association of the
Company, including Rules made thereundern Hence the Board of Directors propased to adopt new st of Articles in place of
existing Anticles of Assodation of the Company and seek shareholders' approval for the same.

Ir terms of sections 5 and 14 of the Companies Act, 2013, the consent ef the Members by way of Special Resolution is
required for proposed amandments In the Articles of Association of the Company.

A copy of the proposed set of new Amicles of Assoclation of the Company would be avallable for Inspection for the
members at the Reglstered Offlce of the Company during the office hours on any working day, except Sundays, benween
10.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m. upto the conciusion of the Temate e-voting and fill conclusion of EGM.

The Board of Directors recommends the Resolutlon at tem Mo ¥ of the acoompanying Notice for the approval of the
Members af the Company as Special Resalurion,

Mone of the Directors, Key Managenal Personnel of Company and their relatives are concemed or interested, either directy
or indirectly in passing of the sald resolutian, financially or othenwise, in the Tesolution sef out at item no.7 of the Notice,
except to the extent of their sharsholding in the Company.

n_;s_nn!:tllul;

The Current Autharlzed Capital of the Company | 10,00,00,000/- (indian Rupees Ten Crores Only) consisting of 5,00,00,000
[Five Crores) Equity Shares of INR 2/- (Indlan Rupees Twa Only) 2ach and the pald-up share capltal of the Company is INR
5,12,76,932/- (Indian Rupees Five Crores Mineteen Lakhs Seventy-5ix Thousand Ming Hundred and Thirty-Two Only). The
Company proposes to ncrease its authorized share capital o INR 15,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupess Fifteen Crores Onky) to
facilitate any fund raising in future or |ssue of Bonus shares,

Conseguently, Clause V of the Memorandwm of Association would also reguire alteration so as to reflact the changed
Authorited Share Capital. Therefore, the proposal for increase in Authorized Share Capital and amendment of
Memorandum of Associatlon of the Company requires approwal of members at the general meeting.

Im accordance with the provislans of Sectlons 13, 14, 61 read with Section B4 of the Companles Act, 2013, approval of the
Members is Tequired for increasing the authorized Share Capital of the Company and alteration in the Memorandum of
Associatlon and Articles of Association af the Company.

Relevant documents are open for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company from 11.00 am ta
1.00 pm on all working days, durng business hows up to the one day prior to the AGMThe Directors recommend the
Ordinary Resalution sst gut in the Motice for the approval of the Members.

None af the ather Directors or the Key Managerial Persannel of the Company of thelr relatives are concerned or Intesested,
financlalby, or otherwlze In the resolution as set out at Item Mo, 8 of the Notlce.

hem Na. 3: Aporoval for lssus of Bonus Sharas:

The Company's eguity shares are listed on 85 Limited. Over the vears, the Company has performed significantly both in
terms af revenue and profit and has been rewarding its shareholders censistenty. The Directors have decided 1o capitalize
General Resérves and Secorities Premiom Account to 3 considerable for meeting the requirement of this Bonus lssue. The
balance of bath af thess accaunts as on March 31, 2028 are INA 25958.37 Lakhs and INE 530,29 Lakhs respactively
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With a view to-share 3 part of the Company’s free reserves, ite Board of Directors has recommended issve of bonus shares
in the ratio of 1:1; Le. 1 {One) Bonus shares for every 1 (Onelequity shares held by the shareholders, subject to their
approval, The issus of bonus shares, by way of capitalizing reserves, s autharized by the Company’s Articles of Assoclation.
The paid-up capital as on March 31, 2025 is INR 5,19,76,932 /- (Indian Rupses Five Crores Nineteen Lakhs Seventy-Six
Thousand Nine Hundred and Thirty-Twa Only). &n amaouint of INR 5,18,76,932/- (Indian Rupeas Five Crores Nineteen Lakhs
Sevanby-5ix Thousand Mine Hundred and Thirty-Two Only) from the Generzl Reserves and Securities Pramilum Account
which isfare required o be capitalized for the issue of borws shares In the ratio of 1:1. After the bonus issue, the paid-up
share capltal would increase to INR 10,3253 B84/~ (Indian Rupees Ten Crores Thirty-Mine Lakhs Fifty-Three Thousand Eight
Hundred and Slxry- Faur Only), The propasal far capitallzatlon of the said reserves and lssue of banus shares |s now placed
far constderation and approvel of the members. The Record Date for determining the sligibllity of the shareholders ra
receive the said banus shares will be fised by the Board, The Board of Directors recommeand far approval of members the
capitalization of reserves and issue of banus shares o5 proposad.

The Board recommends passing of the resolution 25 set out in ltam No. 9 of this notice as an Ordinary Resolution.

Mo Director, Manager, ather key managerial personnel and relathves of the same are concerned or interested in the passing
of this Resalution.

ftem No. 10:

issue of Equity Comnvertible Warrants on & Preferentlal Basls to entities belonging ta Promoters/ Promoter Group and Lo
the Strategic Investors / Non-Promater Category to pass, the following resolution as & Special Resolution:

The duard of Directors of the Company 2t their meeting held on Friday, August 15, 2025 subject to the approval of the
members and such other approvals 85 may be required has reconsidered, reviewed the fund requirements and accordingly
appraved the proposal of ralsing funds by a way of |ssuance of 25,50,000 (Twenty-Ffive Lakhs and Fifty Thousand) Equity
Convertible Warrants of face value of INR 2/- {Indian Rupees Two Only) per equity share, carrylng an entitiement o
subseribe for equivalent number of fully paid-up Equity Shares of the Company, at an issue price of INR 163/- (Indian
Rupees One Hundred Sixty Only) per equity convertible warrant [induding & premium of INR 158/~ {Indign Rupess One
Hundred and Fifty-Eight Only) per equity convertible warrant], or al such other price as determined In secordance with
Regulation 164 of the SEGI (ICDR) Reguladons, 2018, payable in cash aggregating upto an amount of (MR 40,580,060 000/-
(indian Rupees Forty Crores Elghty Lakhs Only), by way of preferentlal allotment, to the proposed Allottees as mentloned in
Resolution Mo, 10 staled above,

The sforementioned proposed Preferential lssue |5 to be |ssvad to the persons belonging to Promoters) Promoter Group
and to the Identified Strategic Investors belonging to the Non-Promoter Category as per the detalls disclosed in the
respective resolution. The preferential issue shall be made in terms of Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, 2018 end
applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

The Equlty Shares to be allotied on exercise of optlan by Warrant holders pursuant t the sbove Resolution shall rank porf-
passu in all respects including dividend with the existlng Equity Shares of the Company.

A5 per Sections 42 and 62 and other applicable provisions if any of the Compamnies Act, 2013, the Companies (Prospectus
and allotment of Securitles) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, consent of the
sharehaiders by way of special resolution is sought for Issuing the Warrants convertible into Equity Shares as stated in the
said resolution on a preferentisl basis,

Ad|ustment in fssye Prige:
The lssue price of INR 160/~ (Indian Rupees One Hundred Sty Only) per eguity convertlble warmant [including a premlurm

of INR 158/~ {Indian Aupees One Hundred and Flfty-Eight Only) per equlty convertible warrant] has been determlned for
the preferantial issue in accordance with Regulation 164 of the SEBI (ICOR) Regulations, 2018, which Is prior to the Asfevant
Date i.e., Tuesday, August 28, 2035, belng the trading day immediately preceding the holiday Le., Wednesday, August 27,
2025, being tha 3™ day prior to the date of AGM |e, Friday, Seprember 26, 2025, Further, the issue price being cum-banus
price, will be adjusted in terms of Regulation 166 of the SEBI {ICOR) Regulations, as per the following details:

Particulars Each Warrant
Minimuns Issue Price determined a5 per Regulation 164 INR 15794
|550u8 Price MR 160.00
Bonus 1ssue Entitiement 1 (One) 1 (Ong)
Adjusted |ssipe Prica®™ In terms of P.egulalbnn 166 INR RO/

*8y dividing the cum-banus price of INF 380/~ By 2 Worrants.

Accordingly, the gquantty of the maximum number of Warrants to be |ssued In the preferemtial lssue o the proposed
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allomtees is herety adjusted/aligned in terms of Regolation 166 SEGI (ICOR) Regulations, a5 per the bonus entitiement,
which 15 sibject o the approval of the members in the AGM.

Accordingly, in members approval, proposed at item No, 9 includes, propasal to capitalize snother emount of upto INR
51,00,0004- [Indian Rupees Fifty-One Lakhs Only} for the proposed sllotiees of warrants, for issuance of fully paid-up
carrespanding Bonus Shares has spacifically included.

1. Partlculars of the Preferential Issue Including date of passing of Board resolutlon, kinds of securities offered and
the price wt which securtty Is balng offered, and the totalf maximum number of securities to be [ssued:

The Board of Directors 3t thelr meeting held on Friday, Augost 29, 2025, subject to the approval of tha Members and
sueh ather approvals as may be required, has approved the issuanee and sllotment of 25,50,000 |(Twenty-Five Lakhs
and Fifty Thousand)} Equity Convertible Warrants of face value of INR 2/- (Indian Rupees Twa Only) per Eqguity
Convertible Warrant, carrying an entitlemeant to subscribe for equivalent number of fully paid-up Equity Shares of the
Company, at an kisue price of INR 180/~ (Indian Aupees One Hundred Shity Only) per equity convertibie warrant
[including a premium of INR 158/~ (Indlan Aupees One Hundred and Fifty-Elght Only) per equity commertible warrant],
by way of praferentlal allotment, 1o 2 (Twa) persons belonging to Promaler Category and 12 (Twelve) identiflad
strategic Investors belonging to the Non-Promolter category.

The Proposed Allpttees have also confirmed their eligibility in terms of Regulation 159 of Secwrities and Exchange
Board of India {Issue of Capital and Disclosure Reguirements} Regulations, 2018 (the “SEBI (ICDR) Regulations™}, to
subscribe to the Warmants bo be issued pursuant to the Preferential Issua.

In accordance with Sections 23(1)b), 42 and 62 and other applicable provisions, If any, of the At and the rules mada
thereunder and in accordance with the SEBI (ICOR) Regulations and the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listlng Obtigations and Diselosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “SEBI LODA Regulations®), as amended from
time to tme, approval of the Members of the Company by way of special resolution |5 reguired to lssue securities by
way of private placement on a preferential basis.

L Objects of the Preferemtlal Issue:

The maln abject of the issue of equity shares pursuant to the Resolution set out in the accompanying Motice shall be
to sugment Tesources for meeting s business requirements and slso to mest lang-term working capial
requirements of the Company and other general corporate purposs.

This preferengial issue Is for Equity Convertlble Warrants. The issue proceeds by way of cash contribution for equity
convertible warrants shall be received by the Company in 18 months period from the date of allotment of equity
tonverible warrants in tarms of Chapter \ of the SEBI {ICDR) Regulations and as estimated by our management, the
entire proceeds recelved from the lsus would be utillzed for 21 the above-mentionsd abjects, In phasss, as par the
Company’s business regulrements and availabllity of Issue proceeds.

3. Maximum number of ipecifed securithes 1o be Ssued and Pricing of the Preferential lssue:

The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on Friday, Avgust 19, 2025, had subject to the approval
of the Members and such other approvals as may be required, approved the lssuznce and allotment of up o
15,50,000 (Twenty-Five Lakhs snd Fifty Thousand) Equity Convertible Warrants of face value of INR 2/- (Indian Rupees
Two Only} par aquity share, carrying an antitiement te subseribe for an equivalant number of fully paid-up Equity
Shares of the Company, at an [ssue price of INR 160/~ {Indian Rupees One Hundred Shay Only) per equity convertible
warrant [induding 2 premium of INR 158/~ (Indlan Rupees One Hundred and Fifty-Elght Only) per equity convertibie
warrant), or at such other price as determined in accardance with the SERI {|COR} Regulztions, payable in cash
agEregeting upto an amount of INR 40,80,00,000/- (Indian Aupees Forty Crores and Eighty Only).

The proposad allottees of aguity convertible warrants proposed o be lssued on preferential basls 1o the entities
belenging te Promoters/ Promoter Group and Non-Promoter Category has been done before the corporate action
and the record date of Bonus Issue. Accordingly, post bonus aliotment, the aforesaid eguity convertible warrants shall
be for 51,000,000 (Fifty-One Lakhs) equity corvertible warrants, convertible into equivalent number of fully paid-up
equity shares of the Company of face value of INR 2/~ {Indian Rupees Two Only) each, on a preferential basls.

4. Intentlon of Promoters/ Directors/ Key Managerlal Personnelf Senlor Management to subscribe to the offer:
Except for wMr. Umesh sgarwal and Mr Om-Prakash Agarwal, none of the other Promoters / Promater Group,

Directors of Key Managerial Personnel/ Senlor Management of the Company intends to subscribe to any of the
Warrants proposed to be issued under this Preferential Allotment.
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EI

Price at which the allotment 15 proposed:

The £quity Copvertible Warrants to be issuad and allomed will be of the face valug of INR 2/- {Indian Rupess Two
Only) each and will be issued at INR 160/ (Indian Rupees One Hundred Sy Only) per equity convertible warrant
[including & premium of INR 158/ (Indian Rupess One Hundred and Fifty-Eight Only) per equity corvertible warrant].

Adlustoent In Issue Price:

The issue price of INA 160/ (Indian Rupees One Hundred Sty Only) per equity convertible warant [including a
peemium of INR 158/~ (Indian Aupees One Hundred and Fifty-Eight Only) per squity convertible warmant] has bean
determingd for the preferential issue In accordance with Regulaton 164 of the SEBI (ICDA) Regulations, 2018 which is
prior to the Relevant Date e, Tuesday, August 26, 2025, baing the trading day immediately praceding the holiday
l.e., Wednesday, August 27, 2025, being the 0™ day prior to the date of AGM La., Friday, September 26, 2025,
Further, the issue price heing cum-bonus price, will be adjusted in terms of Regulation 166 of the SEBI (ICOR)
Regulations, as per the following Jetails;

Particulars Each Warrant
Minimumi lssue Price determined as per Regulation 164 INR 157.94
lssue Price INR 160.00
Bonus Issue Entitlement 1 [{One) :1 (One}
Adjusted lssue Price® in terms of Regulation 166 INR B0.00

*8y dividing the cum-bonus price of INR 180/~ by 2 Warrants,

Sharehoiding Pattern before and after the propesed preferentlal |ssue:
The Shareholding pattern ks enclosed herewlth marked as Annesure A

Time frame whthin which the Proposed Preferential [ssue shall be completad:

In accordance with Regulation 170 of the SEBI [IODR) Regulations the Equity Conwvertible Warrants shall be allotted
within a mazimum perlod of 15 days from the date of passing this resolutlon, provided that where the allotment of
the proposed Equity Convertitle \Warrants is pending on account of recelpt of any spproval or permission from any
regulatery or statutory authority, the allotment shall be completed within a period ol 15 days from the data of last of
such approvals or permissions.

Further, as per Regulation 162(2) of SERI (ICDR) Regulations, upon exercise of the option by the Allones to convert
the Equity Convertible Wamants, the Company shall ensure that the allotment of Equity Shares pursuant o exsrcise
of the Equity Convertible Warrants is completed within a period of 15 days from the date of such exercise option by
thi Allottee.

GWELD
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8. Mame of Propased Allottees, [dentity of the Propased Allottees, Identtty of the natural persons who are the
uftimate beneficks| owners of the shares proposed to be allotted andfar who ultimately contral the propased
allottess; the percentage of past preferentlal lssue that may be held by them:

The percentage shareholding in the Company by the proposed Allotbees, pre and post preferential issve is ghven

below:
sl | Nameof PAN Category of Natural ere allatment umber ofFost  allotme
hao. | the the rsons Equity holding Warrants |Eqguity  holdl
Propased Proposed ho  are | and percentage proposed |and percenta
Allottee Allottee itimate of pre- {ef past
neflclal allatment latted i.ll!nmlml
Cwners Shareholding |sharehalding
[Post-Bonus)
Totsl % Totzl %
Equity Equity
i om  Prakash ACLPABI10C Promoter NA
Agarwal !
[ N
2. Umesh ABBPA4SSIC Promoter i,
Agarwal ;
Girish Faman Man- M,
3. Varnvarl !M'EMHTB Promoter
! Nen- NA
4. | Aa| Goenka AOLPGBRIBLC -
Golden Han-
Goenka Promoter e Glrdhasl
5 Commerce AABLRTSOSF Lal Goenka
Pwt. Ltd.
¥red M- hihir Bajaj &
B. | Hospitality BAPFKZEIZE Promoter Bipin Kumar
LLP Bajaj
Non- MA
7. | Sonal Sehgal  ATPPS14B6C A
: [ Mer- MA
8. | Kiran Gupta lﬂ.ﬂ:?ﬁsﬂm Promoter
Bantosh il WA
LR Barsmsindia AEXPPIS02N Promoter
Anoop Han- KA,
10. | Vijayakumar  AINPSZI0GE Promoter
Shraff
Mavank Non- MA
id| N ADOPK3B768 | Promoter EhiiteAbRicwith Waiied 99
Kanodis Annexure A
Rekha Mon- MNA
12, Xanodis ACZPKIZLTA Promoter
Kredent Mon- ) -
: Biray Bajaj &
13, | Capital  Pvt. BADCKE070A Promaoter Vivek Baj2f
Led. |
or= NA
14, | Payal Seksariz AHNPKIZGL Promoter

9,  Undertaking:

The Company hereby undertakes that:

1. The Company 5 eligible to make the Preferential lssue to the Proposed Allotiees vnder Chapter V of the SEBI
(ICOR) Aegulations;

2. all the Equity Shares held by the proposed allottees inthe Company are in dematerlalized form only;

%, The entire pre-praferential holding, if any, of the proposed allotteas shall be locked In for the perlod as prescribed
under SEG| {ICDR) Regulations,

4. The proposed Allottess has not saldftransferred any Equity Shares of the Company during the SC¢ trading days
preceding the Relevant Date.

5, WMo person belonging to the promater group has previously subscribed to any warrants of the Company but failed
to exercise them in the last ane year;
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11,

12,

13.

14.

15.

E. Mo psrson belanging to the Promerers) Promater Group has previously subscribed 1o any security of the Company
burt failed to everciza them, and
7. There are na oulstanding dues to the Baard, the stock eschanges or the depositorias.

Disclosure specified In Schedule V| of SEBI (ICOR] Regulations, If the Bsuer or any of 1ts promoters or directors iz 8
wilful defaulter or a faudulent borrower
Meither the Campany nor lts Promoters or Directors have been declared as wilful defauliter or fraudulent boarrower as
defined under the SEBI (ICOR) Regulations, Nene of ils Promaters or Directors are a fugitive economic offender a3
defined under the SEBI{ICDA) Regulations.

Disclosure regarding fugitive Economic Offender: None of the Promoters of Directors of the Company are fugitive
economic offenders.

Montoring of Utilimtion of Funds:

Given that the ssye size does not sdceed INR 100 Crores {Indian Rypses One Hundred Crores Only), In terms of
Regulation 162A of the SEBI (ICDRA) Regulations, the Company is not required to appoint o monitoring agency to
manitor the use of the procerds of the Preferential lssue

Current and proposed status of the Proposed Allottees post the preferential lssue viz Promoters/ Promoter Group
of Nor-Promaoter/ elags or classes of pefsons to whom the alictment s proposed to be mada:

The existing Promoters of the company will continue te ke in contral of the company and there will not be any
changes in the management/control of the company as a Tesult of the proposed preferential allotment, However,
there will be corresponding changes in the shareholding pattern as well as voting rights conseguent w issee of Equity
Conwvertlile Warrants allotred on preferential allotment

Rebevant Dete:

The "Relevant Date” for the offer, lssuwe and allotment of Equity Shares arlslng upon exerclie of Warrants, by way of
preferential issuve, as per the SEBI (ICOR) Regulations, 2018 is Tuesday, August 16, 2025, being the trading day
immediately preceding the holiday i.e., Wednesday, August 27, 2025, being the 3™ day prior to Friday, September
26, 2025, the date an which the AGM of members to be tonvened to approve the Special Resolutions,

Basks on which the price has been arrived at along with the Report of the Reglstered Valuer:

In compliance with SEBI (ICOR] Regulations, the minimum fssue price per Wasrants to be issued on prefarential basis
will be in such manner and on such price, terms and conditions as may be determined by the 8oard in accordance
with the provisions of Chapter Y of SEBI (ICOR} Regidations.

I termé of SE81 (ICDR) Regulations, the price per Equity Share for frequently traded shares shall not be lower than
the price derermined in agcordance with the provisions of Chapter V of the SEBI ICOR Regutations, 2008 which shall
be higher of the followlng:
&) the 90 trading days volume weighted average price of the related Equity Shares quoted on the recognized stock
axchange praceding the Relevam Daig; or
b} the 10 trading days volume weighted average price of the related Equity Shares quotad on a recognited stock
exchange preceding the Relevant Date,

In terms of the provisions of Regulation 164 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, the minimum price a1 which the equity
convertible warrants may be issved computes to INE 157.94 each,

“Frequently traded shares” means the shares of the issver, in which the traded tumover on any recognized stock
emchange during the 240 trading days preceding the Relevant Date, is at least ten per cent of the total number of
shares af such class of shares of the suer

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on BSE Umited [“BSE") as per the said definition the total traded
turnover of the company during the 240 trading days preceding the Relevant Date is more than ten percent of the
total number of shares of such class of shares of the Company. Accordingly, the shares zre freguently traded,
therefore, the Valuation has been carried ol in terms of the provision of Regulation 184 of SEBI [ICDR) Regulstions.

As the proposed allotment post bonus 1o the atlonee or allottees acting in concert in the present preferentizl issue or
In the same financlal year e, 2025-2026 is not mare than 5% of the post ssue fully diduted share capital of the Esuer
hance the valuatian from the Raglistered Valuer is not applicable to the Campany.

Method af determination of price as per the Amicles of Assodation of the Campany b5 not appllcable as the Articles of
Besociation of the Company has no specific provision relating to dewermination of 2 floor price/ minimum prica of the
shares issued on preferential basis.

G
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After considering the above, it was declded to lssue these warrants to be alloned on preferential basis to the
proposed allottess ar a price of INR 160/ (Indian Rupees One Hundred Sixty Only) per egulty convertible warrant
[including a premium of INR 158/- {Indian Rupees One Hundred and Fifty-Eight Only) per equity corvertible warrant]

16, Undertaking to recompute the price: The Company hereby undertakes that it shall re-compute the price of the
Equity Shares specified above in terms of the provisions of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, where It is required 1o do so.
17. Undertaking to put under Lock-in thl the recomputed price Is pald: The Company kerehy underakes that if the
amount payable on account of the re-computation of price is not pald within the time stipulated in the SEBI (ICOR)
Regulations, the specified securitles shall continue to be locked- In till the time such amount is paid by the allomees.
18, Amaunt which the Company Intends to ralse by way of such securites)
The aggregate amaount intended to be raised pursuant 1o the Proposed Issue of Equity Convertible Warrants is an
amaunt not exceeding INR 40,80,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Forty Crores Eighty Lakhs Only).
19. Change in control, if amy, In the Company that would cocur consequent to the preferential issue:
The existing promaters of the company will continue to be in control of the Company and there will not be any
changes in the management/contrel of the Company as a result of the proposed preferential allotment, However,
there will be corresponding changas in the shareholdlng pattern as well as voting rights consequant to lssue of Equity
Shares on a preferentlal basis.
0. Theclass or classes of Parsons to whom the allotment Is propased to be made during tha year:
5l No, Name of the Proposed Allattes Category of the Propased Alloftee
& Umesh Agarwal Promoter
2 Om Prakash Agarwal Promater
i Girish Paman Vanvarl don- Promoter
4. Raj Goenka Non- Promoter
5. Golden Goenka Comenerce Pvi. Lid. Maon- Promoter
[ Kred Hospitality LLP MNon- Promater
7. Soral Sahgal Non- Promoter
8. Kiran Gupta MNarn- Promoter
£ Santosh Parmanandia han= Promatar
10. Anoop Vijgvokumar Shroff MNorn- Promoter
11, Mayank Kanodia Mon- Promoter
14, Rekha Kanodia Mon- Pramoter
13, Kredent Capital Pwt. Lud. Men- Promoter
14. Payal Seksana hon- Promotar

¥1l. MNa. of persons to whom allotment on preferential basis has already been made durlng the year, In terms of

number of seeurities as well as prics:

The Company has not made any preferential allotment during the Financial Year 2025-2026.

X, The |ustification for the aliotment propesed to be made for consideration other than cash together with valuation

repart of the Aegistered Valuer - Not Applicable,

3. Material tarm of ralsing such securitles:
Ma material terms ather than stated above,

4. Principle terms of assets charged as securities:
Mot applicable,

5. |Listing:

FiH

The Company will make an applicatlon to the BSE for listing of the Equity Shares to be allotted pursuant (0 exercise of
aptlan for conversion of warrant by the Investars, once allotted, shall rank park passo with the then exlsting Equity
Shares of the Company in all respects, including dividend and vating rights.

Losck-in Perfod:
i, The Eguity Shares allotted pursuani to conversion will be subjeci to spplicable lock-in and transfer restrictions
stipidated in acoordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulstions.

fi. The entire pre-preferential atlorment shareholding, if any, of the Proposed Allottees, shall be locked-in 25 per
Chapter V of the SEB! ICDR Regulathons.

G
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7.

Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary:

The certificate from Mr. Manish Tiwarl, Froprietor of Manish Tiwarl & Assoclates, Practicing Company Secretary In
Practice {Membershig No. AG3431 and CP No. 17666) cerifying that the Preferential Allotment 5 being made in
accordance with the requiremenis of Chapler V of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations has been obtained and the same shall
be available for inspection at owr website at www gealimitéd.corm.

Other dlsclosyures:
a. The Company Is In compliance with the conditions For continuous listing and is eligible to make the Preferential
I55ue under Chapter V of the SEBI {|CDR) Regulations.

b. Nelther the Company nor any of its Directors or Promaoters are categorfzed as wiiful defaulier]s) by any bank or
financial institution or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelings on wilful defaulter(s) issved by the
Reseqve Bank of India, Further, neither the Company nod any of its Directors or Promoters is a fravdulent
borrower as defined under the 5EBI (ICDR) Regulations. Consequentfy, the disclosures required under Regulation
163{1}{i) of the SERI {ICDR) Regulations are not applicable.

€. deither the Compamny nor any of its Directors and/er Pramaters is a fugitive economic offender as defined undar
the SEBI [ICDR) Regulations.

d. The Proposed Allottees have conflrmed that they have not sald or transferred any Equity Shares of the Company
during the 90 wading days preceding the Relevani Date, The Proposed Allottees have further confirmed thet
they are aligible under SEBI (ICDR) Regulations Lo undertake the Preferential lssue.

E.  There has been Inter-se transfér amongst the Promoters/ Promater Groug of the Company, wheére the agquliy
shares of the Company has been transferred during the 50 trading days preceding the relevant date. However,
according to the provise of Regulation 159 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations the restriction mentionad In Regulation
159(1) of SEBI (ICOR) Regulations shall not apply to any sale of equity shares by any person belonging to
Promater(s) of the Promoter Group which gualifies for inter-52 transfer amongst gualifying persons under clause
{a} of sub-regulation (1) of Aegulation 10 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acquisition
of Shares and Takeover Regulations], 2011, Therefore, the Promoters/ Promoters Group of the Company being
the qualifying persons are eligible to participate in this Preferential Allotment,

Further, Mr. Umesh Agarwal and Mr. Om Prakash Agarwal belonging o the Promoters! Promoter Growp of the
Company and Mr. Girish Paman Vanvari, Ms. Kirmn Gupta and Mrs. 5antosh Paremanandka belonging to the Non-
Promater Category of the Company shall be considered ag deemed to be concerned or Interested in the said
resolution due o their sharehaolding in the Company.

Except Lhem, none of the Promotersy) Promoter Group, Directors, Key Managerial Personnaf or thelr relatives are in
any way financially or otherwise concermned or Interested in the passing of this Special Resolution as set out at item
Ma. 10 of this notlce except and to the extent of thelr sharehclding in the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 23, 42 and 62 of the Act read with applicable rufes thereto and refevant
provisions of the SEBI {ICDRA) Regulations, approval of the Members for issue and allotment of Eguity Convertible
Warrants to the Proposed Allattees i belng sought by way of 2 speclal resolution as set our in the sald item no. 10 of
the Motice. Issue of the Eguity Convertible Warrants pursuant tothe Preferential 155ue would be within the authorized
share capltzl of the Company,

The approval of the members i belng sought ko enable the Board to issue and allot the Equity Convertible Warrant
on a preferentialf private placement basis, to the extent and in the manner 35 set out in the resolution and the
explanatory statement

The Board of Diretiors belleves that the propased Preferential Issve |5 In the bast interest of the Company and its
Members and, therefore, recommends the resolution at ltem No, 10 of the accompanying Motice for approval by the
Members of the Company a5 a Special Resolution.

Documents referred o in the notice/ explanstory statement will be avallable for Inspection by the Members of the
Company as per applicable law.
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AnneEzure A
Proposed Na. of
Share Holding 25 on Ln. i Warrants to be oLt o Sha
29.08.2025 PFroposed to be subscrbed after HoldIng after adjusting the
! hBsued (without adjusting the Bonus Banus Effect [Assuming full
Bonus Effect) Effect Cormversion)

Pramolers

holding Mo. * No. Mo, % Mo. %%

Payal Agarwal 64,77,443 | za.92% i 0 000% | 1,29,54,886 22.70%

Iyort Agarwal 56,332,002 | 22.83% o 0 0.00% | 1.18,64,004 20.70%

Umesh Agarwal 17,895741 | 10.76% 7,50,000 1500000 | 2.63% 70,91,482 12.42%

R Ptk 1418404 | 5.46% 3,50,000 7,00,000 | 1.23% 15,365,808 £20%
| Aga rwal

Total Promaters 1,66,23,590 | €3.97% 11,060,000 23,00,000 | 31.B5% | 3,54,47,1B0 EL10%

Public holding:

Eanch Facaan 89,980 0.35% 1,50,000 3,00,000 | 0.53% 479,860 0.84%

Vanwvarl

fiaj Goenka o 0.00% 50,000 1,00,000 | 0.18% 1,00,000 0.18%

Golden Goenka

Commerce Pt 0 0.00% 50,000 1,00,000 0.18% 1.00,000 0.18%

Ltd.

ue Hoomalty o 0.00% | 150000 | 360000 | 0S3% | 360000 0.53%

Sonal Sehgal i 0.0 100,000 2,00,000 0.35% 2,00,000 0.35%

Kiran Gupta 27,750 0.41% 50,000 L,00,000 | G 1,55,500 0.237%

Santosh

Bl 7 DA% 1,000,000 200,000 | 0.35% 2,55,454 0.45%

Anpop

Vijayakumar 0 0.00% 50,000 Lo0,000 | 0.18% 100,000 0.18%

Shiroff

Mayank Kanodia 1] 0.00% 50,000 1,00,000 0.18% 1,00,000 0.18%

Rekha Xanodis 0 0.00% 50,000 1,00,000 | 0.18% 1,00,000 0.18%

e 0 0.00% 100000 | 200000 | 035% | 2,00000 0,35%

Payal Seksania 0 0.00% 5.50,000 11,00,000 1.93% 11,000,000 1.93%

Public [Cthers) 83,195,419 35.47% i o 0.00% | 1,65,29,752 28.56%

Tatal Publlc 931,64 876 | 36.03% 14,500,000 00,000 | 5.08% | 2,1629,752 37.90%

Total 2,59.8B,466 100, DO 25,50,000 51,000,000 B.93% 3,70,76,532 100.00%
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CertHiad True Copy
For GEE LIMTED

Umeash Agarwal

lalnt Managing Director
Din: 01209962

Place: Thane

Date: August 29, 2025
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ANNEXURE -8

Profile of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appolntment at this 64" Annual General Mesting

MName Mir. Om Prakash Aga rwal Mr. Milind Bhorat Parekh
Date of Birth f Age 03,/07/1972 25/0B/1981
Oualiflcatlon B.Coim, B.Com.; FMB
Date of first Appolntmert 17/10/2020 12/02/2021
Expertlse In Specific functlonal areas

Marketing B Technical Technical and marketing, legal
Experience Crver 30 years 25 years

Terms and Conditians for
appointment/ re-appointment

Re-appalnted az Execulive Director
liable 1o retire by rotation

Re-appointed a5 Non-Exgcutive
Independent  Oirecter  of  the
Company for 8 term of 5 years, not
liable to retire by rotation

Remunerathon sought to be pald

Please refer Corporate Governance
Report

Please refer Corporale Gowvernance
Report

Remuneration last drawn and number

Plaase refer Corporate Govemance

Please refer Comporate Governance

of Meetings attended Report Raport
Directorships held In other L. Mfs. R Shankarlal Sales Private] 1MJs. Harshdeep Tawmiles Private
companies Limited Limited
2.M/5, Anant Business Pyt Ltd
3.M/s Dreamlight Computech Private
Limited
Memberships/Chalrmanships Mot Applicable Mot Applicable
af committees across other
companies
Resignations from the listed Mot Applicahle hot Applicable

entitles In the past 3 years

Relatlonship with other Directors,
and other Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company

Plagse refer Corporate Gowvemance
Report

Please refer Corporate Governance
Report

MNumbear of Mestings of the Board of
Directors  attended  durlng the
financlal year 2024-25

Plaase refer Cormporate Govemanca
Report

Plapse refer Corporste Governance
Report

Shareholding In  the Company
Including the shareholding as a
beneficlal owner (as on date of)
notlce)

Please refar Corporate Governance
Report

Pleaze refer Corporste Governance
Report

lustification of Appalntment

H.A,

hLA,
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